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Corporate Information (continued)
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Corporate Information (continued)
NEIE R ()
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Financial Summary

BT F5 1k 2

(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

(B = BIETIN - UABRHETTITR)

RESULTS E 4
For the year ended 31 December
gE+-A=1+—HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—ESEE —T-hEF ZE-N\F ZT—tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRET ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
Revenue WA 492,589 694,052 634,686 462,191 442,328
Cost of sales HEMA (488,151) (685,428) (566,161) (430,018) (394,506)
Gross profit E7 4,438 8,624 68,525 32,173 47,822
Other revenue Hl A 17,626 19,856 9,480 15,777 29,308
Other net loss HinEHE 58 (36,225) (4,700) (180,023) (14,884) (21,877)
Selling and distribution expenses — $4& &7 #5552 (21,721) (25,565) (22,329 (17,600) (20,219)
Administrative expenses THRAX (57,651) (48,330) (49,194) (47,249) (46,546)
Gain on bargain purchase B e 697 - - - -
Expected credit l0oss on TRIEER TR
financial assets EEEE (3,933) (12,774) (642) - -
Loss from operations "EEE (96,769) (62,889) (174,183) (31,783) (11,512)
Share of (losses)/profits of DIEBE AT
associates (E518),/ %7 (287) (1,815) 282 (204) (129)
Finance costs WERA (162) 401 (8,895) (6,216) (9,037)
Loss before taxation BRI BB (97,218) (64,303) (182,796) (38,203) (20,678)
Income tax credit/(expenses) FriesiEe,/ (%) 4,119 (168) (2,135) (2,353) (1,617)
Loss for the year FREE (93,099) (64,471)  (184,931) (40,556) (22,295)
Loss per share FhER
— Basic and diluted —EAREE
(RMB) (Note) (ANRE)(Hist) (0.128) (0.104) (0.299) (0.067) (0.044)
Note: 0On 22 October 2019, the Company has effected a share consolidation of every HtiF : RZE—NAETAZ+Z8  ARREEEARKRNHE

five shares into one consolidated share. Earnings per share for the comparative
periods have been adjusted on a basis of five shares into one consolidated share

accordingly.

PrR—RRA GG - LEAENERABTIERELRA
—RA G W EERITHE -

HRIAEYERBRD A

—ROTEFR
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Financial Summary (continued)
B HE (8

(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated) (x5 BHTIN + UAAREFITIR)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

BE  AERER

As at 31 December

»+=A=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZEIBE —_T-NEFE —T-)\F ZZT—+F ZT—KF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARETT ARETT ARBTIT ARETR
Total Assets BERE 878,878 981,445 1,167,881 1,493,483 1,623,282
Total Liabilities BERE 66,276 95,812 217,333 362,893 494,565
Total Equity ERSBER 812,602 885,633 950,548 1,130,590 1,128,717
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Chairlady’s Statement
FEEmE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“the Board") of directors (“the Directors”) of
the Company, | hereby announce the results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 (“the
Year”).

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the Year, the revenue of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB492.6 million, representing a decline of 29.0% as
compared with the year ended 31 December 2019. Due to the
adverse impact of US-China trade tensions further emerged in 2020,
the Group recorded the loss of RMB93.1 million for the Year,
representing an increase of approximately 44.4% as compared to the
loss of approximately RMB64.5 million recorded for the year ended
31 December 2019. The Board considered that the increase was
mainly attributable to the impairment loss amounted to
approximately RMB24.6 million recognised on the Group's certain
construction in progress that has been suspended since 2019 in view
of the market conditions, particularly in the United States.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Trade tensions between China and the United States continued in
2020, and the global economy was severely hit by the COVID-19
pandemic. The year of 2020 is still full of challenges for the Group.
On 29 January 2020, the U.S. Department of Commerce announced
the initiation of new anti-dumping duty and countervailing duty
investigations to determine whether wood mouldings and millwork
products from Brazil and China are being dumped in the United
States, and to determine if producers in China are receiving unfair
subsidies. Certain of the Group’s wood products exported to the
United States were under the scope of such investigations. On 9 June
2020, the U.S. Department of Commerce announced the affirmative
preliminary determination in the countervailing duty investigation of
imports of wood mouldings and millwork products from China,
finding that exporters received countervailable subsidies at rates
from 13.61% t0 245.34%. On 5 August 2020, the U.S. Department of
Commerce announced the affirmative preliminary determination in
the anti-dumping duty investigation of imports of wood mouldings
and millwork products from China (the “Products”), that a dumping
margins from 40.3% to 146.91% exist. According to such preliminary
determinations, the Group's wholly-owned subsidiary, Fujian

BALIRR -

AANEREARFIEE((EX)a((B=2E))
AERREBAARREMBRR ([ANEE]E
ECRCEET_A=+-HLEFE(XEFE])

B RE

RAFE  REBHBRARBEZE-_T—hd+=
A=+—HALFETHE290%EHARELIN6H
B - MREFEHERRENTFFEE-T
ZEFE-SFH  ARERAFEESBERA
REGIEE L BE8EHE_Z—NLF+ A
—t+—HILFESSEBIBOARKMSBELE
KE444% - EECRBEBEANTIERAR
RAEEETA-_T—NFOEEZERZIR
FEEEETSARR EREER) % - BRZRBE
EROARE 246 BETHE -

ES 2.3

FEBSBRRBBE_S_ZFHE  2HREE
XZEHERSRENEETE  SFEE_S=
TEPREFRMKE - R -_TF—A=-+AN
B - 2260 P 755 50 = 45 B ED 3T A S B S B R = A B
AL - DARETE R B B A B A AR AR IE A AR B2
MmELEEXEIAN  THRETTFENEEERS
BEBTAFMEE - ALEATEORERMAK
HGBRLAETHBE RN —TE-TF<AN
B - EREEIEMEFE®ED 2 ARERRAA
YR RELRASEL ER 2 LT - W
I8 O S B R B 13.61% £ 245.34% 2 1d
ghe —T-TFN\ARA  EEEELEMHIEL
BEZVSHE  HO@mZNEFHESEER A
40.3% = 146.91% ° R LA HTE - AEEHE
TE2EMBAR  BEEEFANMEBRAR
WEHEHETHOEER 2 AR MRE T %R AL
Wiz s2 2 B E M AR B79.4% « ER
ZUFHECRE AEETEZTTFNA
BEIMAXEREFHASZVNSREFVECE
m EENEBERATALEZINEEZZE - R

PREYERBERAR
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Chairlady’s Statement (Continued)
FREHE @

Zhangping Kimura Forestry Products Co., Ltd. has been determined
that certain of its wood products exported to the United States will
be subjected to such countervailing duty and its dumping margin
was 79.4%. In view of such preliminary determinations, the Group
has stopped the export of the products affected by such preliminary
determinations to its U.S. customers, the Group’s performance was
therefore negatively impacted as a result. Nevertheless, turnover
from the Australasian market continued to edge up due to increasing
market acceptance of the Group's timber houses and their related
parts and structures, offsetting the negative impact from the North
American market to certain extent.

PROSPECTS

On 22 January 2021, the U.S. International Trade Commission
determined that an industry in the United States is materially injured
by reason of imports of wood mouldings and millwork products from
China that the Commerce has determined are subsidised and sold in
the United States at less than fair value. As a result of the U.S.
International Trade Commission’s affirmative determinations, the U.S.
Department of Commerce will issue anti-dumping and countervailing
duty orders on imports of these products from China. With the above
final determinations, the U.S. anti-dumping and countervailing
investigations against Chinese wooden mouldings and wood
products have come to an end. Although the new U.S. government
has taken office in early 2021, the Group expects that the contrary
trade measures of the U.S. against China will not be significantly
altered. Therefore, the Group actively adjusts its market strategy and
will focus on markets outside the United States. The Group will
continue to monitor the development of overseas markets such as
the United States and Australia, assessing the impact on the Group
and identifying necessary and decisive measures in diversifying the
business risks ahead.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere thanks for
the support and trust from our shareholders and business partners. |
would also like to thank our employees for your efforts and
contributions to the Group over the Year.

Xie Qingmei
Chairlady

31 March 2021

M ARRARASTSHAREARE REARH
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REMORBENMREMAEE —BE BEX
Bf—ERRER S —E¥E  XEEE
HEREPRHTHEBZEBEI TS HIBEERE
b o Bt AEBERFAREMGRE - KE2
WA FER AN TS o REBE)BEE T T
REB A KB ANEFHAGINTISHER - 5T
HEAEENTE  WHEELENRTEEREIENA
DERRRMETE RS - (W MALEIL R TSN o

EE )

FANEBRREFEROBH —EURIFRIE
IAKENE R RREHBH - R IREH
FUBITRAFERAANKENHAFERER -

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020



Management Discussion and Analysis

B 1R [ R A B AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

Segment review

The Group's core business segments are comprised of manufacturing
and sales of wooden products; retail sales of outdoor wooden
products; and manufacturing and sales of renewable energy products.

O
7> HB B A

During the Year, the performance of our business segments are as

REBRLUEBRUAT A EERHEARR
e TEPIAEM LERFEBLERRE
i RAEE  BFSEEDH2RRNT

follows:
Segment revenue % to total segment
derived from external revenue derived from  Reportable segment
customers Change  external customers (loss)/profit (Note 1)
HEESMBERZ DES V0
FEMBERZABRA -] #oBBAESL (B1#8) &% (W)
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
BB _TNF ZEIBF —TNF ZBIBE _TNF
RMB'000 RMB'000 % % %  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETRT BAL AL g5t AR¥WFRT ARETET
Manufacturing and sales EERBEALR
of wooden products 486,102 687,132 (29.3 98.7 99.0 (84,011) (73,719)
Retail sales of outdoor wooden  ZEFHIAES
products - 29 (100.00 N/A FiER 00 (587) (730)
Manufacturing and sales of EEREERE
renewable energy products RERD 6,487 6,891 59 13 1.0 458 942
492,589 694,052 (29.0) 100.0 100.0 (84,140) (73,507)
RREYIERERAT

ZECTEFR



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BIEE A wmE DT ()

During the Year, the distribution of revenue from our global markets ~RAEE » BRFKE2HEHH 2 WA HOT

is as follows:
Revenue % to total revenue
KA HREABSLL

2020 2019 Change 2020 2019
—EIEFE —_ThF B —EIEF _—_TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000 % % %
ABR®TRT AR%Tx Aotk B Epalsd
The PRC =2 100,606 111,639 9.9 20 16
North America JEZEM 137,708 334,388 (58.8) 28 48
Europe EoM 25,337 45,112 (43.8) 5 6

Asia Pacific N
(Exclusive of the PRC) (FEIEFE) 4,387 4,551 (3.6) 1 1
Australasia B AR P 25 224,551 198,362 13.2 46 29
492,589 694,052 (29.0) 100 100

Note 1: Reportable segment (loss)/profit has excluded the after tax effect of ~ Maf1: FA2|HMUSE), SEFIEMBRIBATHL 2 BEPE -
government subsidies.

Manufacturing and sales of wooden products remains to be the 4ERHERERDEREEBZKHEBHD L
Group's largest business segment, contributing 98.7% of the Group’s 1A A& E U A 8 98.7% ° LI X T AT 1S WA T B%
revenue. The revenue derived from such business decreased by — 29.3% - Z D MBRABB TR EZANILEME
29.3%. The overall decrease in revenue from this segment is mainly = ZHK T EPIEL -

driven by a decrease in demand from North America clients.

1 O China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

IR E 5T 5 B o AT (1)

On 29 January 2020, the U.S. Department of Commerce (“US
Commerce”) announced the initiation of new anti-dumping duty and
countervailing duty investigations to determine whether wood
mouldings and millwork products from Brazil and China are being
dumped in the United States, and to determine if producers in China are
receiving unfair subsidies. Certain of the Group’s wood products
exported to the United States were under the scope of such
investigations. On 9 June 2020, the US Commerce announced the
affirmative preliminary determination in the countervailing duty
investigation of imports of wood mouldings and millwork products from
China, finding that exporters received countervailable subsidies at rates
from 13.61% to 245.34%. On 5 August 2020, the US Commerce
announced the affirmative preliminary determination in the anti-
dumping duty investigation of imports of wood mouldings and millwork
products from China (the “Products”), that a dumping margins from
40.3% t0 146.91% exist. According to such preliminary determinations,
the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Fujian Zhangping Kimura Forestry
Products Co., Ltd. has been determined that certain of its wood
products exported to the United States will be subjected to such
countervailing duty and its dumping margin was 79.4%. In view of such
preliminary determinations, the Group has stopped the export of the
products affected by such preliminary determinations to its U.S.
customers, the Group's performance was therefore negatively impacted
as a result. Turnover from the Australasian market continued to edge up
due to increasing market acceptance of the Group's timber houses and
their related parts and structures, offsetting the negative impact from
the North American market to certain extent.

The revenue and profit contribution from retail business remains
insignificant during the Year. The Group sees this segment as a
strategic stepping stone in making into the PRC household product
market, and will adapt to new business direction whenever
appropriate.

The Group’s renewable energy business focuses on the recycling of
leftover sawdust from the production of our wooden products into
biomass pellet fuel. Against the backdrop of slowing Chinese
economy and the fierce domestic competition in the renewable
energy market, the Group's renewable energy business recorded a
decrease of 5.9% in revenue to approximately RMB6.5 million during
the Year, with its profit down to RMBO0.5 million (2019: revenue of
RMB6.9 million and profit of RMB0.9 million).

RZZZTF—AZ+NA - EEEHH(ER
P 7550 1) B 1 AR Eh T A 08 85 B0 A F 47 BE X 3
& UREREEAMPENARFEEIARZZ
BIEEREIAE  WHREFBRNEEEETERF
PAFH AL o REEE TH OBEBEH AR
BRLAENGE AN —E-FFXANA
ZEABHEMmE R REN 2 ARBERRFARRR
ZRAEMHASEL EE 2 NPHE - WHEIRE
O ESMHEIE A13.61% E245.34% 2 flidh o —
TZEFNARA  EEBEKBEB/IELEEZ
MFHE - MO INEFIEEER40.3%E
146.91% ° RiFE LMW EE - AEEETE2E
MEAR  EREEEFEANMEARARRET
HETHOZXBE 2 AR EZ 2R 2%
ZmBHEMETFEIEEERT9.4%  ERZTL
HECHE AEENTE-_Z-_ZF)\A#£EL
MEBRREPEOZZVSHELE ER  £F
MWEBRETEALEZIEEFE - RERANA
DTS ZWABE L TZEHAREEAEERE
REMA@AS G REGNEZREIEM  £—EE
EEHEBTIEEMSNEBEmTE -

AHRMTEXB D MOBA RGN EBDAT
Ko REBERRAD BEAEEEAERFBER
(BEE an Th 35 1) BE B9 SR B 1L 28 0 0 30 108 B B 8
BHEEBM -

AEEBLRRES IR EBARREERRE
MEANRERE AREEELCR/EMEENN
B o R BB IR R B A REIR T 15 BB ) 5
FEA AHRAKRENBEEREHERS KRS
TSR EMARKCESASE T MEGNIEE
ARBOSEBL(ZZ—NF WA AARK69
BETLIENAARKOOBET) °

PREYERBERAR

T THEFER
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

1R E 5T 5 B o AT (1)

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue by product category

Bt % O
WA GZEmDRREID)

Revenue
A

2020 2019
-~ -5 —E—NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT

Timber houses and their related parts and RE R E R R B
structures 373,955 567,862

Leisure household products REREER

Outdoor and indoor furniture ERIMRIBE R 10,995 24,931
Recreational products WA EM 47,197 32,205
Landscape garden products B EEER 31,696 7,229
Pet-nome designs EVEER 673 7,781
90,561 72,146
Trading of timber KME 5 21,586 47,153
Renewable energy products HAERER 6,487 6,891
Total @t 492,589 694,052

Revenue from timber houses and their related parts and structures R=Z =% - KE R A BB RBHIAAD
remained the largest income stream of the Group in 2020. Revenue  AAREE A FZAWRE KR o %0 B W R TR
from such category decreased by 34.1% to RMB374.0 million (2019:  341%EARMEIM0BEET(ZE—HE : AR
RMB567.9 million), mainly attributable to the decrease in sales to the #5679 B ET) * FERNERNILETIS V46
North America market as a result of the anti-dumping and SR EEREHREEY REHEER@RIASH ~
countervailable subsidies investigations launched by the US  BFrEL -

Department of Commerce during the year.

Overall revenue from the leisure household products drastically — REHMREE LW A KNG EFH25.5% = AR
increased by 25.5% to RMB90.6 million (2019: RMB72.1 million), 90.6B&T(=ZZ—HF: ARB72I1BET) °
mainly attributable to the increase in sales of landscape garden FEHRRERNESLEE B HEE FFFTE -

products during the year.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2020



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

IR E 5T 5 B o AT (1)

Gross profit and gross margin

Gross profit decreased to approximately RMB4.4 million (2019:
RMB8.6 million) while gross margin slightly decreased to
approximately 0.9% (2019: 1.2%), mainly because more sales
discounts were provided to customers.

Other revenue

During the Year, other revenue decreased to RMB17.6 million (2019:
RMB19.9 million) mainly due to less government subsidies of
RMB10.0 million received during the Year (2019: RMB18.2 million).

Other net loss

The Group recorded other net loss of RMB36.2 million for the Year
(2019: other net loss of RMB4.7 million). The increase was mainly
attributable to the impairment of construction-in-progress (included
in property, plant and equipment) recognised during the year
amounting to RMB24.6 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses incurred during the Year were
RMB21.7 million (2019: RMB25.6 million) which was a result of the
decrease in turnover and number of shipments during the Year.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses incurred during the Year amounted to
RMB57.7 million (2019: RMB48.3 million) as a result of recognition of
equity settled share award scheme expenses amounted to RMB5.8
million during the year.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased to approximately RMB0.2 million (2019:
RMB1.8 million), which was primarily due to a decrease in bank
borrowings during the Year.

Income tax (credit)/expenses

The Group recorded an income tax credit of RMB4.1 million (2019:
income tax expenses of RMB0.2 million) mainly due to the reversal of
over-provision of income tax in prior year during the Year.

EF RFEFIZE
ENTREANARBLLEET(ZE—NEF -
AREEBOHEIL - MEMNKEHTHRE09% (=
TAEF12%) TEEARAEFREESY
NAEE -

HAbUg A

RAFE - HWWATREARK177.6B8L(Z
T—AFE: AREI99EERT) TEHRER
WEKF@EE AL EARKI0088E T(ZZ
—hE: ARBE182BETT) °

ot J85 185 58
AEENFHRSE L AR FEARY 628
B (CE-NF: HBRFEARKITEE
) LAEBERFARBEENE  BER
RN 2 e TR HEROR (A R 6 24.6 B B 7L
B oo

HE kD HA X

RAEMMAELOHERD HEXAARK 2178
BE(CE—NF: ARK56HET)  TEm
RENEEBEREE R THRA -

TTERFX
AEERMNTREXBARE77TAET(Z
TNF ARBISIHET)  TBENFRN
R R B B B ARY 5.8 B ELATH -

BEE AR
RPOBEARARENARK2EBT(ZF
—NE: ARBISHET)  ETBMNEHME
R A -

RISt (%), Fix

RPMFEREEAARKLIEBT(ZF R
F: FERAXARMOZESET)  TEEHN
ARG AR 4 A B AR T BT B -

TREMERERAH

T THEFER
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

1R E 5T 5 B o AT (1)

Dividend

The Board does not recommend a final dividend for the Year (2019:
Nil).

Liquidity and capital resources

The Group principally meets its working capital and other liquidity
requirements through operating cash flows and proceeds from bank
borrowings. The Group anticipates that it can sufficiently meet
funding needs for working capital and capital expenditure. As at 31
December 2020, the Group had current assets of RMB423.3 million
(31 December 2019: RMB455.0 million), of which bank deposits and
cash (including pledged deposits) were RMB142.6 million (31
December 2019: RMB83.6 million).

The Group’s cash is generally deposited with banks and denominated
mostly in RMB. As at 31 December 2020, total available banking
facilities of the Group amounted to RMB97.7 million (31 December
2019: RMB151.7 million), banking facilities utilised as at 31 December
2020 amounted to RMB27.5 million (31 December 2019: RMB Nil) and
these were mainly denominated in RMB and USD. All of the Group's
banking facilities were subject to the fulfilment of certain covenants,
as are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions.

As at 31 December 2020, the current ratio and quick ratio were 7.1:1
and 5.2:1 respectively (31 December 2019: 6.0:1 and 3.0:1
respectively).

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group pledged its land use rights,
buildings and deposits with banks mainly for the purpose of securing
bank loans, derivative financial instruments and bill payables issued
by banks to the Group.

e
EEGTRBREAFENRABEA(ZE—A
) o

RBESREAIR
AEBEBEREERS R RBITERNAER
HmREBEEeREMES TR - AEEBEHE
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Capital expenditure

During the Year, the Group's total expenditure in respect of property,
plant and equipment and non-current deposits for acquisitions of
property, plant and equipment amounted to RMBé6.6 million (2019:
RMB10.5 million).

CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements,
there were no significant capital commitments for the Group. There
were no significant contingent liabilities for the Group as at 31
December 2020.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR ACQUISITION OF CAPITAL
ASSETS

Save as disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements,
there were no significant investments, material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries by the Company during the year. The Group
currently has no plan to make any substantial investments in or
acquisitions of capital assets, but will continue to seek out potential
investment or acquisition opportunities according to the Group's
development needs.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

The Group's sales are mainly denominated in USD, AUD and RMB
while our cost of sales and operating expenses are mainly
denominated in USD and RMB. Therefore, the Group’s profit would
be affected if RMB appreciates against USD and AUD as the Group
may not be able to reflect the appreciation in selling prices to
overseas customers that were determined in USD and AUD. In
response to this, the Group manages fluctuations in the exchange
rate of RMB against USD and AUD by entering into foreign currency
forward contracts mainly denominated in USD, AUD and RMB with
banks when sales contracts were entered with overseas customers.

The Group also manages foreign exchange risk by matching the cash
inflow from our export sales denominated in USD with the cash
outflow from our import of timber denominated in USD.
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At 31 December 2020, the Group had foreign currency forward
contracts with their fair values recognised as derivative financial
instruments (assets) of RMB1,619,000 (2019: RMB310,000) and
derivative financial instruments (liabilities) of RMB157,000 (2019:
RMB699,000). The changes in fair value of the foreign currency
forward contracts were recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. All of the foreign currency forward contracts are to be
settled within one year. Further information of the foreign currency
forward contracts are detailed note 34(d) to the consolidated
financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING, PLACING AND SUBSCRIPTION

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 6 July 2012. Net proceeds from the global offering
were approximately HK$144.3 million (after deducting the
underwriting commission and relevant expenses).

On 26 June 2014, the Company issued 200,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.80 per share by way of placing (the
“June 2014 Placement”). On 7 October 2014, the Company issued
165,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.93 per
share by way of placing (the “October 2014 Placement”). On 5 August
2015, the Company issued 272,600,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at HK$0.55 per share by way of placing (the “"August
2015 Subscription”). On 21 December 2015, the Company issued
857,945,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.20 per
share by way of Open Offer (the “December 2015 Open Offer”). On
10 February 2017, the Company issued 514,500,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.13 per share by way of subscription
(the “February 2017 Subscription”). The net proceeds from the issue
of new shares under the June 2014 Placement, October 2014
Placement, August 2015 Subscription, December 2015 Open Offer,
February 2017 Subscription after deducting related transaction costs,
were HK$155.0 million, HK$148.0 million, HK$149.7 million, HK$170.0
million, HK$66.7 million respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the aforesaid proceeds were fully utilised.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, we employed a total of 340 (2019: 464) full-
time employees, mainly in the PRC and Hong Kong which included
management staff, product designers, technicians, salespersons and
workers. The Group has been consistently increasing production
process automation, strengthening the training of staff with an
emphasis on high-technique processing with a mission on the
continuous development and enhancing of competitiveness. The
Group offered highly competitive salary packages, as well as
discretionary bonuses and contribution to social insurance to its
employees.

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated based on the
performance of individual employee which will be reviewed
periodically. Apart from the provident fund scheme (operation in
accordance with the provisions of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for Hong Kong employees) or social insurance
(including retirement pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, injury insurance and maternity insurance
for the PRC employees), discretionary bonuses are also awarded to
employees and directors according to the assessment of individual
performance. Since the adoption of the share option scheme on 15
June 2012 and up to 31 December 2020, no options have been
granted.

On 14 December 2020, the Board has adopted the Share Award
Scheme which does not constitute a share option scheme of the
Company for the purpose of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and
resolved to award an aggregate of 42,550,000 Award Shares to 12
Selected Participants by way of issue and allotment of new Shares
pursuant to the General Mandate. Each of the Selected Participants
are the Group's employees who are third parties independent of the
Company and its connected persons. The Board considers that the
award of the Award Shares to the Selected Participants provides
incentives to the Selected Participants and will allow the Group to
attract, retain and motivate talents for the continual operation and
development of the Group. The award of the Award Shares to the
Selected Participants recognises their continual support to the Group
and their effort will promote the Group’s future development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Anti-dumping duty and countervailing duty
investigations

During the year, certain of the Group’s wood products exported to
the United States were under the scope of new anti-dumping duty
and countervailing duty investigations. On 22 January 2021, the
United States International Trade Commission (“US ITC") determined
that a United States industry is materially injured by reason of
imports of wood mouldings and millwork products from the PRC and
that the US Commerce has determined are subsidised and sold in
the United States at less than fair value. As a result of the US ITC's
affirmative determinations, US Commerce will issue anti-dumping
and countervailing duty orders on imports of these products from
the PRC and The U.S. cash deposits at a rate totaled at 54.43% will
be collected from importers of the Group's relevant products. The
Group, as an exporter, is not directly obliged to pay such cash
deposits but in the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the
imposition of such cash deposits will be taken into account in the
pricing negotiations with the Group customers in the United States.
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. The Board believes that a high standard of corporate
governance will provide a framework for the Company to formulate
its business strategies and policies, and manage and lower the
associated risks through effective internal control procedures. It will
also enhance the transparency of the Company and strengthen the
accountability to its shareholders and creditors.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and certain
recommended best practices. The Company has complied with all
the applicable code provisions in the Code throughout the Year
except for the deviations disclosed under the sections headed “The
Board” and “Accountability and Audit” in this report.

THE BOARD

The Board oversees the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Directors are accountable for making decisions
objectively in the best interest of the shareholders as a whole.

The Board is responsible for making decisions on all major aspects of
the Company'’s affairs, including the approval and monitoring of key
policy matters, overall strategies, business plans and annual budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material transactions,
major capital expenditure, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

The Board may delegate aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management. In particular, the day-
to-day management of the Company is delegated to the chief
executive officer of the Group, Mr. Wu Zheyan, and his management
team.

The Company has throughout the Year met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or related financial management expertise.
At all times during the Year, the independent non-executive Directors
represent at least one-third of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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The Board is expected to meet regularly and at least four times a
year. The Directors have full access to the information of the Group
and independent professional advice at all times whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors.

With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and
an agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days
prior to the meeting. For other meetings, the Directors are given as
much notice as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.

Details of directors’ attendance at Board meetings, Committee
meetings and 2019 Annual General Meeting held during the year are
set out in the following table:
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FESHEEMHRESTS XM - sEMmEHD

5 ESEGZERATEAERIERTHE

o

P2y
pe=]

TRINFBEENAFELFEFSES  BE
FRERERN T NFRRBFARENF

‘E.
B -

Meeting attendance/number of meetings

BRLERE/ SHAE
2019 Risk
Annual Audit Remuneration  Nomination Management
General Board  Committee  Committee  Committee  Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
I3-hE Fid FiHERE FHERE ReERE HEREEERE
Name of Directors E5ah LT kN 1| | L g L L
Executive Directors ER
M. Xie Qingmel (Chairladly) HEERL(FE) 10 02 NATEE NATEE NATEE NATEE
Mr WU Zheyen (Chief Executive Officer) — R%E 54 (7 #%) o 22 NARER  NATER  NARER  NATER
Non-executive Director FHTER
Mr. Wu Dongoing RALRE 01 02 NATER N/AiER N/AER N/ANiER
(retired on 29 May 2020) (REFZZEFA=FNHEHS)
Independent non-executive BUkUTES
Directors
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERGLE n 22 22 22 22 22
Prof. in Zhongwei SERAR 01 20 21 2 1 2
Prof. Su Wengiang BXEAR Vi 22 22 22 22 02
Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the Code, the Board meetings HRIEFRIZ SFAGEXEAING  EFESRE
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly SFBRZEDIMK - KKEF—R - RNFE - &
intervals. The Board only held two regular meetings during the Year F&EZARMATEHAGEALE T - TF ]
to approve the interim results of 2020 and annual results of 2019 E&ER-_ZT-NEFFEXE  MESTEMEE

whilst other matters of the Board were dealt with by written
resolutions or ad hoc Board meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board has carried out its duties and responsibilities as set out in
code provision D.3 in the Code, including the development of policies
and practices on corporate governance, monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, reviewing the compliance with the Code, disclosure in
this report and legal and regulatory requirements of the Group.

THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Ms. Xie Qingmei, an executive Director of the Company, is the
chairlady of the Board.

Mr. Wu Zheyan is the chief executive officer of the Company.

Further details are disclosed in the section headed “The Board” of
this report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of two executive
Directors and three non-executive Directors. Further details of the
composition of the Board are disclosed in the section headed “The
Board” of this report.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in the
fields of accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise and
number in the Board ensure that strong independent views and
judgement are brought in the Board's deliberations and that such
views and judgement carry weight in the Board’s decision-making
process. Their presence and participation also enable the Board to
maintain high standards of compliance in financial and other
mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the
Company and the Company.

Each independent non-executive Director gives the Company an
annual confirmation of his independence. The Company considers
such Directors to be independent under the guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each Director, upon reasonable request, is given access to
independent professional advice in circumstances he may deem
appropriate and necessary for the discharge of his duties to the
Company, at the expense of the Company.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND ROTATION
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 15
June 2018, which may be terminated by not less than three months'
notice in writing served by either party on the other. Each of the non-
executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors
have been appointed for a term of three years commencing from 15
June 2018. None of the Directors has entered into a service contract
with any member of the Group (excluding contracts expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general meeting one-third of
the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy for the Nomination
Committee to consider and make recommendations to Shareholders
for election as Directors at general meetings or appoint as Directors
to fill casual vacancies.

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

M

reputation for integrity;

accomplishment and experience in the business in which the
Group is engaged in;

commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), educational background,
professional experience, skills and length of service;

qualifications which include professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company's
business and corporate strategy;

the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

requirement for the Board to have Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.13 of the
Listing Rules;

Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board; and

such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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Director Nomination Procedure

Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognises the need for
an additional Director or a member of senior management, the
following procedure will be followed:

(M

The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify potential
candidates based on the criteria as set out in the selection
criteria, possibly with assistance from external agencies and/or
aavisors,

The Nomination Committee and/or the Company Secretary of
the Company will then provide the Board with the biographical
details and details of the relationship between the candidate
and the Company and/or Directors, directorships held, skills
and experience, other positions which involve significant time
commitment and any other particulars required by the Listing
Rules, the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and other
regulatory requirements for any candidate for appointment to
the Board;

The Nomination Committee would then make recommendation
to the Board on the proposed candidate(s) and the terms and
conditions of the appointment;

The Nomination Committee should ensure that the proposed
candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the Board, being
particularly mindful of gender balance;

In the case of the appointment of an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should obtain all information in relation to the proposed
Director to allow the Board to adequately assess the
independence of the Director in accordance with the factors
set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any
amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange from
time to time; and

The Board will then deliberate and decide on the appointment
based upon the recommendation of the Nomination
committee.
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According to the Articles and in the opinion of the Board, Ms. Xie
Qingmei, Mr. Lam Hin Chi and Prof. Jin Zhongwei shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. All of the above retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
same meeting.

Where vacancies arise at the Board, candidates will be proposed and
put forward to the Board by the Nomination Committee (as defined
below) as set out below under the section headed “Nomination
Committee” of this report.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Remuneration for executive Directors and senior management is
determined in accordance with performance, professional
experiences and the prevailing market practices. The remuneration
of non-executive Directors is subject to regular assessment by the
Remuneration Committee (as defined below).

TRAINING, INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment so as
to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and
duties of the Directors.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the relevant
code provision. The Company had received from each of the
Directors the record of training the Directors received.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After making
specific enquiry to all the Directors, the Company confirms that all
the Directors have complied with the standards as stipulated in the
Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up four Board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee, the nomination committee
and the risk management committee (collectively the “Board
Committees”), for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and Prof. Su
Wengiang. Mr. Lam Hin Chi is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee shall assist the
Board in fulfilling its corporate governance and overseeing
responsibilities in relation to financial reporting, risk management
and internal control systems and internal and external audit
functions. The Audit Committee is further authorised by the Board to
investigate any activity within its terms of reference, and is tasked
with recommending to the Board appropriate actions emanating
from such investigations. The Audit Committee has unrestricted
access to personnel, records, internal and external auditors, risk
assessment and assurance and senior management, as may be
appropriate in the discharge of its functions.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities

by:

making recommendations to the Board on the reappointment
of the external auditor and approval of the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor;

monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standard, and discussing with the external auditor
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

implementing the Company’s policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services,

reviewing, and monitoring the integrity of, the financial
statements of the Company and the Company’s interim report
to ensure that the information presents a true and balanced
assessment of the Company's financial position;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems to ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have effective systems,

reviewing the Company's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor's management letter, material
queries raised by the external auditor to the management, if
any, in respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and the management'’s response to such
queries; and

reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Code on
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to obtain external
legal or other independent professional advice and to secure the
attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it
considers necessary in the performance of its functions. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources by the Company to
discharge its duties. The Audit Committee’s specific terms of
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During the Year, the Audit Committee together with management
has reviewed the Code, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed the Group's internal control
and financial reporting matters, including a review of the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the interim results
for the six months ended 30 June 2020, with recommendation to the
Board for approval. The Audit Committee has also recommended to
the Board that Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited (“Ascenda Cachet”) be
appointed as the external auditors of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and
Prof. Su Wengiang. Prof. Jin Zhongwei is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(@ to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b)  to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(c)  to make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

(d) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

(e)  toreview and approve management’s remuneration proposals
by reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;
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(fy)  to review and approve compensation payable to the executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(8 toreview and approve compensation arrangements relating to

dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

(h)  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company's website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration policy and structure of the executive Directors and
senior management of the Company, and offered advice on the
same to the Board. The Remuneration Committee also resolved to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and
Prof. Su Wengiang. Prof. Jin Zhongwei is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(@ to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
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() to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

(d)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Group.

Where vacancy on the Board exists, the Nomination Committee will
carry out a selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations, and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
candidates for directorship.

The Nomination Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board, conducted performance evaluations to
assess whether the non-executive Directors have spent enough time
in fulfilling their duties, assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, and had been keeping under review the
leadership needs of the organisation, both executive and non-
executive, with a view to ensuring the continued ability of the
organisation to compete effectively in the marketplace.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the approach to achieve a sustainable and balanced
development of the Company and to enhance the quality of
performance of the Company. The Policy aims at achieving diversity
on the Board.

Measurable Objectives and Selection

In designing the Board’'s composition, a number of perspectives
which include race, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, industry experience, technical and professional
experience, knowledge, skills, length of service, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates will be taken into
consideration. The Company will also take into account factors
relating to its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. The ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution that
the candidates will bring to the Board. Candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The Board currently consists of one female member. The Board will
take opportunity to increase the proportion of female members over
time when selecting and making recommendation on suitable
candidates for Board appointments. The Board would ensure that
appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved with reference to
stakeholders’ expectation and international and local recommended
best practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing the Board to gender
parity. The Board also aspires to having an appropriate proportion of
Directors who have direct experience in the Group’s core markets,
with different ethnic backgrounds, and reflecting the Group’s
strategy.

Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
board diversity policy and report to the Board annually.
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Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and
Prof. Su Wengiang. Mr. Lam Hin Chi is the chairman of the Risk
Management Committee.

The major duties of the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

(@)

to review the Group risk, capital and liquidity management
framework, the Group’s risk appetite, its risk policies and
standards, and supporting risk limits, including the parameters
used and the methodology adopted, and the processes used
for identifying and assessing risks;

to review material risk exposures of the Group, including
market, credit, insurance, operational, liquidity, and economic
and regulatory capital risks against the Group's risk
measurement methodologies and management actions to
monitor and control such exposures;

to review the standard for accurate and timely monitoring of
large exposures and certain risk types of critical importance,
and the Group's capability to identify and manage new risk
types;

to receive reports and recommendations from management
on the Group's attitude to and tolerance of risk, including
financial and non-financial risks;

to oversee the Group's processes and policies for determining
risk tolerance and review management’'s measurement and
effectiveness of, and compliance with, approved Group risk
tolerance levels and policies and standards, and the resultant
action in respect of policy breaches;

to review the risks inherent in strategic transactions and
business plans and provide the Board with input on the risk/
reward trade offs implicit within those plans; and

to review the Group’s capability to identify and manage new
risk types, and the Group’s stress tests to ensure they are
rigorous and the Group responds adequately to the results.
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The Risk Management Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Risk Management Committee has evaluated and
assessed the effectiveness and adequacy of the Terms of Reference
of the Risk Management Committee.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company to ensure that these
financial statements give a true and fair presentation in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards.

The statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is
set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 56 to 66.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Pursuant to Code provision C.1.2, the Management should provide
all members of the board with monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the issuer’'s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08
and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has deviated from C.1.2 in that while the management
has updated most of the Directors on a monthly basis about the
business operation and performance of the Company, not all the
Directors received such updates as the monthly updates were
conducted on-site at the Group’s factory in China. Members of the
Board who did not attend such on-site meetings did not receive the
updates. However, the management would provide detailed updates
to all the Directors on a half-yearly and yearly basis. In the event
there are any significant updates to be provided, the management
will update all the Directors as early as practicable for discussion and
resolution. The Company also has in place a system for every
Director to make enquiries with the senior management about the
business operation of the Group and to give suggestions or feedback
in the event such Director is not able attend the monthly on-site
updates session.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the independent
auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives a letter from Ascenda Cachet the independent
auditor, confirming their independence and objectivity and holds
meetings with representatives of Ascenda Cachet to consider the
scope of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and
appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it.
The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and retention of Ascenda Cachet.

The remuneration paid or payable to Ascenda Cachet of the Company
for audit services for the Year was approximately HKD980,000.

The remuneration paid or payable to Ascenda Cachet of the
Company for non-audit services for the Year was nil.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Since 6 July 2018, the Company has engaged Modern Assurance And
Business Services Limited, an external service provider, and Ms. Lee
Kin Yee has been appointed as the Company’s company secretary.
Its primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Wu Zheyan, an
executive director of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There are no significant changes in the Articles and the
memorandum of association of the Company during the Year.

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, members holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the Year, the Board complied with the Code provisions on risk
management and internal control as set out in the Code. The Board
has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems for the Group. The
systems are designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or l0ss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets
against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the
likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review of
the effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted
annually and the systems are considered to be effective and
adequate. The Company also has an internal audit function to carry
out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems, and has procedures in place to keep
information confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of
interest. Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent
the misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.
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The Company has established and maintained procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. The Company has adopted a code of conduct for
dealing in the securities of the Company by the Directors in
accordance with Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Other employees
of the Group who are likely to be in possession of inside information
of the Company are also subject to dealing restrictions. Any inside
information and any information which may potentially constitute
inside information is promptly identified, assessed and escalated to
the Board and for the Board to decide on the need for disclosure.
Inside information and other information which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules will be announced on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in due
course.

SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD AND
PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETINGS

Shareholders or investors can contact the Company in the following
ways to make enquiry or to provide suggestions:

Tel: (852) 3904 1867

Postal Address: Unit 810, 8/F, 212 Texaco Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors)

To put forward proposals at a general meeting, the shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed
contact information to the Company’s principal place of business
stated above.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHS

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report EEHMRARE FHMERAFENLEZVERE -
together with the audited financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FEXK

The principal activity of Company is investment holding and the  ARABW T EEHKAIRELEN - MEWB RS
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the = F B K RIE R G A BT ERERMEE15
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW E e

A fair review of the Group’s business and its outlook are set out in ~ AEB¥ KL HATSHATFOEHEN T EBRE &
the sections of Chairlady’s Statement and Management Discussion EIEEilwm@Enir—4& - B T T BEREEIE
and Analysis. Certain financial key performance indicators are SR BHE —55 - Rz A IS RER M FE38 Frflt
provided in the section of Financial Summary. Save as disclosed in &4 BEREARNEBE T EE AT B EFER
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group has no  ARINEZE4F -

material important event affecting the Company that have occurred

since the end of the Year.

The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies  ANEEESFABER] - EHRRRESRBEE
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures I ([B5 KBS0 ) TEBENBENR XS
Ordinance (the “SFO") for the disclosure of information and corporate  AEIRTE ° ANEE INESTEMIED A BERA
governance. The Group also complies with the requirements of &£E({EEFFEBE L2 &M o

Employment Ordinance and ordinances relating to occupational

safety for the interest of employees of the Group.

The Group respects the environment and is committed to minimising {EAES —BHeET0E  AEFESRET
its carbon footprint as a socially responsible enterprise. Carbon  HARIKREW - IEFHES BB LEEE
footprint is defined as the total amount of direct and indirect K8 = R 2 (GHGS) 2 & - A — S (LHR (CO) HE
emissions of Green House Gases (GHGS) expressed in terms of the HMEEABMATR - REBEENBEEEEY
equivalent amount of Carbon Dioxide of (CO,) emission. Non-  FEEFEEEAR - M AEAELSEDE - AR
hazardous wastes produced from the Group mainly consist of used — {K#fix R FMIRBFE  NREBME L TITE
paper such as office papers and marketing materials. To minimise A3 A4 -

the impact on carbon footprint and the environment, the Group

implements the following practices to use paper efficiently:

e Duplex printing is set as the default mode for most network o  BAZDPEREDFEIER L@ R
printers;

o Employees are reminded to practice photocopying wisely; 1202 B T/ ENIFERERBA S FE I

. Employees are encouraged to use both sides of paper; . HEE TFERAAROME

o Paper is separated from other waste for easier recycling; and 1ok B E AL REIE M D PR AT E RN : &

. Boxes and trays are placed beside photocopiers as containers FHREHERBRERKESEAR
to collect single-sided paper for reuse purpose. LM,\TJ‘E*E&E%
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Electricity consumption is identified as having an adverse impact on
the environment and natural resources. A typical commercial
building uses more energy for lighting than for other electric
equipment. The Group is determined to reduce energy consumption
and implement conservation practices to reduce the effect of carbon
footprint. Air conditioning and light zone arrangements reduce
unnecessary electricity usage; employees enforce good practices in
maintenance of lighting and electric equipment to ensure they are
kept in good and proper condition to maximise efficiency.

Key Risk Factors

The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group.

Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is also subject to government
policy, relevant regulations and guidelines established by the
regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with the rules and
requirements may lead to penalties, amendments or suspension of
the business operation by the authorities. The Group closely
monitors changes in government policies, regulations and markets
as well as conducting studies to assess the impact of such changes.
As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied with all related laws and regulations in all material aspects
which may have significant impact on the Group during the Year.

Third-Party Risks

The Group has been relying on third-party service providers in parts
of business to improve performance and efficiency of the Group.
While gaining the benefits from external service providers, the
management realises that such operational dependency may pose a
threat of vulnerability to unexpected poor or lapses in service
including reputation damage, business disruption and monetary
losses. To address such uncertainties, the Group engages only
reputed third-party providers and closely monitors their
performance.
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit packages career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual needs.
The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all employees.
No strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace accidents occurred
during the Year.

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to
meet our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner. The
departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just manner.
The Group's requirements and standards are also well-
communicated to suppliers before the commencement of a project.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through
various means and channels, including usage of market research to
understand customer trends and needs and regular analyse on
customer feedback. The Group also conducts comprehensive tests
and checks to ensure that only quality products and services are
offered to the customers.

RESULTS & DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or Ioss on page 67. Other movements in reserves
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 71.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Year (2019: Nil).
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute
dividends to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
to allow Shareholders to share the Company'’s profits and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to
the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final
dividend will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders. In
proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group’s financial results, the general financial
condition of the Group, the Group’s current and future operations,
the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio, return on equity and
the relevant financial covenants, liquidity position and capital
requirement of the Group, surplus received from the Company’s
subsidiaries and any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.
The Company’s ability to pay dividends is also subject to the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and all relevant applicable
laws, rules and regulations in the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong and
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. The
Company does not have any pre-determined distribution ratio. The
Group’s dividend distribution record in the past may not be used as
a reference or basis to determine the amount of dividends that may
be declared or paid by the Company in the future.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of this
annual report.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 27(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s aggregate amounts of
reserves available for distribution were approximately
RMB634,832,000 (2019: RMB643,882,000), of which nil (2019: Nil) has
been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company was
incorporated.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment are set out in note 11
to the consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES

Details of the Group’s debentures are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the Group's five largest customers accounted for
approximately 39.1% (2019: 45.8%) of the Group’s total revenue and
the Group’s largest customer for the year accounted for
approximately 10.3% (2019: 17.6%) of the Group's total revenue. The
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 58.1%
(2019: 51.0%) of the Group's total purchases, while the largest
supplier for the year accounted for approximately 20.1% (2019:
13.2%) of the Group's total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates or any of the shareholders of the
Company who owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers
or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
Throughout the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Xie Qingmei
Mr. Wu Zheyan

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Wu Dongping (retired on 29 May 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Prof. Jin Zhongwei
Prof. Su Wengiang

A description of the Directors is set out in the section headed “Board of

Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

Indemnity of Directors

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the

Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein or
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, will be as follows:

Interest in shares

ESERERTHRAERRKRND - HE
R RESFHERERKXE

RZZ_ZTFE+_A=+—RH EFHARQEH
BITBRABEARRIRERE ZE (TR RLES
FEREARGIZEXVER) AR5 - 1R D R ESH
BERBEESNPEERNEXVEET7 REIDH
ARG ARR A R E R LR (BERE
5 R BB MO8 B 6O 4 B (E SR A T
ﬁE’\Jr&m&ME) SRR 8 5 M B 1% 5 352
1678 50 A R& 16 P st 8 50 I AR 1% 7T 48 RIIBR 8% 10
FrEl E BT AEREITESXHNRETAE
MERRNTI R MER AR

Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
RN
EENRE S EatyE :did 8 B (%)
Mr. Wu Zheyan Interest in controlled corporation/ 89,929,482 11.47%
REERE Long position (Note)
2HEBE SR R (M)
Beneficial owner/Long position 2,200,588 0.28%
EnBAN R
Ms. Xie Qingmei Beneficial owner/Long position 1,926,676 0.25%
SEFEL L EnBAN R

Note: Mr. Wu Zheyan is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Green Seas
Capital Limited, his wholly-owned company.

At -

REEREWHR BN E 2 E %A K 2 7Green Seas
Capital Limited #578 8RR {5 P #E B #E 4 o
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had interests or in short positions in the shares,
underlying shares of equity derivatives or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation defined under the SFO
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he is taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein or which will be required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or the Controlling Shareholders (as defined below) of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or their respective close associates has any
competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company), who had interests or short
positions in the shares or the underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, were as follows:

Interest in shares

FERRNREAQXTRG RAEERSG
m”gﬁﬁ&JKF

RZZ2ZFF+_A=+—8" TI AL
ERUARAEMITHAEL) RAR ARG A8
RGO FHEBIRIEZFRBAEEMIEXVHE2R
EINHBENATEENERIOAR - HIREF
% K HAE 165170 56 336 1678 70 A\ % 6 AT il & 50 fift &Y

Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
SRR BN
%21 Ha S EaLE :did 8 B (%)
Green Seas Capital Limited Beneficial owner/Long position (Note 1) 89,929,482 11.47%
E=mEAN e (1)
Hong Kong Run De Beneficial owner/Long position (Note 2) 86,000,000 10.97%
Holdings Limited BE=mBmEAN e (HE2)
HEREBFERARA
BREAEABMECIERAR Interest in controlled corporation/ 86,000,000 10.97%
Long position (Note 2)
St EEO R TE (MiE2)
Mr. Lin Jian Interest in controlled corporation/ 86,000,000 10.97%
Long position (Note 2)
N e SEtlEENERTE (IE2)
Hong Kong Guoyuan Group Beneficial owner/Long position (Note 3) 140,350,000 17.91%
Capital Holdings Limited BE=mmEAN e (HE3)
%-5/%.75 & RE AR
BRA
PRAEYERERAR

—ROTEFR
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)

SRR

£5 v 1] 53 ERKE 2070 8| B (%)

LIBFI B TSR B IER Interest in controlled corporation/ 140,350,000 17.91%
BRAA Long position (Note 3)

ZESEENER 1T E (FE3)

Mr. Wang Xin Interest in controlled corporation/ 140,350,000 17.91%
Long position (Note 3)

SERTSEE SEtlEEmO R TE (M 3)

Mr. Han Jin Beneficial owner/Long position 61,883,860 7.88%

BoitkE EnBEEAN TR

Ms. Han Hong Beneficial owner/Long position 64,152,860 8.19%

BRIt EmBEEAN TR

Notes: Hiat -

1. The entire issued share capital of Green Seas Capital Limited is legally and 1. Green Seas Capital Limited ) & Z B TR AR RE =
beneficially owned by Mr. Wu Zheyan, who is deemed to be interested in the SEGERERER  REESLERR B Green Seas
Shares held by Green Seas Capital Limited. Capital Limited #5 BORR ) A #E 5w

2. The entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Run De Holdings Limited is legally 2. BEREBEERAERARNEMBEBRITRABEEAEA
and beneficially owned by #& B X & A 1k T AR A & The 98% issued METHERATAERERES  REAEAMETAE
share capital of & K & A 1t T A R A &l is legally and beneficially IR A 98% B B AT A Ak S A A E R E R IR
owned by Mr. Lin Jian, who is deemed to be interested in the shares held by MW BN EBBEERERARFENRNF
Hong Kong Run De Holdings Limited. HEHER °

3. The entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Guoyuan Group Capital Holdings 3. BERETEESRIEREGRAANEHEHITRAR L
Limited is legally and beneficially owned by _t /&5 2) T ¥ R 1R AR A BRI ILERBERERATAERERES - LEH
A). The 98% issued share capital of _E /8 7 B) T 3R EIER AR A A is BT £ EERER D A# 98% B B TA AR BT 375
legally and beneficially owned by Mr. Wang Xin, who is deemed to be interested BERERES  IHEERRAREBETEEER
in the shares held by Hong Kong Guoyuan Group Capital Holdings Limited. ERARARFEORNDPHEEEE -

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any person, B EX#EEEIN RZZE_TF+-_A=+—

other than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
"Directors’ and chief executive's interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above, who had an
interest or short positions in the shares or underlying shares that
were required to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or recorded pursuant to Section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO as of 31 December 2020.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed by all the shareholders on 15 June
2012, the Company has conditionally adopted the share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of recognising
and acknowledging the contributions the eligible participants had or
may have made to the Group. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to the Directors
(including executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors), the directors of the
Company’s subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other
persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group. The Directors were authorised to grant
options to subscribe for shares of the Company and to allot, issue
and deal with the ordinary shares pursuant to the exercise of options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and to take all such steps
as may be necessary and/or desirable to implement and give effect
to the Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and under any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in
issue immediately following completion of the Global Offering (as
defined in the Company’s prospectus dated 25 June 2012), being
100,000,000 shares, excluding any shares that may be issued under
the options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme (or any other share option schemes of the
Company), unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.
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Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted to an
eligible participant under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue of
the Company within any 12-month period. Any grant of options to a
Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any of their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) is required to be approved by our
independent non-executive Directors. Unless otherwise approved by
the shareholders of the Company in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules, the number
of shares that may be granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive Director or their respective associates
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue, having an aggregate
value in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised, and the period during which an option may be
exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion,
however, no options shall be exercised 10 years after they have
been granted. The subscription price of a share in respect of a
particular option shall be not less than the highest of (a) the official
closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange; (b) the average official closing price of the shares on the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal
value of a share. The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the
date it is adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10
years from that date.

From the date that the Share Option Scheme became effective and
unconditional and up to the date of this annual report, no share
options were granted under the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of ordinary
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
78,375,040, representing 10% of the issued shares of the Company.
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Save as the Share Option Scheme and share award scheme as
disclosed in this report, at no time during the Year was the Company,
its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or and
other body corporate.

Other than the Share Option Scheme and share award scheme as
disclosed in this report, no equity-linked agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares, or that require the Company to
enter into any agreement that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares, here entered into by the Company during the Year or
subsisted at the end of the Year.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company, pursuant to a resolution passed on 14 December
2020, adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”)
for the purpose of (i) to align interests of eligible persons, being the
employees, directors, officers, consultants or advisors of any
member of the Group, with those of the Group through ownership of
ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”), dividends and other
distribution paid on Shares and/or increase in value of the Shares;
and (ii) to encourage and retain eligible persons to make
contributions to the long-term growth and profits of the Group.

The aggregate number of shares to be made pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme (the “Award Shares”) will not exceed 20% of the total
number of issued Shares of 741,200,400 Shares. The aggregate
number of Award Shares which may be awarded to a selected
person under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 2% of the
total number of issued Shares as at the adoption date of the Share
Award Scheme.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the board
of directors, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a term of 10 years commencing from the adoption date.

The Award Shares, once issued, will rank equal to all other issued
Shares at that time and are not subject to any vesting condition. The
selected persons will therefore have the right to receive dividends,
dispose of and/or exercise the rights of the Award Shares as per his/
her own wishes once the Award Shares were issued.
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On 14 December 2020, a total of 42,550,000 Award Shares were
issued to 12 eligible persons (the “Selected Persons”). The Award
Shares were settled by way of issue and allotment of new Shares on
30 December 2020 pursuant to the general mandate. The 42,550,000
Award Shares represented approximately 5.74% of the total number
of issued Shares and approximately 5.43% of the total number of
Shares in issue as enlarged by the issue and allotment of the Award
Shares. The Selected Persons are (i) senior and middle management
of the Group and (i) staffs who served the Group for a long period of
time.

The 42,550,000 Award Shares had neither any vesting period nor
condition, accordingly, the fair value of 42,550,000 Award Shares
were determined by the closing market price of the Company on 30
December 2020, of which, expenses of HK$6,808,000 (equivalent to
RMB5,777,000) were recognised as expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2020 and the date of approval of these financial
statements, the Company had 105,690,080 Award Shares available
for awarding to eligible persons under the Share Award Scheme,
which represented approximately 13.49% of the issued Shares as at
the respective dates.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchase, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules requires that at least 25% of an
issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times be held by the
public. Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained sufficiency of public float at all times during the Year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, there is no transaction of the Group constituted
non-exempt continuing connected transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules (2019: Nil).

* For identification purpose only
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business are provided under note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements, and none of which constitutes a
non-exempt connected transaction as defined under the Listing
Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of
Non-Competition”) with Mr. Wu Zheyan and Green Seas Capital
Limited (collectively referred to as the “Controlling Shareholders”) on
15 June 2012 so as to better safeguard the Group from any potential
competition and to formalise the principles for the management of
potential conflicts between them and to enhance our corporate
governance in connection with the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed compliance
by the Controlling Shareholders and confirm that based on
confirmations and information provided by each of the Controlling
Shareholders, they were in compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition during the Year.

The independent non-executive Directors were not required to
review any matter in relation to compliance and enforcement of the
Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No management contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of any business of
the Group were entered into or existed during the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group supported a wide variety of charitable
activities in Hong Kong and the PRC. Donations of approximately
RMB205,000 (2019: RMB253,000) were made by the Group to various
charitable organisations.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware that any holders of securities of the
Company are entitled to any tax relief or exemption by reason of
their holding of such securities.
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AUDITOR

BDO Limited resigned as auditor of the Company on 5 November
2020 and Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited has been appointed as the
auditor of the Company on 5 November 2020. There have been no
other changes in auditor during the preceding three years.

Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the reappointment
of Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Xie Qingmei
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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Board of Directors and Senior Management
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Biographies of each member of the board of directors and senior
management team of the Company during the Year and/or as at the
date of this report are set out below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wu Zheyan (Mr. Wu), aged 41, is an executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Wu was appointed as a
Director on 17 October 2011. He joined Fujian Zhangping Kimura
Forestry Products Co. Ltd (“Zhangping Kimura”) as a workshop
director since 1997 and obtained knowledge and experiences in the
timber products industry including the production process, research
and development works and the invention process of new timber
products. Mr. Wu became the general manager in May 2000 and the
director and legal representative of Zhangping Kimura in January
2006.

Mr. Wu graduated from Sichuan University in June 2009 with a
Diploma in business administration (Distance education). Mr. Wu is
the visiting professor of Central South University of Forestry and
Technology and Fujian Agriculture and Forestry University.

Xie Qingmei (Ms. Xie), aged 53, was appointed as an executive
Director on 15 June 2012 and as the Chairlady on 23 May 2016. Ms.
Xie is primarily responsible for procurement matters in respect of the
Group. She has over 20 years of experience in corporate
management and procurement. Ms. Xie joined the Group in 1999,
and she has been a deputy general manager of Zhangping Kimura
since 2001 and a director of Zhangping Kimura since 2006. Ms. Xie
was in charge of the sales department of Zhangping Kimura as well
as supervising procurement from June 1999 to December 2000, and
has been running the procurement department of Zhangping Kimura
since 2003.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Hin Chi (Mr. Lam), aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 15 June
2012. Mr. Lam is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and associates member of The Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants, and The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, respectively. Mr. Lam graduated
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Professional
Diploma in Management Accountancy and a Bachelor of Arts degree
(Honours) in Accountancy. Mr. Lam has over 30 years of experience
in finance, audit and accounting. Mr. Lam was a senior personnel of
a number of companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Lam is currently an executive director of Qianhai Health Holdings
Limited (stock code: 911) and an independent non-executive director
of VSTECS Holdings Limited (stock code: 856), which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Professor Jin Zhongwei (Professor Jin), aged 83, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 15 June 2012. He is an expert in wood preservation with over
40 years of experience in wood preservation. Professor Jin graduated
from Nanjing Forestry College in 1961 and majored in forestry
products chemical processing. He studied wood preservation and
modification technologies in the United States as a government-
appointed scholar from 1981 to 1983, and was a visiting scholar at
Oregon State University and Mississippi State University from 1994 to
1995 respectively.
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Professor Su Wengqiang (Professor Su), aged 65, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 15 June 2012. Professor Su has more than 30 years of
experience in the research of forestry and timber products. Professor
Su was awarded as Model Member of the Communist Party (E75+
E# 8) from 2006 to 2007, and was appointed as various positions in
timber industry, e.g., council member of Standing Committee of the
Heilongjiang Province Chemistry Society (B3I &4t TE&EES) (in
December 2004), committee member of Wood Science Institute of
the Chinese Society of Forestry (REIMEEAMRIEDE) (in April
2010), member of Board of Experts of Standardisation Committee of
China Timber and Wood Products Distribution Association Wood
Preservation Committee (FEIAM EAR BB BEAMIIREXEZE
YHERIEEEZ B ) (in December 2009), member of Board of Experts
Committee of Standardisation Committee of China Wood
Preservation Industry Association (PEIAMRETLEHCEREED)
(in October 2011), committee member of the Wood Preservation
Research Committee of the Wood Science Institute of the Chinese
Society of Forestry (FEIMEBEAMBIZD GAMRERTEELZESR) (in
April 2007) and editor of editorial committee of Biomass Chemical
Engineering published by Institute of Chemical Industry of Forest
Products (FEIMERIZHEGMENETERRM (EPELET
2) ) (in December 2010). Professor Su graduated from Northeast
Forestry University in July 1982, major in professional chemical
processing of forestry products (#RE{LZ2 I T Ti25 ), and obtained
a Doctorate Degree in December 2008.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chen Tianfu (Mr. Chen), aged 55, is the chief financial officer of
our Group. Since joining our Group in 2009, Mr. Chen has been
responsible for our Group’s accounting and financial management
affairs. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen was in charge of the
financial departments of Jiangxi Sanhua Real Estate Co. Ltd. (IFa=
#EE X B AT) and Fujian Dufeng Sugar Factory (1% € IEFERR)
respectively. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of experience in corporate
financial management and possesses the qualifications of an
accountant in the PRC. Mr. Chen graduated from Fujian Quanzhou
Supply and Sales School (f@#%& RN EHER) in 1986 majoring in
financial accounting with a secondary vocational school diploma.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lee Kin Yee (Ms. Lee), aged 37, was appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on 6 July 2018. Ms. Lee is a
director of Modern Assurance And Business Services Limited and
she holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from
Lingnan University. She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has over 10 years of experience in
the field of accounting, auditing and company secretarial services.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
& Az B R R

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA ENVIRONMENTAL
TECHNOLOGY AND BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on
pages 67 to 224, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) promulgated by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BN ZERN RS (&)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significant in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

Ja& N AZ BRD RS (|)

Key Audit Matter
RBERER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EENEBRMABREZER

(i)
(i) P%E - BERR G EFE

Reference is made to notes 2 and 3 to the consolidated
financial statements for the Directors’ disclosures of the
related accounting policies, judgements and estimates,
respectively, and note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements for further information.

B2 AVBRERNI2RIBUEESAIBEZHE ST
SR~ PR RAh Gt RER S TSR MI T 11 BRAE— L E R

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment was approximately RMB450,260,000 as at 31
December 2020, which was principally relating to the
segment of manufacturing and sales of wooden products.
RZZEZZFFF+-_A=+—H  BEENOYE - KERERK
M AR E B 405 AR 450,260,00070 © E B MBS R EEARE
mOEER -

As detailed in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements, (i) during the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group provided for impairment loss on the construction
in progress amounting to approximately RMB24,641,000 due
to the suspension of the construction in progress in relation
to the new manufacturing complex; and (ii) no impairment
was provided for the remaining property, plant and
equipment during the year.

WG E M BREMTNMAEFR VB2 _2F+=H
=T—HRIEFE - EXEEREEIRELREESE €8
AR/ ANEEE24,641,0007C - THERFTEEGERERNEETL
BEEME: R FARERATODE  BEKEHEEDR
B -

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment

Our procedures in relation to management's impairment
assessment of the property, plant and equipment
included:

EERERELME - BERRERENENIETERE

Discussing with management and the independent
professional valuer to understand the basis of
valuation approach and methodology and the future
plan of the construction in progress,
HERERBIHEENGLEMNG  THREBERER
FREERERETIROARRETE

Challenging the management and the independent
professional valuer on the adoption of the
assumptions and estimations in the valuation;

MR AR REREAENERERBE L FEM
BAD

Evaluating the independence, professionalism and
the accuracy of the work performed by the
independent professional valuer;

B BEAEMET TIENBL M BEERE
T
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
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Key Audit Matter
RBERER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EENERNAREZER

(i) Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(i) W% BB RREEFG(HE)

For the purpose of assessing the recoverable amount of the
property, plant and equipment, the directors (the
“Directors”) performed an assessment (the “Impairment
Assessment”) with reference to certain valuations prepared
by an independent professional valuer to determine the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal ("FV Less Cost of Disposal”) and value in use
("VIU"), which required significant judgement to determine
the key assumptions. The FV Less Cost of Disposal was
determined by the cost approach method, with key
assumptions adopted in the underlying property, plant and
equipment including (i) market price of the land in similar
location; (ii) price index; (i) scrap value; and (iv) economic
useful life of each of property, plant and equipment. VIU was
determined by the present value of future cash flows, with
key assumptions were adopted including (i) turnover growth
rate; (ii) gross profit margin; (iii) terminal growth rate; (iv)
discount rate; and (v) future plan and usage of the
construction in progress. Such assumptions and valuation
technigue involves significant unobservable inputs.
REHEME - BERERFHEAIWESE - ERARESR(ESE])
E2EFIHEEGEMRG S T AELETE (DRER
) UEEREeE A FEREERAN(AFERLE
ERADEGERAEE(FREEDMEZRSE)  EFE
RAET A E £ EMRE - D FERDERATHIREARE - 1HH
M- BENIREMRBZEEMRKET - S0 ALHIEN
TS ER () EREE (NEREE: RVWVDE - BE
BEEBERED EABERRRRERENFREE
FORAMNEE/EBEE  ()VEEEERE () EFE (i) 4
I RE  (VARE k(v ELI&E’J*X +¥IJ&@EﬁHI
UL ERE KL ERMNS KRBT AR EA S -

For this reason, we identified the impairment assessment of
the property, plant and equipment as a key audit matter.
Eit - TFHANE - WE - BRERREBEZRET G ABRE
S

Checking with the comparable data through internal
or external sources, the relevance of the recent
market price of the land in similar locations and
price index;

NN ERIZE BRI 2 T3 RIEF
Z ﬁﬁﬁmﬂ RABBIREL

Evaluating the reasonableness and appropriateness
of the key assumptions adopted, including (i) scrap
value and (ii) economic useful life of each of the
property, plant and machinery items;
FHEHAERBRRNEGEEREE N - BEOERE
BRI EWE  BERZEHER 2 LBECASS

Assessing the historical accuracy and reasonableness
in the discounted cash flow forecasts and sought
appropriate evidence for the major assumptions,
including (i) turnover growth rate; (i) gross profit
margin; (i) terminal growth rate; and (iv) discount
rate; and

SRR SR ETHAMNELERYE - TAFERR
SREENER ZSIZRJ[EHF  ((FXTER
(i) BFER () RIRIERE - K (v) EEEET K

Recalculating the amount of the impairment on the
property, plant and equipment and assessing the
sufficiency of the impairment as at 31 December
2020.

BHFEYE  BERIBAORESRE W ERZ
ZoTFE+ A=+ —HRENTEE -

RREYIERERA T
ZECTEFR

59



60

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
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Key Audit Matter
RBERER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EENERMABREZER

(ii) Allowance for impairment of the trade receivables

(ii) BBEWK IR R E R E

Reference is made to notes 2 and 3 to the consolidated
financial statements for the Directors’ disclosures of the
related accounting policies, judgements and estimates,
respectively, and note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements for further information.
F2HRANBRENT2RIBHEEE S RIHE 2 HERS
SRR - FIET AT R AR MR 18 B B — P& -

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables was
approximately RMB55,489,000 (net of impairment of
approximately RMB22,339,000) as at 31 December 2020.

RZZEZZF+ZA=+—0H  A5ENESEWRFIENRE
B4 = AR EE55,489,000 7T (FIBR R E LA R #22,339,0007T) ©

During the year, the Group has provided an allowance for
impairment of trade receivables of approximately
RMB3,068,000.

R - E5ERE S EWFIERE R EEL A RES3,068,000

JC °

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment
of the allowance for impairment of the trade receivables
included:

EENERBHESRRFEZ RERE 2 ENETE

EC

Discussing with management and the independent
professional valuer to understand the basis of
valuation approach and methodology;
HERERBIHEEGEMN R TREERERA
AEVELE

Challenging the management and the independent
professional valuer on the adoption of the
assumptions and estimates in the valuation;

MR ERANRERGEAEAETRERBE L EEM
ERD

Evaluating the independence, professionalism and
the accuracy of the work performed by the
independent professional valuer;

B BEAEMET TIENBL M BEERE
T
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
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Key Audit Matter
RBERER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EENERNAREZER

(ii) Allowance for impairment of the trade receivables (Continued)

(ii) B 5 5T i (EHE 0 (#8)

For the purpose of assessing the expected credit losses
("ECL"), the Directors engaged an independent professional
valuer to perform a valuation (the "ECL on Trade Receivables
Valuation”) regarding ECL on trade receivables based on the
Directors’ assumptions which required significant judgement
to determine the key assumptions underlying the ECL on
Trade Receivables Valuation, including (i) estimated credit
loss rates (“CLR") for each category of trade receivables; (i)
ageing of the trade receivables; (iii) overdue balances; (iv)
information regarding the ability and intent of the debtor to
pay and historical data on default rates; and (iv) shared
credit risk characteristics of trade receivables groups and
market conditions. The Group calibrates the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information.

HAEEREEER((BREEREDME  E5ERETE
¥ HEMBEESFNHRRYERE SHRENTEREEBIEET
HE(MHEERESRENTEREEBE]  HREFELEX
FIER 7 85 1 T A 70 FE M AR SRET 1EE’J%EHE1:.%J§5TEWI£1EJ*“ :
PREN)SHESRKFEGEEEEX(EEBEX]))

E 5 REUGRIBRIRES (i) B BRAL R (iv)*ﬁ%%%i‘%/\s'zﬁaz
LEEBMERANREORNBTREE RV EZEIFIEMAT
WERGEERBREFR - BERESREERBEUIZAIEEERA
BRBTEEEBRLER -

For this reason, we identified the allowance for ECL of trade
receivables as a key audit matter.
BN ERRE - EEHFIEKRE S
PSR EIA -

REZBMEERRRBR

Evaluating the reasonableness and appropriateness
of the ECL on Trade Receivable Valuation and the
assumptions, information and parameters used in
the model, including the CLR and forward-looking
factors;

FEEWE SFEGEEREEFBNHERER AR
ZEAPTANRS - B K2R (BEEEBEBEERA
EHERZ) SR REEME

Checking the information used by management to
develop the provision matrix including ageing
analysis of trade receivables, on a sample basis, by
comparing individual items in the analysis with the
relevant sales invoices,

HEREEEEMAER - UHERERKE SHRIE
BRI R EERE - AR ABTHHEARIEER
BB E R REITIR

Checking settlement from customers subsequent to
the year end relating to the trade receivables as at
31 December 2020 on a sample basis; and
HMEREREFEREBER T _EF+ - A=+—
HOWEWESFIENREFEEeRE &

Recalculating the allowance for ECL of the trade
receivables, if any, and assessing the sufficiency of
the allowance as at 31 December 2020.
EHAEEWE S RENEREEBEREE(E) -
WEHER T ZZ ¢+ A=+—RA#ENFTRM’ -

FREMERERDF
ZRCTFFER
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
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Key Audit Matter
RBERER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EENERMAREZEER

(iii) Provision for inventories
(iii) FERE

Reference is made to notes 2 and 3 to the consolidated

financial statements for the Directors’ disclosures of the

related accounting policies, judgements and estimates,

respectively, and note 17 to the consolidated financial

statements for further information.

uﬁ SEREVBHREMFI2RINFIEHESS B E 2 A
SEIBUR - HIE RS R A SRR 17 B — &R -

The carrying amount of the Group’s inventories was
approximately RMB115,134,000 (net of provision for
RMB13,998,000 (the “Provision for Inventories”)) as at 31
December 2020.

RZZBZTFF+-_A=+—H BEENFERAENORA
R 115,134,000 (F1Bx 7 & # 8 A R % 13,998,000 7T ([ 7 & #
#1)) e

During the year, the Group has written back inventories of
approximately RMB2,910,000.
RER - NEBEERFELH AR 2,910,0007T °

For the purpose of assessing the Provision for Inventories,
the Directors performed an assessment (the “Inventories
Assessment”) including the provision for obsolete or slow
moving inventories at each period end which required
significant judgement to determine the Provision for
Inventories, including (i) estimated selling prices less costs
to sell; (i) condition of products; (iii) ageing of inventories;
and (iv) latest selling price.

RAEFERENS EFETITHR(EENR])  2ERSES
EEAR PR EE S B S TF EVE L B ﬁﬁ?zmﬁ SR ER 2D
BRAE ’F}% VEEFEEREEKA : (NEMKR : (I)VFE
BRER X (V) B HAE(E -

For this reason, we identified the Provision for Inventories
asa key audit matter.
R Bt CEEHATERERABREZEER

Our procedures in relation to management’s
determination of Provision for Inventories included:
EENEEEET T ERBETNIERBIE

Discussing with management to understand the
basis of the Provision for Inventories;
MEBES R - N THREFERENKE

Challenging the management on the adoption of the
assumptions and estimates in the Inventories
Assessment;

MR FEMHRANRE LA ERAETERE
Identifying any old or damaged inventories during
the physical inventory count;
ETEYTERBGERERIBETE

Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the
ageing profile of inventory items by checking to the
underlying procurement information and invoices,
FRAMEFT RS EAREENNMBEZRAHAFEE
B AREC Y TR

Testing, on a sample basis, the net realisable value
of selected inventory items, by comparing the
carrying amount of the inventory items against their
selling prices subsequent to the year end or closest
to year end; and
RRAMEAFREBMETS
éia—&LiﬂiETEﬁ%F
FEEITRIR

518 B Eﬁﬁéﬁ{ﬁéﬁiﬁﬁ’\ﬁﬂf
HATERFERE MR &

Recalculating the Provision for Inventories and
assessing its sufficiency as at 31 December 2020.
BENHERERE UAMR_ZT_TF+_H
=+—HBERZM%E-

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020



Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Group’s annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs promulgated by IASB and the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

Ja& N AZ BRD RS (|)

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Chan Yuk Tong.

Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Yuk Tong
Practising Certificate No. P03723

Hong Kong
31 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

A E@mK

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ —ZT—-F

(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AAREZ1R)

FToA=t—ALER

2020 2019
—EEHF T—NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Kt et AR®TT ARBT T
Revenue kA 4 492,589 694,052
Cost of sales SHEE PR 6(c) (488,151) (685,428)
Gross profit E£7 4,438 8,624
Other revenue A 5(a) 17,626 19,856
Other net loss HMESEFRE 5(b) (36,225) (4,700)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE kDA (21,721) (25,565)
Administrative expenses TR (57,651) (48,330)
Gain on bargain purchase EAElE G 25 697 -
Expected credit loss on financial assets ¢RI &EMTEEEEE 18 (3,933) (12,774)
Loss from operations BEBR (96,769) (62,889)
Finance costs & A 6(a) (162) (1,815)
Share of (losses)/profits of associates DEEE AT (EHE) %A (287) 401
Loss hefore tax BRIRBIEIR 6 (97,218) (64,303)
Income tax credit/(expense) EBER, (Fx) 7(@) 4,119 (168)
Loss for the year FAEBE (93,099) (64,471)
Loss per share BEREGHE
Basic and diluted (RMB) EAREE(ARE) 10 (0.128) (0.104)
The notes on pages 73 to 224 form part of these consolidated #73EBZEFE 224 BT ARG A BEHRERH —
financial statements. o o
qﬂﬂi#@}*ﬂx‘ﬁ‘ﬁﬂﬂﬁ

TECTEFR



68

Consolidated Statement of Profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeBEmkEMEEmRER

For the yearended 31December 2020 HE-_ZT-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AAR¥FIR)

2020 2019
—E-EHF T-NEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Loss for the year ] ] (93,099) (64,471)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax HEtt2mikE (MERRIE)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently HiZrlae B T
to profit or l0ss: BmmEAe
Exchange differences on translation of REGINEE I B IRE
financial statements of foreign operations EXMEREEE 2,262 (258)
Itemn that will not be reclassified subsequently HETSEH IEE
to profit or loss: Bzmh)EE -
Equity investment designated at fair value BEBEATFETAEM
through other comprehensive income: 2HERWREMRARE
— Changes in fair value — REEEY (648) (219)
— Income tax effect —FTEREE 97 33
Other comprehensive income FREM2ERS
for the year, net of tax (fRRME) 1,711 (444)
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2EKSME (91,388) (64,915)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ARE WIS

At 31 December 2020 R=ZE—
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AAREZ1R)

TE+=A=1—H

2020 2019
- Jmk- <33 E—NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
KiaF AR®TT ARBTT
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment b E N 11 450,260 495,794
Non-current deposits for acquisitions WHEMZ B KRR
of property, plant and equipment JERNER IR & 12 1,907 11,074
Interests in associates B A AR = 13 - 15,666
Other financial assets at fair value BAFEFAEMEEKEN
through other comprehensive income HhESREE 14 2,400 3,048
Deferred tax assets EERIBEESE 16 1,025 890
455,592 526,472 7
Current assets mENEE
Inventories ER 17 115,134 225,406
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b e Gk E 18 134,800 144,830
Other financial assets at fair value BAFEFABEZ
through profit or loss Hibh s m&E 14 29,174 791
Derivatives financial instruments PTEEmMIA 19 1,619 310
Pledged deposits [z iEE 20 4,590 7,612
Cash and cash equivalents RERBREEED 21(a) 137,969 76,024
423286 454,973
Current liabilities wEHAR
Trade and other payables B 5N E e R IE 22 37,132 48,352
Derivatives financial instruments TESmT A 19 157 699
Lease liabilities HEaE 23 23 187
Tax payables FEf R 22,451 26,717
59,763 75,955
RREYIERERA T

ZECTEFR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
AR R (&

At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZTF+-[= + S|
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A ER¥37R)

2020 2019
—EEF —E-AF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Kzt AR¥®TT ARBTT
Net current assets WEEERE 363,523 379,018
Total assets less current liabilities #REMREBAK 819115 205,490
Non-current liabilities ERBIAME
Lease liabilities HEEE 23 53 32
Debentures &% 24 4,535 18,035
Deferred tax liabilities RILFIEEE 16 1,925 1,790
6,513 19,857
NET ASSETS BESE 812,602 885,633
EQUITY e
Share capital [N 27(b) 32,591 25,544
Reserves HE 780,011 860,089
TOTAL EQUITY ##aunm 812,602 885,633

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on W-ZE-—F=A=+—HESESIERZE

31 March 2021. 2% -
Wu Zheyan Xie Qingmei
REE WiBsE
Director Director
EE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AR EER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE_—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AAREZ1R)

Share Share Exchange Statutory Fair value Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits equity
k# KR ERGH LR NTEGE REAN #aen
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEEFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(note 27(6)  (note 27(c)) (no te 27(0 )(")) (note 27(¢ )("'))
W) (wEn) (270 (WE27en)

At 1 January 2019 AZ3-nF-R-A 25,544 677,305 14477 95,107 656 177459 950,548

Changes in equity for 2019: —S-hE#AEE:

Loss for the year EmEE - - - - - (64.471) (64.471)
Other comprenensiveincome  £RE 2 A (BHE)
for the year, net of tax - - (258) - (186) - (4d)

Total comprehensive income. 2@l 2%
for the year - - (258) - (186) (64,471) (64,915)

At31December2019and H=B-nE+-F=+-A
1 January 2020 R-E-25-B-f 25,544 677305 14219 55,107 470 112,988 885,633

Changes in equity for 2020: —S-SE#AEE:

Loss for the year EREE - - - - - (93,099) (93,099)
Other comprehensiveincome ERE t2 A (B HE)

for the year, net of tax - - 2062 - (551) - 1,711
Total comprehensive income~ ER2EIHEE

for the year - - 2062 - (557) (93,099) (91,388
Issue of new shares (note 24()) -~ kA (B 241) 5,202 7338 - - - - 12,580
Shares issued under share award 15 85+ 21247k G

scheme (note 28) (it 28) 1,805 3972 - - - - 517

7047 11,310 - - - - 18,357

At 31 December 2020 RZE-FF+-A=+-H 32,591 688,615 16,481 55,107 1) 19,889 812,602

PRMEYIERAERATE 7 /l
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
an\ Eﬁiﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE_ZT_TF+-_A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AAR¥FIR)

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Hax AR®TT ARBT T
Operating activities EEEE
Cash generated from operations REEBRERS 21(b) 90,360 129,411
Income tax (paid)/refunded (B, TREREH (50) 185
Net cash generated from BEITDMEREBE
__operating activites 90310  12959%
Investing activities BETH
Payment for the purchase of property, MESWE BEL
plant and equipment BYANE (6,602) (10,529)
Interest received 2FE 3,344 347
Decrease in pledged deposits [REEEGLER 0 3,017 10,472
Dividend income received 2R EBA 983 531
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEDE  BEMEE
plant and equipment FriS®UR - 561
Acquisition of a subsidiary U B —FEIPT B R &) 25 (1,627) -
Purchases of other financial assets BEHEMOREE 14(b) (30,007) -
Net proceeds from other financial assets — H#h$ g & EFTS 1B 40 423 -
Repayment of amount due to an associate & i — Bk & N & fE (< 3008 96 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from & ;EZE(FRA)/ e
__investing activites = BRe¥®E 0000000 (0373) 1382
Financing activities A EE
Proceeds from new bank loans HIERITE RS RIE - 87,471
Repayments of bank loans BERIRTER - (178,623)
Interest paid B E (124) (1,803)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHEARE 23 (215) (158)
Net cash used in financing activities BE;ZEFARLBHE (339) (93,113)
Net increase in cash and BeRAaSEED
cash equivalents bifiipe ] 59,598 37,865
Cash and cash equivalents BH—A—HHRER
at 1 January BeSEY 76,024 38,000
Effect of foreigh exchange EFSmHnvE
rate changes 2,347 159
Cash and cash equivalents ®»+=-BA=+—HHK
at 31 December ReRRSSED 21(a) 137,969 76,024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T E BT ISERR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 17 October 2011 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 6 July 2012. The registered
office of the Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and the principal place of business in Hong Kong is located at
Unit 810, 8/F, 212 Texaco Road, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”). The consolidated financial statements were
authorised for issue by the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) on 31 March 2021.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

—  Manufacturing and sales of wooden products

— Retail sales of outdoor wooden products

— Manufacturing and sales of renewable energy products
Details of the ultimate holding company and immediate holding

company of the Company are set out in note 36 to the
consolidation financial statements.

—RER
PRHEMIZERBERAR(TARR DR ZE
——FT+ATEARBEREHEENFE22
BERAVE(—NAAN—FEPEIN - &Kixa

REFD ERERS MK L AEREER
NaEle KARBER-_ZE——FtABEE
BEERXFMAERAA (TR L e
X~ A FE % E E ACricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands » & &

DR AR BE EETHIE212958
E8I0E °

HE-_Z-_TF+_A=1+—BIFEHD
REBREBEANRB RENBE AR (4
BIAEEDWMBRE - HREVBERE
BARRER((EEIR=_T=—F=A
=+—HEERE-

FR - AEEREATIEER:

— HERHEEAEMR
— ZTEPIES
— HERHEBLREREM

RAB|HEERAB RERERQR 2
ERERA M EMKR ML 36 &T

TREMERERAH

B _TFEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A E B IS R R MY EE ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSsS”) (which include all
International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations)
promulgated by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB") and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand. The
measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income and other financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are stated at their fair
value (note 2(m)).

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

(BB UARKEIT)

2. EREFHE

@)

AR

BB B R REER R RS
BE(EREHLNERE ) Bt
R B TR R (TR T AR 2
A1) (EFE— RSB R ) -
ER &R ER 2R ) kR
B) UREBRAKDIREEE -
hBEAMBRENTAEEHAR
SFARATES TR LT
I BB AR R BB IC » SR BR AR
EARHBEREIIIMT ¢

MR mBEESE

WEGEMBHRRDINAREZR
WIERAESEITIT - HwmETH
BRARANFEEERE LKA
& R A EFR AR 2 E YRS
B2 BEAKRE R EMBAFEF AR
s B2 EMEREETIARFED
fR (BaE2m)) -

RIFEBRM B REED - RipEY B
WRE - EEBUAFLEZERRE
REEE  Bff - WARERZ®RS
REEVFIET - (A5t R BRER » REMET R
HERRIIREBTERMESRE
ATHEERBENEBREMARSE
it BERARESYEXREEMIR
ERMEE ;A BENREEELDHE
KR - BERERAIERRINZER
ite
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BRI T

/\\/T\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXETHBE®)
(Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated (b) MR mBEELE )

financial statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective
1 January 2020

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised IFRSS
for the first time for the current year's financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Amendments to 1AS 1 Definition of Material

and IAS 8

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised IFRSs are
described below:

ZEGHAREBRREFETUE
B - tnEFHEET AT EEE L ERT
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AR e BT Y
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BB HRRNE @

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”)

The Conceptual Framework sets out a comprehensive
set of concepts for financial reporting and standard
setting, and provides guidance for preparers of financial
statements in developing consistent accounting policies
and assistance to all parties to understand and interpret
the standards. The Conceptual Framework includes new
chapters on measurement and reporting financial
performance, new guidance on the derecognition of
assets and liabilities, and updated definitions and
recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also
clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence and
measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The
conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of
the concepts contained therein override the concepts or
requirements in any standard. The Conceptual
Framework did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (xS B#HESN » AARESF)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EREFHE®
(Continued)
(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective © FRENFE]/ ST BB B
1 January 2020 (continued) BREE — g =-F

fﬁ A—BRER E)

R \FRBHEZBSER (8
SHER])
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
& B 1% 2% MY 5T (4

;\\IT\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBEIETIN - UAREST)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXREFHBE®
(Continued)
(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective @) 7|< RANFTE] 1A 7T B R B

1 January 2020 (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of activities
and assets to be considered a business, it must include,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all of the
inputs and processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on
whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed
the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an
optional fair value concentration test to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to transactions or
other events that occurred on or after 1 January 2020.
The amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective

1 January 2020 (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address issues
affecting financial reporting in the period before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with
an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR"). The amendments
provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting
to continue during the period of uncertainty before
introduction of the alternative RFR. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional
information to investors about their hedging relationships
which are directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group
does not have any interest rate hedging relationships.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a hew definition
of material. The new definition states that information is
material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general-purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the
nature or magnitude of information, or both. The
amendments did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A E B IS R R MY EE ()

(BB UARKEIT)

2. EXREFBE®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

BB HRRNE @

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Basis of consolidation (continuea)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it categorised
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognise (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.
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2. EXREFBE®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

rE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

BB HRRNE @

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies
that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates is included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in
the associates, except where recognised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is
included as part of the Group's investments in
associates.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A E B IS R R MY EE ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments
and other financial assets at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

BB HRRNE @

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

&

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, recognises the use of
relevant observable inputs and recognises the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are recognised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

©

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment l0ss is charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

;\\IT\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5B TN - UAREEZITR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

BB HRRNE @

(Continued)
(h) Impairment of non-financial assets

(Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or 10ss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Company if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that
person'’s family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Company;,

(i has significant influence over the Company;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Related parties (continued)

or

(0)

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

0]

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group; (If the
Group is itself such a plan) and the sponsoring
employers of the post-employment benefit
plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( B 5= BTSN

BRI T

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use. The cost of self-constructed items of
property, plant and equipment includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate, where
relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the
items and restoring the site on which they are located,
and an appropriate proportion of production overheads
and borrowing costs.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXREFBE®
(Continued)
() Property, plant and equipment and () W% BELFHEALF
depreciation (continuea) Ew@
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to WE T A B ERE M8 A 5
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and B - BEREHESEER 2R

equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:
— Buildings The shorter of the unexpired term of
lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 20 years after the
date of completion

— Leasehold improvement  Over the unexpired term of lease but
no more than 5 years

— Plant and machinery 10 years

— Furniture, fittings and 5 years
equipment

— Motor vehicles 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

BB HRRNE @

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k)

Cconstruction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Cost comprises direct costs of construction and
installation during the construction period. Capitalisation
of these costs ceases and the construction in progress is
transferred to property, plant and equipment when the
asset is substantially ready for its intended use.

No depreciation is provided in respect of the construction
in progress until it is substantially completed and ready
for its intended use.

Lease

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Lease (continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

@

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Where applicable,
the cost of a right-of-use asset also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Over the lease term
Over the lease term

Land use rights
Leased properties

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
& B 1% 2% MY 5T (4

;\\IT\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBEIETIN - UAREST)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(1)

Lease (continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(o)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

BERETHE#)

(1)

EN-4¢ )
AEBEBREA(H)

(b)

HEAE
REERME A RZAERAE
EHMEEN KR ERBEE
BE- - HENKBEEENK
SEEERR)REMNEE
REN R - BURRIEE K
) & ey 7 B 10 B SRR A TR
RIBRIREERFRTODE -

R EHENRNRER
HEANSFEREERT A
SEEREEMKANNIZE
B RA EETE - RFE A
% HEBESREIE KRR
THEMIEE - HR D RIRE T
PR AR E R o oM - fi
TFHEMEHMEN - BB EF

KBS A RREENKE
BARERES  HENRE
B(HImEH TN EEHE
BARKMENKHIRES) X
BERBEENEREEIGE
B MEHFEHERENE
HfE °

qlﬂi#@?*ﬂx“ﬁ_ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
TECTEFR

93



94

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

& R R M (@)

e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
() Lease (continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets (o)

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office premise
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of

CEF-E -l

C UAABRHEZTR)

2. EXREFBE®

 HEw@
AEBEBREA(F)
THHER K BEEERE

REBEHHAZHNEHEE (A
B B R 2 BT EE
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EREERH R - BHEER
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BARREERRFAX

low-value assets are recognised as an expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of
its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. When a contract
contains lease and non-lease components, the Group D
allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
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the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on

the same basis as rental income.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to
the lessee are accounted for as finance leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
& B 1% 2% MY 5T (4

AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEEETIN  AAREST)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EREFHE®
(Continued)
(m) Investments and other financial assets (m RENEMEREE
Initial recognition and measurement NS EARTE
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as TRIBENVIZERS DB AERIZ
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value BEHERRAR - AP ERFAHMEEI

through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or 10ss,
irrespective of the business model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr5 BTSN + IAAREZITR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)
(m) Investments and other financial assets
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
& B 1% 2% MY 5T (4

AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEEETIN  AAREST)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EREFHE®
(Continued)
(m) Investments and other financial assets (m) RENMEMEBEE @)
(Continued)
Financial assets designated at fair value through BEAEZEATEFAHME2EBAN
other comprehensive income (equity investments) SREE (BRRE)
Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify RO HERE - BRARERSBIR

irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably, except when the
Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part
of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

& R R M (@)

(Continued)
(m) Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
also recognised as other income in the statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Subsequent measurement

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of
a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives
are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the
cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss.

/\\/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
& B 1% 2% MY 5T (4

AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBEIETIN - UAREST)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EREFHE®
(Continued)
(n) Derecognition of financial assets (n) BUBMERETMEE

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a "pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(0) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For
those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B RIN » AN EREEFIR)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. EXREFBE®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
& B 1% 2% MY 5T (4

;\\/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBEIETIN - UAREST)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EREFHE®
(Continued)
(0) Impairment of financial assets (continued) 0 =@EERE®
General approach (Continued) — Mk (E)
The Group considers a financial asset to be credit- FEERREMEERTIERATE

impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (2) a breach of contract such as a default or
past due event.

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at amortised
cost are subject to impairment under the general
approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(0)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, bank loans, lease liability, debentures and
derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
& B 1% 2% MY 5T (4
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBEIETIN - UAREST)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EREFHE®
(Continued)
(p) Financial liabilities (continued) p) E@maEm)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
statement of profit or l0ss. The net fair value gain or 10ss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9
are satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, except for the gains or losses
arising from the Group’s own credit risk which are
presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(P)

Financial liabilities (continuea)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

BB HRRNE @

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

)

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency
risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and
later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted
as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

v)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

v)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

v)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to
the statement of profit or loss over the expected useful
life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

BB HRRNE @

CEF-E -l

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides
the Group with a significant financial benefit for more
than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a
contract where the period between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(X) Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

0]

Sale of goods

The principal activities of the Group are
manufacturing and sales of outdoor wooden
products, retail sales of outdoor wooden products
through self-operated retail shops and
manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products.

The Group’s revenue is derived from selling goods
with revenue recognised at a point in time when
control of the goods has transferred to the
customer. This is generally when the goods are
delivered to the customer. There is limited
judgement needed in identifying the point control
passes: once physical delivery of the products to
the agreed location has occurred, the Group no
longer has physical possession, usually will have a
present right to payment (as a single payment on
delivery) and retains none of the significant risks
and rewards of the goods in question. There is
generally only one performance obligation. Invoices
are usually payable within 90 -180 days.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B RIN » AN EREEFIR)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)
(X) Revenue recognition (continued)

(v)

BB HRRNE @

Revenue from other sources
(i) Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e.,
transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme and a
share award scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

@

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants of shares under the share award scheme
during the year is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted, further details of
which are given in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or
loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

v

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBEIETIN - UAREST)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXREFHBE®
(Continued)
(aa) Employee benefits (aa) EEEH

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiary which operates
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group are required to contribute certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

(bb) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k55 R5)

BB HRRNE @

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(cc) Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum and
articles of association grant the Directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.

(dd) Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi ("RMB”), which is the Group’s functional
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

C UAABRHEZTR)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
4T E B IS R R MY E T ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXREFBE®

(Continued)

(dd) Foreign currencies (continued) (dd) SNEE ()

Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss with the exception of monetary items that are
designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the net investment
is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss. Tax charges
and credits attributable to exchange differences on those
monetary items are also recorded in other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or l0ss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(dd) Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Renminbi. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Renminbi
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of subsidiaries are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Renminbi at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
& B 1% 2% MY 5T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBIETIN - UAREST)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4T E B IS R R MY E T ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

(i) Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
Management carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatments of these transactions are
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes
in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
deductible temporary differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available,
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets, if any, are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes from the distribution of dividends from
those subsidiaries in the PRC according to the relevant
tax jurisdictions is subject to judgement on the timing of
the payment of the dividends. The estimation process is
highly based on assumptions, which are influenced by
projected future market and economic conditions and
future financing requirements of the Group, and it is not
probable that those subsidiaries will distribute dividends
in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR A IS R I A ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3.
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

(ii) Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in
making that judgement. Investment property is a property
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both.
Therefore, the Group considers whether a property
generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Certain properties comprise a
portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is vacant. In the
opinion of the Directors, the properties are property held
for future use in the production or supply of goods or
services, property held for future development and
subsequent use as owner-occupied property and
property occupied by employees (whether or not the
employees pay rent at market rates). Judgement is made
on an individual property basis to determine whether a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

BB HRRNE @

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(M

Provision for inventories

Management reviews the condition of inventories of the
Group and makes provision against obsolete and slow
moving inventory items which are identified as no longer
suitable for sale or use. Management estimates the net
realisable value for inventories based primarily on the
latest selling price and current market conditions. The
Group carries out an inventory review at the end of each
reporting period and makes provision against obsolete
and slow moving items. Management considers various
factors, including the condition of products, ageing of
inventories, estimated selling prices less cost to sell.
Management reassesses the estimation at the end of
each reporting period.

The identification of obsolete and slow moving inventory
items requires the use of judgements and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact on the carrying
values of inventories and the provision for inventories
recognised in the periods in which such estimates have
been changed. The carrying amount of inventories
carried as assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020 was
RMB115,134,000 (2019: RMB225,406,000), details of
which are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

C UABEHEZTR)

SR HE R A )

HEt TERRRR = ()

(i)

FERE
EREENARENEERR - W
MBI A T A B o 68 R bR
ERBHFEER (LA - BB
T ERE RS E R TIR A
FEGTRIRFE - AEERE AR
SRR TIFEEE - WHRE LA
WS B - BREEES AR
2 OEEQERRER  (hiEE
WIERA « TISEL A -
R EES AR PRET A
-

MR E R T B AL A R
e BEHERMEG TR ZER
BEETENERMENREZS G
BEAEECHHMBERNTERE - K
—ZE-TF+-A=+—8  REH
BARREZPIEREENTENREE
A AN R #115134,0000( — & — 1
F o NRH225,406,0007T) » #EEE
RERE WS ERMFET7

qlﬂi#@?*ﬂx“ﬁ_ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
TECTEFR

121



122

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A E B IS R R MY EE ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography,
product type, customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group'’s
historical observed credit loss rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical settlement
records, past experience and forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions
(i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate
over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults, the historical credit loss rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
credit loss rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed credit loss rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLS is
sensitive to change in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of a customer’s actual credit
loss in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 18 and
note 34(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

BB HRRNE @

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. The management reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives are based
on the Group's historical experience with similar assets
and taking into account anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair
value less costs of disposal. These calculations require
the use of judgments and estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iv)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset
values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance
and resulting future cash flow projections, it may be
necessary to take an impairment charge to consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing
rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group
“would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries
that do not enter into financing transactions) or when it
needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions
of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the
subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates
the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-
alone credit rating).

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group's
financial statements require measurement at, and/or
disclosure of, fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBIETIN - UAREST)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3. EBIHERMAF

ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) et TR Z= )

(vi) Fair value measurement (Continued) (i) AFEHEE)
The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial and rEEcREIFCHEENBEZA
non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market A ERATREE AT BREA
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs HELME EEATEFEMER
used in determining fair value measurements are 2B AEUE TV E R MEE T AR FTE
recognised into different levels based on how observable FR# ABENABREERRRTR
the inputs used in the valuation technique utilised are MER(RTFEER]D) :

(the "fair value hierarchy”):

. Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for . F—4: HREENERT S
identical items (unadjusted); ﬁﬁ%ﬁz%ﬁffﬂ(ﬂi SRR

. Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other . B B R ABIR AL
than Level 1 inputs; B AE A BRE AR

. Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from . B DAE R A ZE (A
market data). EEAMSBEBITE) o

The classification of an item into the above levels is DA EMERIAR HERFTEA

based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a HZEE AT EFEEEAEAREL

significant effect on the fair value measurement of the BESFMABIERET - SR CHEE

item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised in B RN EEAEAERER -

the period they occur.

The Group measures a number of items at fair value: AEBRATEFEZEER -

. Derivative financial instruments . PTESBMTIA

. Other financial assets at fair value through profit or . EATEFAEBRZEMES R
loss BE

. Other financial assets at fair value through other . EAFEFAEMEEKER
comprehensive income Hiv R &E

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value BRI LAIER "Wﬁ?r%éﬁ% Z 4

measurement of the items above, please refer to note AR BRERAMBHRENFE

34(f) to the consolidated financial statements. 34(f) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B8

BB HRRNE @

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(@)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the
manufacturing and sales of outdoor wooden products,
retail sales of outdoor wooden products through self-
operated retail shops and manufacturing and sales of
renewable energy products.

Revenue from contracts with customers within the scope

C UABEHEZTR)

4. WARDHEHR

@)

YA

AEBNERERREEREEPI
AEG  BREETEETEPINR
HmAREEMEEBERRER

REIRFEHREERNE1SRBER

of IFRS 15 is as follows: HEFEHWEIT
2020 2019
—E-E=F Z—NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#®TRT ARBT T
Sales of outdoor wooden products HEPIMNRELR 486,102 687,132
Retail sales of outdoor wooden products Z& 5 b A% - 29
Sales of renewable energy products  $4& B4 sRE @ 6,487 6,891
492,589 694,052
Information about major customers BETEZENER
For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue from one BE—E-—EFE+-F=+—HIF

(2019: one) customer of the Group’s sales of outdoor

- REAREHEEPIRERN—

wooden products amounted to RMB50,581,000 (2019: Z(ZE—NhF: —R)BFHRAL

RMB121,947,000), which represent 10% or more of the AR #50,581,000c(=ZF— & :

Group’s revenue. AR 121,947,00070) © (A AEE K
AHI10% A L o

PRAEYERERAR

—ROTEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A E B IS R R MY EE ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B RIN » AN EREEFIR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WARDEE2H @)
(Continued)
(@) Revenue (continued) @ YA
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEAHWE
Disaggregation of revenue information WADKHER
In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by TREXZWENS TEERRK
primary geographical markets, major products and timing AFERRE DA -

of revenue recognition.

2020
- - 2>

Manufacturing

Manufacturing  Retail sales of  and sales of

and sales of outdoor renewable

wooden wooden energy
products products products Total

£ER £ - EERME
HEARR B ARE BERFER #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TR AR®RTR AR®TR AR®TR

Primary geographical markets* EEi#E iz *
The People’s Republic of China i AREAE

(the "PRC") (place of domicile) (TR B (FFtt) 94,119 - 6,487 100,606
North America =M 137,708 - - 137,708
Europe BOM 25,337 - - 25,337
Asia Pacific (exclusive of the PRC) AR (FaiEHE) 4,387 - - 4,387
Australasia BAHFED 224,551 - - 224,551

486,102 - 6,487 492,589
Major products TEER
Wooden products R 486,102 - - 486,102
Renewable energy products BERRED - - 6,487 6,487
486,102 - 6,487 492,589

Timing of revenue recognition Iy A 2 E5M
Product transferred at a point in time 2= G 8% i £y S (RS 24 486,102 - 6,487 492,589

* The geographical location of customers is based on the location at * BPHHIBAE NERZNEYHLLE -
which the goods were delivered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4T E B IS R R MY E T ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WARDEHBE®H =)
(Continued)
(@) Revenue (continued) @@ WA
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) BEEEHWNE (&)
Disaggregation of revenue information (Continued) WA D IEER ()
2019
—T-NF
Manufacturing
Manufacturing Retail sales of and sales of
and sales of outdoor renewable
wooden wooden energy
products products products Total
HER 5 HERHE
HEAZM PR Em BERRER Febr
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETTT ARETTT ARBTTT

Primary geographical markets* ¥ E i ig *

The PRC (place of domicile) hE (i) 104,719 29 6,891 111,639
North America JEEN 334,388 - - 334,388
Europe BUM 45,112 - - 45,112
Asia Pacific (exclusive of the PRC)  Z AR (TEIEHE) 4,551 - - 4,551
Australasia BAFIES 198,362 - - 198,362
687,132 29 6,891 694,052
Major products TEER
Wooden products R 687,132 29 - 687,161
Renewable energy products BERRER - - 6,891 6,891
687,132 29 6,891 694,052

Timing of revenue recognition Y A RESRESR

Product transferred at a point in time 2 Q8 B 40 5 [R5 R 26 687,132 29 6,891 694,052
* The geographical location of customers is based on the location at * BERZWBABREXINERMAELE
which the goods were delivered. e °

RREMERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

BB HRRNE @

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(@)

Revenue (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Disaggregation of revenue information (Continued)

The following table provides information about trade
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers.

C UAABRHEZTR)

4. WARDHEHR#)

(@)

WA ()

B AR ()

WA S IEER ()
TREINEEADWEFTISE 5K
HERANEBOER o

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

—EESF ZE-NF

+=—A=+—HB +=-A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%TRT ANREFIT

Trade receivables (note 18) Z e IE (FfaE18) 55,489 87,294
Contract liabilities (note 22) SRBE(HiF22) (5,698) (4,213)

The contract liabilities mainly relate to the advance
consideration received from customers. RMB1,613,000 of
the contract liabilities as of 31 December 2019 has been
recognised as revenue for the year ended 31 December
2020 from performance obligations satisfied due to the
received orders before 31 December 2019 has been
fulfilled.

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregated amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts is
RMB5,698,000. This amount represents revenue
expected to be recognised in the future from completed
purchase orders from customers. The Group will
recognise the expected revenue in future when or as the
goods is transferred to customers, which is expected to
occur in the next 12 months.

BHREXEPREFPUIMEN
e mRE_ZE-NFT_A=+—
BZRBBmTEE K RF
“NAFETZA=T—RZAR%
1613000 TR WEBEC R EITE
MEFTHERR/BEZ_T_TF+-
A=1T—HBIEFEHRA -

RZB-ZF+-A=1+—8 Dk
EAKERBERKTOEORTH
RS ERBER/ARES,6980007T ©
e ERKRAA R TR ERA UL
ABPHRERE - AEEBERR

“‘ﬂ%iﬁ%ﬂﬁ%)ﬁﬂﬁ&n SEE LT

P R ATERAE R R 1218 A A
E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(@)

Revenue (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sales of outdoor wooden products and renewable energy
products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the outdoor wooden products and renewable energy
products and payment is generally due within 90-180
days from delivery. Payment in advance is normally
required from its customers.

Segment reporting

In a manner consistent with how the Group manages its
business and the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified three
reportable segments, namely (i) manufacturing and sales
of wooden products, (i) retail sales of outdoor wooden
products and (iii) manufacturing and sales of renewable
energy products. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the above reportable segments.

o Manufacturing and sales of wooden products:
manufacturing and sales of outdoor wooden
products to both domestic and overseas
customers, and trading of timber.

o Retail sales of outdoor wooden products: retail
sales of outdoor wooden products through self-
operated retail shops.

o Manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products: manufacturing and sales of biomass
pellet fuel to both domestic and overseas
customers.

C UABEHEZTR)

4. WARDHER#)

(@)

WA )

BEEEHWE (&)

JEHIZTE
EHMAEEBRHETHER M
T

fﬁ%ﬁ%‘ﬁggu‘%&ﬁfﬁg/ﬁi oo
BHOEARZN IR @R BARE
FRERBCEIT  WE—MRRFIE
90180 AN EIH - BF —fR/AETE
AL

HE2 A
HREAEEEEHER MO
N MEFERSERERBTHRAAR

SERaERENNZ2HER —EH
Hﬁ’$$lE$EEMT%ﬁ“
2B EERBEERRS - (125
P ONAR B DA R (i) EF&%%EE
BERER -  AEBTERASLE D

AR Bl AT 23R #D ©

okr
=

o  HENMHEEARHm: RABEAIN
EPEERBERIRER
AMES -

o TEPIAEM:BBAET

EETEFIRER -

. AERWEBLLRES 4
B SN S A E TR T B
RSB -

TREMERERAH

—ROTEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBIETIN - UAREST)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WARDHBER =)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) () HEB2Hw@)
(i) Segment results (i) DBEE
For the purposes of assessing segment REHE D ERIB RN E 9 EbE
performance and allocating resources between PEER  AEBESREEE
segments, the Group's senior executive ?ﬁ?ﬁﬂ%@ﬁﬁiiﬁké%"{fa&
management monitors the results attributable to DERIESE

each reportable segment on the following bases:

Reportable segment revenue represents the A2 WD MBUAD R EE R
revenue derived from the Group’s external HEARD TEPINKESR
customers by manufacturing and sales of wooden NREEREEBEEIREM
products, retail sales of outdoor wooden products imBARNEBIINSEFFERU
and manufacturing and sales of renewable energy A e

products, respectively.

The measure used for reportable segment profit/ A 2w EDE T (E1E) %
(loss) is “profit/(loss) after tax (excluding the after AN EEMNAEERBENRN
tax effect of government subsidies)” of Bl TEPIIAREMNARE
manufacturing and sales of wooden products, retail ERHEBERERERD R
sales of outdoor wooden products and Figur,/ (B8) (T e BT
manufacturing and sales of renewable energy Az BETE) ]

products, respectively.

Segment assets exclude other financial assets, SHEETEFHMERE
deferred tax assets, derivative financial E-RTEHEBEEE TESR
instruments, pledged deposits, cash and cash IA BHEAER BRERR
equivalents, and other unallocated head office and SEEY  KEAMRD RAHR
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a EERDCEEE RAZEE
group basis. EERERBEEEE -
Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial SHEABETEETESRT
instruments, debentures, tax payables, deferred B -E&FH - EANHIE-EEH
tax liabilities and other unallocated head office and BEERAMADEAHER
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed ME¥AE AAZEAEE
on a group basis. REEAGER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

rE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

ELURLET e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 G551

AT ()

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

C UABEHEZTR)

4.

(i) segment results (Continued) i)y oEpEEE)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable REBE-—T-—TER—T—H
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior EL-—A=4t—BIEE B
executive manggement for the purposes of BRI RS A A
resource allocation and assessment of segment - g
performance for the years ended 31 December ”.Himf %F}E{ Nkt
2020 and 2019 is set out below: SRR 2 0 BB A KRS 0
T
2020
—2%%
Manufacturing
Manufacturing Retail sales of and sales of
and sales of outdoor renewable
wooden wooden energy
products products products Total
EER
EER £ HEBE
HEARSE B REE EEER #it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TR AR®TR N o AR%TR
Revenue derived fromthe Group's — BEAREESNIZRF
external customers A 486,102 = 6,487 492,589
Inter-segment revente AEEBEA 5,164 - 2,650 7,814
Reportable segment revenue  F2HIHHA 491,266 - 9,137 500,403
Reportable segment (loss)/profit 18),/ %
((loss)/profit after tax (% é / et
(excluding the after tax effect (TRER W e
of government subsidies)) Hkze)) (84,011) (587) 458 (84,140)
Depreciation charge onproperty, 1% BERBBZFTE
plant and equipment (34,245) (269) (507) (35,021)
Depreciation charge on land use rights B &R EREEEY T
included in right-of-use assets FREINE (1,519) = = (1,519)
Fair value loss of derivative financial 7448 T EATEEE
instruments (8,684) - - (8,684)
Fair value loss on other EthepEEATEBE
financial assets (1,201) - - (1,201)
Gain on deregistration of HBARBEELN
a subsidiary W - 1,183 - 1,183
Gain on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment FEYim 1,782 - - 1,782
Impairment of property, 0% BERREAE
plant and equipment (24,641) - - (24,641)
Gain/(Loss) on deregistration B NAIBHEEN
of associates W/ (BR) 1,181 - (422) 759
Write-back of inventories FEER 2,910 - - 2,910
RREYIERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

/\\/T\

BB ERRW T @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B # R4

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

C UAABRHEZTR)

4. WARDHEHR#)

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) () HEB2Hw@)
(i) Segment results (Continued) iy PHEEE)
2019
ety K3
Manufacturing
Manufacturing Retail sales of and sales of
and sales of outdoor renewable
wooden wooden energy
products products products Total
FER
EER g HERE
HEAHR PR B HRER e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT AEEFT AREFT ANREFTL
Revenue derived from the Group's  BEAEENSEF
external customers A 687,132 29 6,891 694,052
Inter-segment revente DEEEA 6,39 190 2,857 9,443
Reportahle segment revenue  T2HFBKA 693,528 219 9,748 703,495
Reportable segment (loss)/profit A2HAF(BIE)EH
((loss)/profit after tax (Rt (B18) /&7
(excluding the after tax effect (F %BUT i1
of government subsidies)) mEye)) (73719) (730) 942 (73,507)
Depreciation charge onproperty, 1% BERBEZFE
plant and equipment (20,656) (394) (507) (21,55)
Depreciation charge on land use rights B &R EREEEL T
included within right-of-use assets ~ EREZ & (1,017) - - (1017)
Fair value loss of derivative financial 744 BT AN FEEE
instruments (4,931) - - (4,931)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMBAR I - - 17 17
Impairment of property, 0% BERREAE
plant and equipment (638) - - (638)
Loss on disposal of property, HENE - BERLE
plant and equipment ZER (1.817) ® - (1,825)
L0ss on de-registration of in HEBEAT
an associate HftEE (456) - - (456)
Write-down of inventories, net FEMETE (4,495) - - (4,495)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (8

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WARDEHBE®H =)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) () HEB2H@)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment (i) TEFRIBURAHETTZ2HS I
revenue and reportable segment loss EIENEHER
2020 2019
—EBEF —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARWT ARBET T

Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue A2 HH EUA 500,403 703,495
Elimination of inter-segment revenue #4445 28R4 A (7,814) (9,443)
Consolidated revenue FRE A 492,589 694,052
Loss B8

Reportable segment loss derived REAREBEINE P H

from the Group's external A 2HH EEE

customers (84,140) (73,507)
Government subsidies (net of tax) BT #EL (FNKRFEIE) 8,537 15,490
Depreciation charge on HEMEZINE

leased properties (149) (150)
Unallocated interest income RAEFEWA 3,344 347
Unallocated interest expense FOBF SR (162) (1,815)
Unallocated head office and ROMBIHERR

corporate expenses AR (20,529) (4,836)
Consolidated loss after tax REBRTEER (93,099) (64,471)

RRAEYIZRERDF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A

(Continued)

BB ERRW T @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B T5) » LUAREEZITR)
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WARDEBEH =)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) by DEBRR(#)
(iii) Reconciliation of segment assets and (i) " PEERAGEHER
liabilities
2020
- k3
Manufacturing
Manufacturing  Retail sales of and sales of
and sales of outdoor renewable
wooden wooden energy
products products products Total
EER
&R £ HEBE
HEXRE FOMREE RFER #it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TR AE®TT AE®TT AR®TT
Segment assets AHEE 699,131 618 2,071 701,820
Corporate and other unallocated ~ PEREMANEEE
assets 177,058
Total assets BESE 878,878
segment liabilities AHPAR 35,363 4 517 35,921
Corporate and other unallocated  PEREMASEEE
liabilities 30,355
Total liabilities ffEEE 66,276
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WARDEHBEH @)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) () PDEZH
(ili) Reconciliation of segment assets and (iiiy P BEEREBBEYHRE)

liabilities (Continued)

2019
—E-NE
Manufacturing
Manufacturing Retail sales of and sales of
and sales of outdoor renewable
wooden wooden energy
products products products Total
EER
EER T8 HERE
HEAZR PIMRER BREM @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTL ARET AREFT AREFTL
segment assets APEE 878,571 1,119 12576 892,266
Corporate and other unallocated ~ PEREMAIEEE
assets 89,179
Total assets BERE 981,445
segment liabilities ABAR 37,138 60 9,537 46,735
Corporate and other unallocated ~ PEREMASEEE
liabilities 49077
Total liabilities BfEEE 95,812
(iv) Geographical information (iv) t&ER
Non-current assets FRBEE
Non-current assets are principally located in the ERBEEFEZMMNFE -
PRC.

RN ERERAT
Seozeeg | 37
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A E B IS R R MY EE ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 5B RSN + AN BESIR)

5. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS 5.
(@) Other revenue

HW AR b &858

(@)

RN
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT-AF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARWBTTR ARBET T

Interest income on bank deposits TEZF B A 3,344 347
Government subsidies* Eﬁzﬁ* AL 10,044 18,223
Dividend income from the equity BEAEAFEFAE
investment designated as fair value  fth 2 E U= 2 IRAIEE
through other comprehensive f& S U A (KT 14(a))
income (note 14(a)) 983 531
Rental income (note 30(b)) AU A (H17E30(D)) 96 62
Others i 3,159 693
17,626 19,856

The Group received unconditional government subsidies of
RMB10,044,000 (2019: RMB18,223,000) during the year ended 31
December 2020 in respect of its normal operating activities. There
were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attaching to these
government grants.

# RBEEZZ-ZEF+-A=+—HIF
o AKEREER @S RMESK
{4 BT 5 B A R 10,044,000 T (=%
—NEF: AR18,223,0007T) ° Z K
IR R SRR R R B R IE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

5. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS 5.

BRI T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( A BT

C UABEHEZTR)

HWAREMEERE )

(Continued)
(b) Other net loss (b) HAbEIEFRE
2020 2019
—ETEF ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREEFIT
Net foreign exchange (l0ss)/gain &5 (E518),Wak /F 58 (8,090) 6,749
Fair value loss on derivative PTHESRTANTEER
financial instruments (8,684) (4,931)
Fair value loss on other financial HihemEERQTAERBE
assets (note 14(b)) (Htat 14() (1,201) -
Gain on de-registration of BEHT R A B R ik 2 5 58
a subsidiary, net (note 15) (Kt5£15) 1,183 -
Net gain/(loss) on de-registration of G YN Ee R € St ))
associates, net (notes 13(a) and (b))  FEE (A 13@@) K (b)) 759 (456)
Gain on remeasurement of previously E#EtELAIFARBE AT 2
held equity interests in an associate A& ¥~ Wzs (BfaE25)
(note 25) 159 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary M B A Rk (Y 7E26)
(note 26) - 17
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property, HEME  BEEREZ
plant and equipment Wik (E18) 1,782 (1,825)
Impairment of property, Y - B MERERE (K 11)
plant and equipment (note 11) (24,641) (638)
Write-back/(Write-down) of inventories 77 & R ER R (i) 2,910 (4,495)
Gain on early termination of leases RAMKIERE 2 Was 3 -
Others Hh (405) 879
(36,225) (4,700)
RREYIERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4T e RS ER R M (')

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 H#E TN - UAREEZTR)

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX

6. FRBiIRIEE

Loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): MR ATEBEEG (Bt A) TH &8\ EE
H o
(@) Finance costs @ BEERA
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFIT
Interest expense on bank loans RITERF EMZ 22 1,253
Interest expense on debentures EHHF EF X 133 549
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBBENHMNSHAEZ (HF23)
(note 23) 7 13
162 1,815
(b) Staff costs (b) BIA
2020 2019
—ETEF ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TT ARBF T
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TENREAMETR
(exclude directors’ remuneration) (TBEEEEHM) 27,173 34,111
Contributions to defined contribution  FEEHFGRRET SR
retirement schemes 890 1,153
Equity-settled share award scheme  LARRKEAEE I EE) =T 21
expenses (note 28(b)) FZ (F17F28(b)) 5,777 -
33,840 35,264
Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in BRIEFENEBEEERIRER -

the PRC, the Group’s entities in the PRC participate in
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the local authorities whereby
the entities are required to make contributions to the
Schemes based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019. Contributions to the Schemes vest
immediately. Under the Schemes, retirement benefits of
existing and retired employees are payable by the
relevant scheme administrators and the Group has no
further obligations beyond the annual contributions.

SENRFBENEESINNA ERE
) T BB FOR KB M AT B ([ 3% 5T
2D Bt BEERENEE=Z
—EFER-ZZTE-NF+=-A=+—H
IFFEREEREEFHN—TE D
L RRZ R BIE 5 o HazETEED
RHRENESERE - RIEB TS B
B MR K E B RIRKE R BB T2
EEEEIN  BREREZUON A%
EEmE—TET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
& B 1% 2% MY 5T (4

/\\IT\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)
6. LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. BRERIEE®)
(c) Other items (c) HMIEHE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARET T
Cost of inventories recognised as BRAETERAZER
expenses (note (i) (Kr&E@)) 488,151 685,428
Depreciation charge (note 11) EMF11)
— Owned property, plant and —BEDE  BELEZE
equipment WERE 35,021 21,557
— Right-of-use assets: — ERREAE
— Land use rights — b A 1,519 1,017
— Leased properties —HEME 149 150
36,689 22,724
Low-value assets leases expenses (KEZEMREEMA = 116
Research and development costs D FN 16,282 21,418
Gain on bargain purchase on ABRAWE—FEEBEARZ
acquisition of a subsidiary (note 25) Bz (K131 25) 697 -
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR & 875 1,016
Note: ez -
0) Cost of inventories includes RMB44,911,000 (2019: RMB40,845,000) 0] BHE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—-HLLHF

for the year ended 31 December 2020 relating to staff costs and

depreciation, which amount is also included in the respective total

amounts disclosed separately above or in note 6(b) for each of

these types of expenses.

& FEMABIEARE44,911,0007T
(ZZ—h4%F : AR%40,845,0007T) %
RETRARIE  BESERSEA
NEXHEMFoO R ERZEHESE
KENBSEA -

HREYIERER AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBETIN  AARESITR)

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. ZEBBERANAEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (@) #rEBEZERANTIETE

profit or loss represents:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FRT ARBT T

current tax — PRC corporate ENHAIRIE — FEI ¥R

income tax
Provision for the year FREE 39 263
Over-provision in previous year HF—FE ARG (4,255) ®)

Deferred tax expense/(credit) BIERIEM: (ESH)
Origination and reversal of temporary =4 Kk 8 [E] i =48

differences (note 16(a)) (Ktit16(a) 97 (87)
Income tax credit/(expense) ieFER,/ (Fx) (4,119) 168
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (8

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. ZREBBERANMBHR @
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continuead)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and b) HEAMEGFTENTIEFH
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: Bt Al B R
2020 2019
o ok -3 3 “T-NEF
RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
AR®TT AREFT
Loss before tax bRt RIS 1R (97,218) (64,303)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, BREAE BN RERE
calculated at the rates applicable REBRES AR
in the tax jurisdictions concerned HANBEFE
(notes (i) & (i) (B3 () & (i) (14,747) 151 (9,189) 14.3
Effect of non-taxable income BAERBRAR 8
TE (232) 0.2 (245) 0.3
Effect of non-deductible expenses FMm 2 2 2,066 (2.1) 2,649 (4.1)
Effect of bonus deduction for e L BRI
research and development expenses v (1,221) 1.3 (1,606) 25
Tax losses not recognised KR HIBEE 14,406 (14.8) 8,567 (13.3)
Over-provision in previous years BEFEBERE (4,255) 4.4 (8) -
Others HAth (136) 0.1 - -
Tax credit/(expense) at the Group's REBIRERHE 2
effective rate MEs e, (%) (4,119) 4.2 168 (0.3)

RRAEYIERERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A E B IS R R MY EE ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B % G551

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

Notes:

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the Group
did not earn any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong profits
tax during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The Group's PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC corporate income
tax at the statutory rate of 25% unless otherwise specified.

Zhangping Kimura applied and was approved for the renewal of
High and New Technology Entities ("HNTE") qualification under the
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant regulations during
2019, and therefore is entitled to the preferential income tax rate
of 15% for a period of three years from 2019 to 2021.

Under the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, the CIT rate applicable
to small-scale enterprises with law profitability that meet certain
conditions including the assessable profits not more than
RMB3,000,000, shall be reduced to 20%. Five of the Company’s
subsidiaries (2019: six of the Company's subsidiaries) have been
designated as small-scale enterprises, pursuant to which, (i) the
first RMB1,000,000 of assessable profits (the “1st Assessable
Profits”) of these subsidiaries is effectively taxable at 5.0% (i.e.
20% on 25% of the 1st Assessable Profits); and (i) the remaining
assessable profits not over RMB3,000,000 (the “Remaining
Assessable Profits”) is effectively taxable at 10.0% (i.e. 20% on
50% of the Remaining Assessable Profits).

C UAABRHEZTR)

7. GEBERAMNAEHR @

(0)

BB R E R IE R
S HEE R FHEER - (@)

Hat

BE_F_ZTFR-_F-NE+=A
=+ —BLEFE  AEEYERREAR
MBEBFEHOERMERBURT - 83
BREBNEHAHERE

i. A5 (8 Yy o BB B R B 7812 25% A TE B
ERmTBEEEMEH - SHERER
b o

ii. BEPANER-ZE-NAFREPERE
FrSBOE R EARRDAMR R L ES R
g (R i) MR ES
B HR_F-NFE_F-_—F=F
IR B EZH 15% WERFTEHBIE -

iv. REBECEMERE  FEETHRE(REE
JE AR s F 1 B i A R % 3,000,000 7T )
ZRAENBERZ NECEFR 2%
FEBRITECERGSR DB EERE

20%° ARRIEPAHMBRAR(ZE
—NE - AHEHEAR) BEET A
T B (ZSEHBRAFTEARYE
1,000,000 7T 2 F& SR %t i | ([ &5 Bt FE AR
S I 1) 4% B R B R 5% (B3R 25% & HLIE
ARELR T2 20%) #EL - R ()BT TZR
AER#3,000,000 7T 2 FERBUEF ([T
FERBE i F 1) BHE BB B 10% (BIHZ
50% ik T FE SR BRI 2 20% ) BT ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4T E B IS R R MY E T ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 BTSN » LUAREEZITR)

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. ZREBBERANMBHR @

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continuead)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and b) ZEAHETERTIER
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: X e R M EEHER - @)
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued) M - ()

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant
regulations, dividends receivable by non-PRC resident corporate
investors from PRC resident enterprises are subject to withholding
income tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties or
arrangements, for profits earned since 1 January 2008.

Since the Group can control the quantum and timing of
distribution of profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC,
deferred tax liabilities are only recognised to the extent that such
profits are expected to be distributed through dividend payment
by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. As at 31
December 2020, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to overseas
holding company amounted to RMB177,563,000 (2019:
RMB259,463,000) and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities of
RMB17,756,000 (2019: RMB25,946,000) have not been recognised.

1R ek B S B B ELARR A AR
FRBERRAERPEERAERE
*ffﬂifﬂfﬂtﬁmmﬁﬂmﬁ

%M%f i’] ‘Rzﬂ%ﬂ’ﬁ.‘ﬁﬂ% E'J#:MEEU i

HAREBR A AEFAEBREREN T
RNRIFBENENSBAEHE - HLERE
TEHASENREFRRENERNLR
FiBBR B BEFERRTIR TR
RIEFMEHEE - R=T_FF+=A
=+—H BREEPHFBEATRD
R BEEIMEIR A FIA B E £
B AR ME177,563,000 70 (= — SL4F -
AR 259,463,000 7T ) B #8 & IR 3T F 08
BEARKE17,756,0007C (=T — L4 -
AR 25,946,000) 7T ) AR A HER ©

PRMEYIERAERATE
ZECTEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS R R I A (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBETIN  AARESITR)

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of

8. EEFM
IRBE 2 TGI8 383() SR A T (K H

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the EENTER)ROE2HEERE  EF
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of FEIR
Directors) Regulation is as follows:
2020
- - 32
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind honuses contributions Total
it BER
RS ENtia RETEL  BAHER #
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEB%TRT AR®TT AE®TRT ARETR  AR®TR
Executive directors niTEs
Wu Zheyan REE 360 1,639 - 3 2,002
Xie Qingmei HEE 53 1 4 - 58
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, EL L I -
Non-executive director EBRTER
Wu Dongping (note &) RET(Hita) 60 - - - 60
Independent non-executive directors B FH{TES
Lam Hin Chi ] 107 - - - 107
lin Zhongwei tEAR 107 - - - 107
SuWengiang B 107 - - - 107
321 - - - 321
794 1,640 4 3 2,441
Note (a):  Retired on 29 May 2020 k@ : RZZEZTFRA =T NHRIK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A e IS R I A ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 BTSN » LUAREEZITR)

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEFM =
2019
ZE-NF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees inkind bonuses  contributions Total
%2R
we ENa BiEfa  RIRGIEER b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFTL ARETT ARETT ARETT
Executive directors BTES
Wu Zheyan REZ 360 972 - 4 133
Xie Qingmei HEx 57 1 4 - 62
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, WA
Non-executive director FUTES
Wu Dongping RRY 144 - 12 - 156
Independent non-executive directors BUEHTES
Lam Hin Chi EEE 106 - - _ 106
JinZhongwei 2ER 106 - - - 106
Su Wengiang £y e 106 - - - 106
318 - - - 318
879 973 16 4 1872
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there REBEE_ZT_ZFR_Z-NEF+_H

were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the Directors
or any of the highest paid individuals set out in note 9 below as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

:+—EIJJ:¢EZ : $%@$ﬁ%ﬂﬁ§$§}zT
XHFEOMEMEMN RS HMA LR
FER RS - FERRSIREFMBEAKHE
KNMBAKRERNES - HIERRER
B RBE_Z-_ZFR-_FT-NF+=
A=T—HLFE EFHERBENR
PERE AR B REEAHH -

FRAEMERERAR
T TEFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBETIN  AARESITR)

9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9. REFMAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, there was BHE-_FT-_ZF+-_A=+—HIEFE"
one (2019: two) director for the year ended 31 December 2020, TEERFMALH  —B(ZFE-NF:
whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of ZR)BREE  BENFHINRMESEE -
emoluments in respect of the other four (2019: three) BTIUEZ(ZE—NF : =F) ATH
individuals are as follows: wEEm
2020 2019
-~ Ja- =3 = ZE-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARWTT ARBET T

Salaries and other emoluments e READEM 364 425
Discretionary bonuses E’\] 15IE4T 19 38
Share award scheme expenses AP € Bh At 2159 2 3,435 -
Equity-settled retirement scheme VAR HE 5 S5 B SR KT B
contributions 13 6
3,831 469
The emoluments of the four individuals (2019: three individuals) ME(ZE—NF: =2)E2FMWATH
with the highest emoluments are within the following bands: A ?Tﬁllﬁ
2020 2019
—E_EF —E-NF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AB ANER
Nil to RMB1,000,000 T & AR ¥ 1,000,000 7T 3 3
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR#1,000,001
AR # 1,500,000 7T 1 -
4 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBEIETIN - UAREST)

10. LOSS PER SHARE 10. BREE

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is based on the loss attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company of RMB93,099,000 (2019:
RMB64,471,000) and weighted average of 726,582,000 shares
(2019: 617,667,000 shares) in issue during the year ended 31
December 2020.

The weighted average of 617,667,000 shares for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are derived from 3,088,335,000
ordinary shares in issue as at 1 January 2019 after taking into
account the effect of the five-to-one share consolidation which
was effective on 22 October 2019.

The weighted average of 726,582,000 shares for the year
ended 31 December 2020 are derived from 617,667,000
ordinary shares in issue as at 1 January 2020 after taking into
account the effect of (i) the issuance of new shares of
123,533,400 ordinary shares on 14 February 2020 (notes 24 and
27(h)) and (ii) the issuance of 42,550,000 award shares under
the share award scheme (note 28(b)) on 30 December 2020.

The basic and diluted loss per share are the same as the Group
had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—"HILFEHXN
BRERARBEEENIZRBE_T-ZF
T A=+ HIEFEMNARAREEEE
AFE(REB AR 93,099,000t (ZF—A
F: AR®64,471007T) F UWEEHZE=F
—TEFEF+ A=+ -—HBLEHFE®
726,582,000l R B BT IR (=T — L4 -
617,667,000 iR AR 17 ) BIINAE I BETE -

HE-ZT-NF+-A=1+—RHILFEZ
bu%ﬂ?t’qﬂx%&mzéézoooﬁﬁxgE!aﬁé_;
—hF—HA—H 22 %1701 3,088,335,000
BEFAERZZE—NF+A=Z+ZHEE
WMz AB—RDE 2B -

HE-Z-TF+-A=1+—RHILFEZ
buﬁéiﬁ%ﬂzﬁszoooﬂxxaﬁo_e_7
F—H— BB #17.2617,667,000 % % 3
B WEFEIR-_ZE_EF-_A+WMAH
#1772 123,533,400 &% 3 38 A% 37 A% (FH 5£ 24
Eo7p) RV —ZE-_ZT&HE+—-F=+H
B% 1 B2 EpaT 8 T %17 42,550,000 A% 52 B A%
17 (MisE28(0) 2 & -

AEEYERBE_T_TFR_F—N
Ft+=-A :Jr*EUJ:EEZE%éﬁE.LHQ
EHEMEEAE Rt SREARRES
ERARR -

TREMERERAH

ZECTEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB R M5 (@)

AR E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B # R4

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

C UAABRHEZTR)

1. YE - BERKRE

Furniture,
Leasehold  Plantand fittings and Motor Construction Right-of-
Buildings improvements machinery equipment vehicles inprogress  Subtotal use assets Total
il &
[ k2 WREE RBERES RERRR RE ERIE it EREEE it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AE®TR AE®TRT AEWTRT AEWTT ARRTT ARRTR ARRTR AERTR AERTR
CosT BE
At 1January 2019 RZE-7E-A-H 560,971 5845 130,419 6,152 9,744 29,378 742,509 83,561 826,070
Additions RE - - 4140 1 3449 6,194 13784 - 13784
Disposals e - - (228) (100) (3,660) - (3,988) - (3,988)
Transfers 23 5878 - 902 - - (6,780) - - -
Exchange realignment ERHE - 3 - - - - 3 8 1
At 31 December 2019 and RIB-AE+ZA=+-BR
1 January 2020 Z3-3%5-A-H 566,849 5848 135233 6,003 9,533 28,792 752,308 83,569 835,877
Acquisition of a subsidiary (ote 25) el — RS B A R (#:E 25) - - m 3 - - 804 - 804
Additions RE 4,178 - 11,014 - | - 15,633 165 15,798
Disposals HE - - 77 - (630) - (1,401 - (1,401)
Transfers 224 1,834 - 2317 - - 4,151) - - -
Impairment losses REBR - - - - - (24,641) (24,641 - (24,611)
Written off s - (5,848) - - - - (5,848) (366) (6,214)
Exchange realignment BB - - - - - - - 9 9
At 31 December 2020 R-B-BF+-A=+-A 572,861 - U854 6,086 9,34 - 7385 B39 8021
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ RiHfERAESE
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
At 1 January 2019 R-E-h&-B-H 209,320 5816 54,269 4,766 6,144 - 280,315 38,002 318317
Charge for the year FRY 9,544 29 10,753 454 7 - 21,557 1167 2,724
Elimination on disposals RHEREH - - (147) (88) (1,367) - (1,602) - (1,602
Impairment losses HERR - - 177 - ¥ - 216 v} 638
Exchange realignment EXAZ 3 - - - - 3 3 6
At 31 December 2019 and RZB-AF+ZRAZ+-HR
1 January 2020 ZE-25-A-A 218 864 5,848 65,052 5132 5,593 - 300,489 39,594 340,083
Charge for the year ERTE 22,288 - 11,598 168 97 - 35,021 1,668 36,689
Elimination on disposals WMHEEEH - - (95) - (599) - (694) - (694)
Written off b= - (5,848) - - - - (5,848) (274) (6122)
Exchange realignment EXHZ - - - - - - - @ @
At 31 December 2020 R-E-2F+-A=+-A 21,1 - 76,555 5,300 5,961 - 328968 40,986 369,954
NET CARRYING AMOUNT RERE
At 31 December 2020 R-B-BF+-A=+-R 331,709 - 72,009 786 3383 - 407,887 373 450,260
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+-A=+-H 347,985 - 70,181 921 3,940 28,792 451,819 43975 495,794
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBEIETIN - UAREST)

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1. Y% BERRK®E®)

(Continued)

Buildings are held for own use and are situated in the PRC. At
31 December 2020, buildings with net carrying amount of
RMB31,780,000 (2019: RMB108,102,000) were pledged to banks
for certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note 29).

Impairment assessment of construction in
progress

The carrying amount of construction in progress of
RMB24,641,000 (2019: RMB24,641,000), before impairment loss
of approximately RMB24,641,000 (2019: Nil), represented the
Group's new manufacturing complex under construction (the
“Suspended Property”). The construction of the Suspended
Property commenced in 2018 with an aim to increase the
Group’s production capacity to meet the then expected
increasing demand, and the Group has entered into an
agreement with the constructor in February 2019 to put the
construction on hold. After the reassessment of the market
conditions, particularly in the United States, the Directors
considered it is appropriate to suspend the construction plan
of the Suspended Property and impair the related incurred
construction costs of approximately RMB24,641,000 in full
during the year (2019: Nil). The estimated outstanding amount
of the construction contract, to which the Group is
contractually committed, is RMBNIl (2019: RMB23,642,000).

BFEEHAEAR  ARFE - R-2T-F
F+ZA=+—HB REFEAARE
31,780000L( = F — L F: AR ¥
108,102,0007T) 2 FEE R TIRIT - 1
AREEERNE TRITREEEZER
(MF7E29) °

FE iR E

FRIBZEAEREBAEELREET
R ERER((EEDEDHFREAR
#24,601,000C( Z T —NWF: AR
24,641,0007T) (REFRREEEBLHARE
24,641000C(ZFE—NE : &) - EEWY
ERZT - \FHRKRESE  EHEESAE
EREEREERTEPTEEENTE K
YERZE—hF-RHEBER L HE
A ERBRELE - TR ETSMRN (B
HEXE)®%  ZBFRR BEOWERE
TEEREEFEEE  WRNF AR
BB E A AR AR A A R 524,641,000
T(ZE—NF: &) 2FREE -  AEER
BEHNBITHNREEANREESEAAR
BZax(ZZ—F: ARK23642,000
JT) e

qlﬂi#@?*ﬂx“ﬁ_ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
TECTEFR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( B = BTSN

BRI T

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment (other than the construction in
progress)

Other than the construction in progress, property, plant and
equipment of the Group were subject to impairment review.

The Directors engaged an independent professional valuer with
recognised qualifications and experiences, to determine the
recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment
(other than the construction in progress).

The recoverable amount was determined based on the higher
of fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Pursuant to
their valuation report, no provision for impairment of the
property, plant and equipment (other than the construction in
progress) was necessary during the year (2019: RMB638,000)
as the recoverable amount is higher than its carrying amount.

C UAABRHEZTR)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

1. 9% BERXE#)

W - BENMEE(BREZIRE
HN) BB A

BAERTREN  AEBEPYE  BE R
REAEITRIER

ERCZRAGEARER REREBL
BELEMEEYE  BEMREBER
TSN AR E S -

AT [El € B8 T5 4R A B R H 8 X AN B2
BEMEZESEETE - REEGHERS -
HRAIEESEaRERAE  RFR -
BEmE - WERRE(REEIRMNG
EHBREREB(ZZ—HLF: AR
638,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS R R I A (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( A BT

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

C UABEHEZTR)

1. ¥ - BERREB#

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Leased Land use
properties rights Total
HEYE X3t {5 48 #et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT
Net carrying amount: BREDFE -
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—hF—F—H 359 45,200 45,559
Amortisation B (150) (1,017) (1,167)
Impairment loss DERIEN, Eic - (422) (422)
Exchange alignment P 3% 5 - 5
Net carrying amount: BRTEDFEE ¢
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE-—NEF+=A
1 January 2020 —t+—HAER-_T-TF
—HA—H 214 43,761 43,975
Additions NE 165 - 165
Amortisation 5 (149) (1,519) (1,668)
Written-off on early termination 2 #7421 78 & i 5
of leases (92) - (92)
Exchange alignment b N A R 7) - (7)
Net carrying amount: BREEE -
At 31 December 2020 RZEZTF
+=—A=+— 131 42,242 42,373
At 31 December 2020, land use rights with an aggregate R-E-—EHF+—-_F=+—H8 BEEEE

carrying amount of RMB14,764,000 (2019: RMB18,376,000)
were pledged as securities for certain banking facilities granted
to the Group (note 29).

7%/\&?5514 764,000 (=& —

NEF AR

118,376,000 7T ) K L AEEIEAER T
AEEAHE TIRITRVE AIKIF R (HFE29) ©

HRIAEYERBRD A

ZECTEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\\/T\ = /\ﬁ%%%&% IzﬁL III_II_ ,.,\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B # R4

12. NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS FOR 12.
ACQUISITIONS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT

The amount mainly represented the prepaid construction cost
for plant and machinery. An analysis of non-current deposits of

construction cost is as follows:

C UAABRHEZTR)

e

WREYI X - BB R REHIFERD

ZEBRIREMEIMSETREMNBNTIRE
PR o JERIER TR AR S DT

2020 2019
—EIEHE —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETT
Deposit for construction of BEGAERNIZS
manufacturing complex - 9,031
Deposit for other constructions Hibh@EARYE - BB &
and property, plant and equipment RiBIRE 1,907 2,043
1,907 11,074
13. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 13. REtE N RER
2020 2019
—ZEF —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ANEBT T
Share of net assets R EEFE - 15,666
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (8

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

13. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 13. REE&ERQ ﬂ*giui(ﬁ)
Details of the Group's interests in the associates are as follows: REEREE QRSB T

Proportion of
ownership interest

FrARERLLH
Place of Group's
establishment effective Held by
Name of associate and operation interest  subsidiaries Principal activity
*KED

BREATRE RURBEMR ERiES aMEBLRRE IEIH

Jiangxi Lvyuan Trading Co., Ltd.* The PRC - - Trading of imported timber
("Lvyuan”) (note (a)) (2019: 45%) (2019: 45%)

IRGRESERAR (4R (H1:F @) R - - BEEOAM

(ZZ—h#F (ZZ—h#F
45%) 45%)

Longyan Deliyuan Biomass Energy The PRC - - Research &development and
Co., Ltd.* ("Deliyuan”) (note (b)) (2019: 45%) (2019: 45%) sales of biomass energy

BREMEMNEREMERARAR (AR - - EMEBRROHEREE
(st D) (ZZ2—nEg: (ZB2—hF:

45%) 45%)

Zhangping Ruisheng Wood Structure The PRC 100% 100% Manufacturing and sales of
Materials Co., Ltd* (“Ruisheng Wood") (2019: 45%) (2019: 45%) wooden products
(Formerly known as “Fujian Longyan
Zhangping Weston Wood Component
and Material Company Limited" (note (c))

BEREABEHERAR I 100% 100% AEmEERFE
(mAREE D (IR [BREESD (Z=—h&E: (ZB-NF:

BRI BALEMEERAR]) (M () 45%) 45%)

* The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official * EXANEEZABERSE - ZZMBTNES

name of these related parties is in Chinese. BRBAR XA -

FRAEMERERAR
T TEFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

;\\IT\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B RIN » AN EREEFIR)
13. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 13.

B MR M ()

31 December 2020

Notes:

@

On 16 March 2020, Lvyuan, an associate of the Group with 45% effective
equity interests, was de-registered, resulting in gain on de-registration of
an associate of RMB1,181,000 (note 5(b)). During the period from 1
January 2020 to 16 March 2020 (date of de-registration), the Group had
taken up its results of RMBNIl to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

On 23 November 2020, Deliyuan, an associate of the Group with 45%
effective equity interests, was de-registered, resulting in loss on
de-registration of an associate of RMB422,000 (note 5(b)). During the
period from 1 January 2020 to 23 November 2020 (date of de-registration),
the Group had taken up its results of RMBNIl to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

As detailed in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
acquired the remaining 55% equity interests in Ruisheng Wood on 10
September 2020 and Ruisheng Wood became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company since then. During the period from 1 January 2020 to 9
September 2020, the Group had taken up its results of RMB287,000 to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

31 December 2019

()

On 31 October 2019, Xiamen Zhonglisheng Trading Co., Ltd.
(“Zhonglisheng”), an associate of the Group with 45% effective equity
interests, was de-registered, resulting in loss on de-registration of interest
in an associate of RMB456,000 (note 5(b)).

NEEATER 2
—E-FTF+-_H=+—H

(@) RZZZTF=A+A - REEEF 45% BHRK
BZBEARSREEE  SRGEH—HEEQ
Bk s AR5 1,181,000 7T (FH5E5(0) » R=F
—ZF—A—BE=A+/"B(FHBEH) A&
BEREEBEARB TN ALREEBRE -

(b) RZZZZE+—AZ+=0 TEEBISRE
BB ARSNREEHE  SBEHE M
Bt & ) ) O 5 1B A R 422,000 7 (B RE5(D))

‘;I

&

R-_T—TF—A—HE-T-_TH+—A
“H=AGEHAE) B AEECBHES
ARBZ TG NRAERE ©

© AR A MG MERMF2FRFS - RT=TF

NA+TE  FAEBESHANRGEHERT 55% K
B RmMBEAGEELRKARRRZENB A
A-RN_E-EF-A-HE-Z-ZTFAAN
HAM - AEEE R B AR 287,000 Tat
MNREBHEK -

—ZE-NFE+=-_B=1+—H

(d) RZE-NFT+A=+—8 ~EEHBEEER
HEAS% 2 B E N R EFIRFIRE S HBR AR ([F
FIK DB S —MB QN ERE
18 AR 456,000 7T (M35 5(0)) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A e IS R I A ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)
13. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 13. REFE QB R (2)
Summary of financial information of the associates: ZEENRNMBERBE
Lvyuan Deliyuan Ruisheng Wood
-3 #HiR RAKER
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
“BIEF -—Z-nfF ZBIBE -—T-N\F ZBIEf -T-NfF
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETr AR%TR ARETT ARBTR ARETL
Non-current assets ¥REEE N/ATER - N/ATRER N/AREHR 2,52
Current assets REBEE N/ATER 5441 N/ATER 9,985  N/ARER 8,531
Non-current liabilities FrBas N/ARER - N/A%ER - N/AFER -
Current liabilities TEHaR N/AFER - N/ATER (1 N/ARER (6,049)
Net assets BEFE N/ARER 5441  N/AF#ER 9984  N/ATER 5,009
Reconciliation to the Group's BAEERNHE AT
interests in associates: T 45 - N/ATER - N/A%ER - N/AFER -
Group's share of net assets of REBEEHE NN
the associates EEFE N/AFRER 2448  N/AFER 4493 N/ATERE 2,254
Revenue WA N/AFER 20 N/AFER - NARER* 44617
Profit or loss from continuing BELLH(ER) T
operations N/AFER (243 N/ARER () N/AFER* 1,075
* Prior to the acquisition of the remaining 55% equity interest of Ruisheng * e U B B 57 7K 465 48 TR 2R B9 55 % AR (Ff§ 3£ 25) 2

Wood (note 25), Ruisheng Wood recorded RMB19,046,000 of revenue and
RMB637,000 of profit for the period from 1 January 2020 to 9 September

2020.

Al A AREBES

ToTFE-F-RAE-TC
TENANABREEEIRA R AR 19,046,000
7T FE A AR 637,0007T ©

HREYIERER AR
—ROTEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

B MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B RIN » AN EREEFIR)
14. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS HttEmEE
2020 2019
-k = —NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Equity investment at fair value BATER AL MEE R
through other comprehensive ([BAFEFAEME2ERE])
income (“FVOCI") (note a) MR ARE (KfFa) 2,400 3,048
Other financial assets at fair value BN ER AEBRE
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") ([EAFEFABZEDS
(note b) HismEE (MEb) 29,174 791
31,574 3,839
Less: Current portion R BNEREE > (29,174) 791
Non-current portion JERNERES 5 2,400 (3,048)

Notes:

The equity investment represents unlisted investment in 5% equity
interests of a PRC local bank in zhangping City, Fujian Province, the PRC.
The equity investment was irrevocably designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income as the Group considered these investments
t0 be strategic in nature.

The dividend income received related to the equity investment for the
year ended 31 December 2020 was RMB983,000 (2019: RMB531,000) (note
5@)).

Other financial assets represent (i) commodity investments from an
authorised PRC bank for an aggregate amount of RMB30,007,000 (2019:
Nil) during the year. The fair value of such commodity investment
amounted to RMB28,806,000 (2019: RMB Nil), resulting in a fair value loss
of RMB1,201,000 (2019: RMB Nil) (note 5(b)) as at 31 December 2020; and
(if) investment products of a PRC bank of RMB368,000 (2019:
RMB791,000).

wist

@

(b)

ZEAR AN ERRE R T H AR
HH)IE ETRAIRE 5% o BRAIRE T R A e
HIEE AR ATEF AR C2EEETIE - RE
RAEERRZEEEBRKILE -

HE_Z-ZF+-A=1+—HILFE DK
ERRG IS & MR AR B U A B A R 983,000 7T (=
T— N4 ARMES531,0007T) (FifzES(@)) °

Hit & R & E 3 () F AR R E— MR ERITH
% E AR 30,007,000 (ZF—HEF : &) °

AW A FE A AR 28,806,0007T (=
TZ—NF: AREZT) BBR_Z_FF
+ZA=+—AAFERHEARE1201,0007T
(ZZ—NF : ARBZ ) (HFE5(0)) ¢ K ()R
B — R RITRI IR & & @ A R 5 368,0007T (=

—hF - ARM791,0007T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RS ER R M (')

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)

15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15.

Details of the subsidiaries are set out below. The class of

shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

R 2 B R
EENBARNFERIMT - BBER
BISh + FTHRE BRI A B

Attributable equity
interest held by
Place of Particulars of the Company
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ XAFIFRISE G RE
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
M EETRBREES/

AGEL Akt HMEFEEE EE ME IEXH

Green Oceans Investment The British Virgin 10 shares of USD1 each 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Limited Islands (the “BVI")

Green Oceans Investment KBRS 0B ER1ZTHORN 100% - RAERK
Holdings Limited ([HBEZES])

King Wood (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 10,000 shares of - 100%  Sales of outdoor
Holding Limited HKD1 each wooden products

AH (B8 BREBRAR Bt 10,000 R &A% 18 TRIR D - 100%  SHEPIRER

Fujian Zhangping Kimura The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacturing and
Forestry Products Co., Ltd. RMB660,000,000 sales of outdoor
(notes (i) and (iii)) (2019: RMB400,000,000) wooden products

BREETANKERRLA H FER - 100% HEREEFIMRER
(Bt 0) % (i) AR 660,000,000 7T

(ZZ2-N&: ARE
600,000,0007T.)

Merry Garden (Shanghai) The PRC Registered capital of - - Retail sales of outdoor
Household Co., Ltd. RMB1,000,000 (2019: 100%) wooden products
(notes (ii) and (iir)) through self-operated

retail shops

ZBRE (LB REERAA FE BREEN - - BRBRTEETE
(HzE () & (i) AR 1,000,0007T (ZE—N%F: FOMRE R

100%)

Merry Garden (Xiamen) The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Retail sales of outdoor
Household Co., Ltd. RMB5,000,000 wooden products
(notes (i) and (iir)) through self-operated

retail shops

ZBFE(EM)REBRAR B AR - 100% BRELTEETE
(B (i) R (i) AR 5,000,007 PR SR

PREYERBRAF

T TEFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A E B IS R R MY EE ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 5B RSN + AN BESIR)

15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 15. RKIE R RHVRER ()

160

Attributable equity
interest held by
Place of Particulars of the Company
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ XTSI RE
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EmBL EETRBREES

REEE R iR HEMRFREE B ME IEEH

Zhangping Merry Garden Import The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Trading of timber and
and Export Co. Ltd. RMB30,000,000 sales of outdoor
("MG Import and Export”) wooden products
(notes (i) and (i)

BYMEBREELOERAA HE BREEN - 100% AMEHRHEE
([RERE#LO) AR 30,000,000 7T FAMRE R
(Faz (i) & (i)

Merry Garden Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of - 100%  Investment holding
(note (v)) HKD1 each

EBREERBRAR (M) &b 1RER - 100% BREER

1HETHRR

Zhangping Merry Garden Biomass The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacturing and
Energy Development Ltd. RMB20,000,000 sales of renewable
(notes (i) and (iir)) energy products

BETTEBREENERRRE HE BREEN - 100% HERHEEBE
BRAF (HaE () & (i) AR 20,000,000 7T BRER

Zhangping Ruisheng Wood The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacturing and
Structure Materials Co., Ltd RMB3,000,000 (2019: 45%) sales of wooden
(Formerly known as “Fujian products
Longyan Zhangping Weston
Wood Component and
Material Company Limited”

(notes (i) and (iir))

BTHARGEHEMRARAF H FRIEEN - 100% HERBEARE
(BIfE [BREEEMETRINE AR 3,000,000 7T (ZZ—NF:

RNEBHHARRR ) 45%)
(FzE () & (i)
Unicreed Holdings Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of - 100%  Investment holding
HKD5,653.39 each
BNRAIEEERAR &t 10,000 R &A% 5,653.39 B T - 100% REZR
ol

Unicreed industry & trade Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacturing and
(notes (i) and (iif)) USD7,850,000 sales of outdoor

wooden products

BNREITEERAA e FAEEN - 100%  HERHERER
(Bt ) R i) 7,850,000% 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
B B & 3R MY 5T ()

e
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)
15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 15. RB AR RER (&)

On 8 March 2019, the Company’s subsidiary, Green Oceans
Investment Holdings Limited, disposed all its shareholding in
Merry Garden Biomass Energy Holdings Limited to a third party
for cash consideration of HK$10,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB9,000). Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
amounting to RMB17,000 was recognised (notes 5(a) and 26)
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

On 30 September 2019, the Administration for Industry and
Ccommerce of Zhangping approved the liquidation of Zhangping
Kimura Merry Garden Wooden Structure Design and Installation
Co., Ltd., an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

On 17 January 2020, Merry Garden (Shanghai) Household Co.,
Ltd., an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, was
de-registered resulting in a gain on de-registration of
RMB1,183,000 (note 5(b)).

On 10 September 2020, as detailed in notes 13(c) and 25 to the
consolidated financial statements, Ruisheng Wood became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

# All the percentages of equity attributable to the Company remain
unchanged with the previous year except when otherwise indicated.

Notes:

(i) These entities are wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the
PRC.

(ii) These entities are limited liability companies established in the PRC and
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Zhangping Kimura.

(ifi) The English translation of the company names is for reference only. The
official names of these companies are in Chinese.

(iv) This entity is a limited liability company established in Hong Kong and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of King Wood (Hong Kong) Holding Limited.

RZZE—NAF=AN\B  ARRZHBA
7l Green Oceans Investment Holdings
Limited 2 LA 3R & X (8 7 % 10,000 7T (48 &
& A R 89,0007t ) H & Merry Garden
Biomass Energy Holdings Limited = F7 & &
BY—%=H - BHE-_ZT-NE+=A
=+ —BHIEFE ERALENBERAAZ
Wz A B8 17,000 7T (P 35 5(a) K2 26) ©

NENA
= a/NG|
ﬁﬁﬁEL\

EFTIBTREERERN T —
—tRLEBEARARQR ZMES
EE AN EBIERAREERT
E—Jo

RZFZTF—A+ER ARBIZHEE
FEMBRRIXERE (LB XERRA
AIC AR - EEE Y AR 1,183,000
TC(HiaE50) »

%:::?¢NH+H
ARABIHE2ENBA
MIEE13(C &%¢#ﬂ

HAREBEE
RER A M |mER

# o BRREEEIN  FAAATREEENES LR
-3 BHETE -

0] ZEERANTERINIIEBERE -

(ii) ZEBERANTERINERARFEFANE

2EMBAR -

@iy  HZEFERAFWREFLBERSE - AEABHUP
SURSE

vy ZEBRREEKINBRIREAN(EE)
ERERARNZEMBRRF -

qlﬂi#@?*ﬂx“ﬁ_ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
TECTEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A E B IS R R MY EE ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B G RN UAREEZTR)

16. DEFERRED TAXATION 16. ELEFIE
(@) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (@ EMRMELENRIEEE K
recognised =N
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) FARGFEE VBRI ERP EHERRE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial MHIBEEE/(BE)DH REEH M
position and the movements during the year are as NS
follows:
Fair value
adjustments
Unrealised of equity
Unrealised  gain/(loss) on investment
gain/(loss) on derivative ~ PRC dividend  Impairment through other
other financial financial ~ withholding under comprehensive
assets instruments tax ECL model income Total
R HARMH
REE fiEam 2EHAR
HRER  IANKER RS BEREN
B8/ (B8 %&/(FR) +EREENR BHEEXEE ATEEE it
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARBTT

At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NF-F-H - (28) (1,707) 831 (116) (1,020)
(Charged/credited to profit (MkE)/FHABRE

orloss (note 7(a)) (hiz#76) - 87 - - - 87
Credited to other comprehensive income  FAE 2 EYA - - - - 3 3
At 31 December 2019 R=E-NE+ZA=t-H - 59 (1,707) 831 83) (900)
At1January 2020 R=Z-F5-f-A - 59 (1,707) 831 (83) (900)
Credited to profit or loss (note 7(3)) AR (i 7) 180 @) - - - 97)
Credited to other comprehensive income  EFAEAZEYA - - - - 97 97
At 31 December 2020 R-B-B5+-A=+-H 180 (218) (1,707) 831 14 (900)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (8

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBEIETIN - UAREST)

16. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 16. IELEBLH ()

(@) Deferred tax assets and liabilities @ ERRAHMELENRIEEE K
recognised (continued) BEw
Reconciliation to consolidated statement of financial REEE B RPEERET
position:
2020 2019
ok ok .- 3 —T-hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREF T
Net deferred tax assets recognised — R4RA BRI E P HERH
in the consolidated statement FEERIBEEFE
of financial position 1,025 890

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised  FA4E & B TS AR T 5 FR FESR Y

in the consolidated statement REBIEBEFE
of financial position (1,925) (1,790)
(900) (900)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities not b) AEZAHELEREEER
recognised 8E
A deferred tax asset has not been recognised on the AT 2 R TE & B AR A AR
followings:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARBT T
Unused tax losses, net R E) AT IAE 18 F R 223,072 130,172
RRHEYERERA T

ZECTEFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBETIN  AARESITR)

16. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 16. ELEFIE (&)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities not b) RXERHELEHREEE X
recognised (continued) I=REAC )
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of AR PR FE R A AT TE R - Bt
certain unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of AR FR R e SR {5 A B TE RS 18 A IR AE T
future profit streams. The unused tax losses will be BEE - REAMBYIEBREEIE
expired in 1to 5 years. SEREH o
17. INVENTORIES 17. &
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Raw materials R 75,687 140,321
Work in progress EE G 21,652 22,599
Finished goods BUAK TR 17,795 62,486
115,134 225,406
The write back of inventories of RMB2,910,000 for the year BE_T_TFT_A=tHLFER
ended 31 December 2020 was mainly due to certain written BB AR 2,910,000 T ERZHNFAE
down inventories sold during the year. TEEFEME -
The write down of inventories of RMB4,495,000 during the year BE-T-NFT-A=tTHLEFER
ended 31 December 2019 was mainly due to the decrease in EMEARE 4495000 T 2HRELE
estimated net realisable value of certain slow moving FEREETHEFENTENATZRFER

inventories with reference to the usage. Do

1 64 China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BRI T

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EZ R EMEWFIE
2020 2019
k- <ok 3. 3 Z—NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREEFIT
Trade receivables B 5 e kg 77,828 108,187
Less: Loss allowance B e B (22,339) (20,893)
55,489 87,294
Trade deposit for raw materials EMAE SR 68,466 47,267
Due from a related company (note 32(c)) U B N =) (B A 32 (c) 67 71
Due from associates JRE LTSt R ) = 5
Prepayments and other receivables TEAF R IB R FAth FE U kI8 12,028 10,578
Less: Loss allowance W EIERE (1,250) (385)
79,311 57,536
Trade and other receivables RHREMEREE 134,800 144,830
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be TBETFTBEE 5 R EAMERGRIEHE R —F A

recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

Amounts due from a related company and associates are
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

WEIHER R/

JE U — X AR X )
- %,%\&Fﬁgiféz

A UNSE /YRS i

HREYIERER AR
—ROTEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBETIN  AARESITR)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) ~ 18. B 5 & H it FEUFKIE (4)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss RSN - B S RIGRIE (R EERE)
allowances) as of the end of reporting period, based on invoice RERER DT (IR EH BRI -
date, is as follows:

2020 2019
-~ Jom- 3. 3 —T-hEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFT
Within 1 month 1MERRA 20,576 49,821
110 2 months 1221EA 21,361 14,185
2 to 3 months 2Z23fEA 2,986 9,516
Over 3 months 3EAE 10,566 13,772
55,489 87,294
Trade receivables are normally due within 90 days to 180 days B 5 REWRIE— RN A EZE B BRE 90
(2019: 90 days to 180 days) from the date of billing. Further HZE180R(=ZZ—NF:908 %1808 )
details of the Group's credit policy are set out in note 34(a). NEH - AEBEEBORRE—PFFIBE
I 34(a)
The Group recognised impairment loss based on the SR B AR B I 7E 2(0) AT il M & 7T BUSR T 3R
accounting policy stated in note 2(0). REEK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) ~ 18. B 5 & H it FEUFKIE (4)

The below table reconciled the impairment losses on trade FNE 5 K H Ath 8 YR IE R B 5 18 ¥ BR 40
receivables for the year: T:
Due from a
Trade related Other
receivables company receivables Total
"5 e Hth
BRI kNG| B RIE #at

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT ARETT ARETFT

At 31 December 2018 and RZE—N\FE+=-A=+—H
1 January 2019 M=ZE—-NF—A—H 8,119 2 383 8,504

Impairment losses recognised E£XE HRREEE
during the year 12,774 - - 12,774

At 31 December 2019 and }?\:;—n¢+—ﬂ:+—a
1 January 2020 —E-FF—H—H 20,893 2 383 21,278

Impairment losses recognised & RDHERREERE  FE

during the year, net 3,068 - 865 3,933
Amounts written off as RN R

uncollectible (1,622) - - (1,622)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZ-_ZF+-_A=+—H 22,339 2 1,248 23,589
The increase in expected loss rate contributed to the increase TEEBEERENEREE_T_TF+=
in net loss allowance amounting to RMB3,068,000 (2019: A=+—BHIEFENFEBEEEZNAR
RMB12,774,000) for the year ended 31 December 2020. ¥3,068000L( ZFE — NWF: AR

12,774,000 7C) °

In determining the impairment losses for trade and other EEEE S REMERFTERE/BER -
receivables, the Group has made individual assessment on the REBRBRELEE D UELBMF
recoverability of trade and other receivables based on WE MBS 5 K& EH Ath UK A AT e Bl 1%
historical settlement records, past experience and forward- T T B o

looking information.

HRIAEYERBRD A
Ze-zeen 10/
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBETIN  AARESITR)

19. DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 9. fTEEWMIT A
2020
ot~ Jo- 3.3
Assets Liabilities
HE =17
RMB'000 RMB’000
AER%TT AER%TT
Foreign currency contracts INEE & 1) (5T 34(0) & ()
(notes 34(d) & () 1,619 (157)
2019
—T-NEF
Assets Liabilities
BE aE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIT AREFT
Foreign currency contracts NS ) (B EE34(0) & ()

(notes 34(d) & (f) 310 (699)
The derivative financial instruments represented certain foreign PTHESRMTIAERKESHEBIIVNET
currency forward contracts entered with the financial INERBRE X - ZEAHRIBTERARE A
institutions, which are not designated for hedge purposes and BH - WIRAFEFABZEEE o FFEH
are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in SNEIRERE MM A T EZ BN ®E ARG
the fair value of non-hedging foreign currency forward ANFEEmEk - TAINEERIANEE—
contracts were credited to the consolidated statement of profit FRNETH ©

or loss as at end of reporting period. All of the foreign currency
forward contracts are settled within one year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (8

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

20. PLEDGED DEPOSITS 20. EIEFER
Pledged deposits with banks have been placed as security for IR T RITHOERE AERITRIASEBE
banking facilities granted by banks to the Group (note 29). HERITRLE A9 IF (BT 5E29) o
21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. iﬁ%&fﬁ%%f’i%
(@) Cash and cash equivalents in the (@) Z?/c.\ E?I Bk &k kE&RE
consolidated statement of financial ReaEnEXRANNRE KA
position and consolidated cash flow EEMBE

statement comprise:

2020 2019
ot~ -Jo- 223 “E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Time deposits with banks IRITEHER 39,861 30,000
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHERE 98,108 46,024

137,969 76,024
At 31 December 2020, cash and cash equivalents in the RZZEZZTFE+-A=+—0  BH
amount of RMB80,362,000 (2019: RMB22,318,000) are AR #80,362,0007L( = F — NF :
denominated in RMB and are deposited in the PRC in the AR®22318,0007T) MIRE KIR &
ordinary course of business. RMB is not a freely FEEWIHUAARETE  WRAEE
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of BRERFRAFE - ARBIIEA
the PRC is subject to the relevant rules and regulations of BEREBRNER  HPREERESREA
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC X BBUT R R IMNEE BDED MoE
government. FPTIR I o

RRAEYIERERAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBIETIN - UAREST)

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continuea) 21. RERBAEEEN @)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash (b) Fx BE AT A SR = KT P
generated from operations: FHETHE -
2020 2019
—ZZF —T-hEF
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
Wizt AR%TR ARETT
Loss before taxation BRELAEE (97,218) (64,303)
Adjustments for: AT BIB(EL % -
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEARESFF S
and debenture 6(a) 155 1,802
Interest expense on lease liability HEAEBENFSHAY é() 7 13
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BEREED
equipment e 6(c) 35,021 21,557
Depreciation of land use right included BETGREEEN T
within right-of-use assets EREZITE é(c) 1,519 1,017
Depreciation of leased properties BREFEREEEN
included within right-of-use assets HEMEZNE é(c) 149 150
Changes in fair value of derivative TEeBMIARNFEED
financial instruments (1,461) 579
Changes in fair value of other HiemEENRTE
financial assets =) 5(b) 1,201 -
Interest income LR ON 5() (3,344) (347)
Dividend income I ON 5() (983) (531)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, Hj@%% Bz K
plant and equipment wEERE/ ()% 5(b) (1,782) 1,825
Share of (losses)/profits of associates, F%“fﬁ BN w (B8 )/
net of tax wF - BRI 287 (401)
Gain on de-registration of a subsidiary A —HENEARMKE  50) (1,183) -
Gain on de-registration of associates FESE A AR R RS 5() (759) -
Fair value loss on previous held equity LRI AEE A RRED
interest in associate NFERE 5(b) (159) -
Gain on early termination of leases RATRIEAE 2 ks (3) -
Gain on bargain purchase on ERURE-—BHERRZ
acquisition of a subsidiary BB 25 (697) -
Equity-settled share award scheme PARRREAE B AR 1) 528D
expenses HEIRX 28 6,075 -
Impairment losses on property, ME - BE RkE
plant and equipment HEEE 5(b) 24,641 638
Expected credit loss on financial assets @9; BENBHEEESRE 3,933 12,774
(Write-back)/Write-down of inventories & (Bm),/ s 50) (2,910) 4,495
Provision for onerous contracts }Eﬂﬁ!é} EE:g - 293
Provision for medical expenses BRI EE 5,500 -
Write-off of interest in an associate B AR 2 s = 456
Write-off of payables and amount due JE 0 R JE A< A
to a related company 2 s = (493)
Changes in working capital: BEESEY:
Decrease in inventories HFERL 113,320 115,586
Decrease in trade and B 5 R H M RN
other receivables w 10,767 54,642
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 R H b RN RIER (3,225) (1,494)
Increase/(Decrease) in contract liabilities — &#4y& & (3ghn),/# 4 1,509 (18,847)
Cash generated from operations (R IRETIEIE & 90,360 129,411
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

/T\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B8

BB HRRNE @

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

C UABEHEZTR)

22. EZRHEMENRE

2020 2019
fd- Ja- 3 —NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBF T
Trade and bills payables (note i) B O EMNFIERENEE
(Mfatii) 14,092 13,039
Contract liabilities AHAEE 5,698 4,213
Due to associates JE - Bt & X ) = 14,281
Due to a director N —RESE 13 13
Other payables and accruals (note i) HAb eI R EF B A
(Ktazi) 17,329 16,806
37,132 48,352

Notes:

Balance mainly represents salaries, wages, bonus and other accrued
benefits, and payables for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment.

Included in the trade and bills payables were bills payables of
RMB10,574,000, which were pledged by land use rights and buildings
(note 29).

The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are
unsatisfied as of the end of the reporting period. The Group expects the
transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied performance obligations will
be recognised as revenue when the Group transfers goods to the
customer.

HEHEIBETS TA- ?EZI&HHMEEHE%IM
REBEYE - BERREORNK

BIORNPTRARENZBREEERNREARY
10,574,0007T + £ 13 (8 A4 S A8 3K (Pl
29) °

BHAREREREPRIEERTKEORE
MR SERBE - ARBEHSEERTHEY
RENRSERBRARERATFPEEE MR-
RS o

PRMEYIERAERATE
ZECTEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR A IS R I A ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B RIN » AN EREEFIR)

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

iil. (Continued)

The contract liabilities represented receipt in advance from customers for
goods that have not yet been transferred to the customers. As at 31
December 2020 and 2019, the contract liabilities mainly included the
receipt in advance received from sales of wooden products. The contract
liabilities increased by RMB1,485,000 (2019: Decreased RMB18,848,000)
during the year ended 31 December 2020 primarily due to the increase in
sales requiring receipt in advance.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract liabilities
recognised are as follows:

Sales deposits

When the Group receives a deposit before the delivery of goods, this will
give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue
recognised exceeds the amount of the deposit. The amount of the sales
deposit, if any, was negotiated on a case by case basis with customers.

22. ESRHEMEMSFIE®)

Hfat - (&)

(#)

BHAREEREHRATEFPFEBRENNEP X
FH-R-B_ZER-_F-NFT_A=1+—
B AaNERI2aREEARMKE ‘E’ﬁEHﬁZ
FHo-BE-_T_TFT_A=t—HLFE"
HEEE AR 1,485,000 T (ZF— N4 : ﬁz
D ANRH18,848,0007T) £ 2N HE REMR
THH) S EE IR -

BERZAWEESEBREEN—RIER
mF

HEES
EAKEEINENZAREIREE - e
BHOREREEASOAE  EIEINUARR
ReEE - HERTNWEB(WA) DIREAE
BEREEFHEME -

2020 2019
ZEIEF —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBFT
At 1 January n—A—A 4,213 23,133
Amounts included in contract liabilities RFERNERBRERNER
that was recognised as revenue BERYIERNRIE
during the year (1,613) (23,133)
Cash received in advance of FRBIEW BN F ALK
performance and not recognised ERBWEHIRE
as revenue during the year 3,098 4,213
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 5,698 4,213

Amounts due to associates and a director are unsecured,
interest free, and repayable on demand.

All of the above balances are expected to be settled within one
year or repayable on demand.

ENBERFRESNFAREERR %
/uxﬂﬁngzté\}i °©

A L EHTERT R — FRENRIRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B TR T (E

n\/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)
22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 22. E5 &EﬂﬂFEﬁEﬁE (%)
(@) A ageing analysis of the trade and bills @ BZENREBEBREMNER
payables is as follows: BRI AT
The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables as at the RMERR - BEZAMIR - EH
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is FEAST SR IE K FE S R IR B9 BR R 93 T 0
as follows: T
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTIT
Within 1 month TMEAR 1,215 7,121
10 2 months 1Z2218A 451 2,867
2 t0 3 months 22318 A 2,618 404
Over 3 months HBE3EA 9,808 2,647
14,092 13,039
23. LEASE LIABILITIES 23. HEAE

The Group leases an office premise in Hong Kong and the
movement in lease liabilities during the year is as follows:

AEBEREHRE-—HBRRE  AFEZ
HEAEEHFERMOT

)l

2020 2019
—EEE —E-NEF
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARKTT

Balance at 1 January R—A—BW&EH 219 359
New leases g 165 -
Interest charged (note 6(a)) B (Mt 6@) 7 13
Payment of lease liabilities NHEEE (215) (158)
Derecognition of lease liabilities ERIEFERIRAIAR L E

on early termination of leases ZHEEE (95) -
Exchange difference PEHER (5) 5
Balance at 31 December Rt-—A=+—884&% 76 219
Less: Non-current portion B IERNEREL S (53) (32)
Current portion BIHREL 5 23 187

FRAEMERERAR
T NE;#& 173



174

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B MR R M ()

;\\IT\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B RIN » AN EREEFIR)
24. DEBENTURES 24. &%
2020 2019
—BBF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT ANEBT T
Balance at 1 January R—A—B8&EH 18,035 17,620
Interest expenses FEMY 133 549
Interest paid EXAFE (102) (528)
Exchange difference ENEE (951) 394
Settlement (note (i) wE(KE ) (12,580) -
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—H8&H% 4,535 18,035
Less: Non-current portion B FERNEREE S (4,535) (18,035)

Current portion BNEAES 5

The Group entered into agreements with two independent
third parties for issuing unsecured debentures with principal
amounting to HK$20,000,000 in aggregate during the year
ended 31 December 2018. Its carrying amount was
approximately at HK$5,343,000 and HK$20,133,000 as at 31
December 2020 and 2019. The debentures bear interest at 3%
per annum, unsecured and repayable on 29 August 2022.

Interest expenses on the debentures are calculated by applying
the interest rate of 3% per annum (2019: 3%) to the carrying
amount of debentures.

Note (i): On 22 December 2019, the Company entered into the subscription
agreements with debenture holders to partial capitalise the principal
amounts of debentures together with accrued interest thereon in the
amount of HK$14,824,000 (equivalent to RMB13,279,000 and
RMB12,580,000 as at 31 December 2019 and the completion date of 14
February 2020, respectively) by issuing an aggregate of 123,533,400
new shares at HK$0.12 (note 27(b)). The capitalisation was completed
on 14 February 2020.

HE-_Z-N\F+_A=+—HIFE"

REBEEMEBEIE =]z - A%
777N % 4258 520,000,000 7% 7T /) £ 3K 1 (&
HF o R_ZEZEFRZZF-NFTA
=+—H - EEEHEEHX 45,343,000 7T &
20,133,000/ 7T - BEHIRFE B3%TE - &
B AR -_ZE-—FN\A-T+HAEE-

BB BB EF 3% E(=
—NE 3% EARESFZRAEAEHE -

K@) - RZF—NAF+_A=+=H ERAFHEEH
FE AT RB R - BBUER0.12BTE
174 #£123,533, 400 R #T A% - D EH A&
el ,%\14,824,000/9§7t(ﬁé_§*ﬂ¢
FTZAZT—BREKBH_T_TF_A
+H S BIITE AR 13,279,000 7T R AR
12,580,000 7T ) & AME (M 3£ 27(b) - EAREE
RZTFTF_A+HBTK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBEIETIN - UAREST)

25. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 25. WEBHIEE 1 &)

On 28 August 2020, Fujian Zhangping, a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the sales and purchases agreements
with two fellow shareholders of Ruisheng Wood, pursuant to
which, Fujian Zhangping acquired the remaining 55% equity
interests of Ruisheng Wood (the “Ruisheng Wood Acquisition”)
at an aggregate cash consideration of RMB1,650,000. Prior to
the Ruisheng Wood Acquisition, Fujian Zhangping held 45%
equity interests in Ruisheng Wood which was accounted for as
an investment in an associate (note 13). Upon the completion
of the Ruisheng Wood Acquisition on 10 September 2020, the
previously held equity interests have been re-measured at their
fair value of RMB1,920,000 with a gain on remeasurement of
RMB159,000 (note 5(b)) recognised to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Ruisheng Wood as at 10 September 2020, being the completion
date of the Ruisheng Wood Acquisition, were as follows:

R_E-—TENA=-+N\HB " X2FWE
NEREERE T Eis 5 A4 E 8RR
FIVEERS Bt @EEETRER
5K 45 T #A H9 55% B RE (T U BB I B AR 45
&) IR REARAR1650,0007T °
WEIsFREB 2R REBETH G
FAREEAS%IHE - ZEFEARARBE
NERE (M5E13) - B S ARSI ER
TE-TFENATHEHERE  EREEN
B 2R E A {E A R 1,920,000 7T HETT
B E MEFTEREZABARE
159,000 7T (K15E5(0) * BELREEEEKT
TR o

WAAGEEBR T -TFAA+HAEBRS
REBERBNTXAR) WA BNEERA
(ECOPASEIEVINNE

Fair value

recognised

on

acquisition

Rk AERER2

HAFE

RMB’000

AR¥TR

Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 804

Trade receivables B S REUGRIA 3,210

Prepayments and other receivables SEURES &E’r&r&‘% 442

Inventories T8 138

Cash and cash equivalents Be RS ED 23
Trade payables B 5 EN R (112)
Accruals and other payables FEET B R & Efh FE A 50E (238)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value AHERNEEFERE UATEZ) 4,267
Gain on bargain purchase (note 6(c)) HEWREEIRES (Mt 6(c) (697)

Total consideration BRE 3,570

Consideration satisfied by: REZFAHR :
— Cash —\/4 1,650
— Remeasurement of previously held equity — RRTRIRAE NGBS ANREEN

interests in Ruisheng Wood B 1,920

Total consideration BRE 3,570
mﬂi#%?*ﬂxﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ

TECTEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR A IS R I A ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

25. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

The gain on bargain purchase of RMB697,000 has been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (note
6(C)).

An analysis of cash flows in respect of the Ruisheng Wood
Acquisition is as follows:

C UAABRHEZTR)

25.

44l = NGl )

HBREUWE AR 697,000 LERGEE
mieﬂpﬁﬁm(wsfé )) e

EMBAAGEKBEENRSRES T
T

2020

—ECZTF

RMB’000

ARBTT

Cash consideration HeRE 1,650
Cash and bank balances acquired EBIRS RIRITE (23)

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included & EFEFELMIRERETBIENRES K

in cash flows from investing activities ReEEYRLFEE 1,627

Following the completion of the Ruisheng Wood Acquisition, mEREBRETKE  WIANEBEH

Ruisheng Wood contributed RMB119,000 of consolidated
revenue and RMB1,388,000 of consolidated profit to the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Had the Ruisheng Wood Acquisition been taken place at the
beginning of the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the
consolidated revenue and consolidated loss of the Group
would have been RMB493,787,000 and RMB110,197,000,
respectively, for that financial year.

E_E-_TF+-_A=+—HILEEARK
£ B HERASWAARE 119,000 T M ERE
AR 1,388,000 7T ©

EMARGEERKERBE T _TF+=
A=+—BZMBFEFN#ET  AIAE
EZV B FENGEBARGEEED R
B AN B 493787000 K A R
110,197,000 7T °

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBEIETIN - UAREST)

26. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 26. HEKB QA
On 8 March 2019, the Company entered into an agreement to RZZE—NF=AN\B ' KRR LIH#E
dispose of the entire issued share capital of a subsidiary, Merry LAIR & (B 10,0008 T (HERHARKE
Garden Biomass Energy Holdings Limited, for a cash 9,00070) HEMBAREBRE ALt
consideration of HK$10,000 (equivalent to approximately /J% BERARZEEEEITIRA - B
RMB®9,000). The net liabilities disposed of, the resulting gain on MR ZHEEBEFE  MEEANLE
disposal and the net cash inflow in respect of the above Llﬁzﬁétxﬁfﬁfﬁiﬁ FRRWAT -

transaction were as follows:

2019
E—NF
RMB'000
AREET T
Net liabilities disposed of: HEARSBHE:
Due from an intermediate holding company JEUR — R BE IR iR A ) =
Cash and cash equivalents BeRESEED 37
Due to ultimate holding company JET ER AP AR 2 A 2
Due to a fellow subsidiary FERT—K B 2 E A 7 43)
(t))
Gain on disposal: HEWKS -
Consideration received BRRE 9
Net liabilities disposed of EHREFAE 8
Cumulative currency translation reserve in respect B HEF AR GM@ 2 2515
of the subsidiary disposed of reclassified from MERREERENSEZ
equity to profit or loss on disposal HEBR -
17
Net cash outflow: REBRH -
Total consideration R E 9
Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of B BEHEZRERASESED 37)
(28)*
# Balances less than RMB1,000 # HBEE N AR 1,000 7T
* In the opinion of the Directors, the net cash outflow was not disclosed * EFRA  HRReRLFEHAEERSHT
separately in the consolidated cash flow statement as the amount was BB AT EEGERSRERNEEHE -

insignificant to the Group.

mﬂi#@?ﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬂ"T
“e-erra |//



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBIETIN - UAREST)

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27. EX - FER

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances BREREEGEER S Y RER

of each component of the Group’'s consolidated equity is set ERERE AR E T 4R T%EEQEJU%E ZIN/NS|

out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details BRI REVRERNESF BN

of the changes in the Company’s individual components of T

equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below:

(@) Movements in components of equity (@) HE=mIPHHEE

The Company S

Share Share Exchange Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity

k* Riam ERGH RHBR L
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

ABETR  ARETL  ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR

Balance at 1 January 2019 RZS-0E-A—-AmER 25,944 678,732 52,252 (65,816) 690,712
Loss for the year EREE - - - (36,090) (36,090)
Other comprehensive income for the year R E M iR LE - - 14,804 - 14,804
Total comprehensive income for the year  ERZENGELES - - 14,804 (36,090) (21,286)

Balance at 31 December 2019 and R-B-A&E+-B=1+-AR

1 January 2020 —E_EE-B-RMER 25,544 678,732 67,056 (101,906) 669,426
Profit for the year EREF - - - 14,321 14,31
Other comprehensive income for the year  ERE Ml 2E - - (34,681) - (34,681)
Total comprehensive income for the year N2 AWHEE - - (34,681) 14,321 (20,360)
Issue of new shares (note 24() KRB (MR ) 5,242 7338 - - 12,580
Issue of new shares under share award BERMREHEET

scheme (note 28) ikt (Wi 28) 1,805 397 - - 5,777

7,047 11,310 - - 18,357
Balance at 31 December 2020 A_2_2E+ZAZ+-H
b3 32,591 690,042 32,375 (87,585) 667,423

1 78 China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B RS ER R M (')

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)
27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27. EX - RERRE &)
(Continued)
(b) Share capital (b) AR
Authorised and issued share capital EERBBITRAE
2020 2019
Number of Number of
Par Value shares Amount Par Value shares Amount
BiAE(E B E &8 RiAEE BOEE +E
HK$ ('000) HK$'000 HKS ('000) HK$'000
BT T TET B Tk TiEn
Authorised: EE:
At 1 January »—A—H 0.05 2,000,000 100,000 0.01 10,000,000 100,000
Effect on share consolidation Ry &6t S 2
(note () (H=0) = = - 005  (8,000,000) -
At 31 December R+-A=1+-B 0.05 2,000,000 100,000 0.05 2,000,000 100,000
2020 2019
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
BR&E &8 E Ead
('000) RMB'000 ('000) RMB'000
T AEBTT & ARETT
Ordinary shares, issued HiER BTRERE:
and fully paid;
At 1 January w—A—H 617,667* 25,544 3,088,335* 25,544
Effect of share consolidation (note (i) RO AHOZE ) - - (2,470,668) -
Issuance of new shares (note 24(i) BRI (W 240) 123,533* 5,242 - -
Issue of new shares under share RERDRE)EIRT
award scheme (note 28()) ;R (HE2800) 42,550* 1,805 - -
At 31 December R+-ZA=+—H 783,750* 32,591 617,667* 25,544
Notes: Mt -

0]

Share consolidation on the basis that every five issued and
unissued shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company into one consolidated share of HK$0.05 each was

effective on 22 October 2019.

Shares of HK$0.01 each.

Shares of HK$0.05 each.

0] B & GF Y ER AR R BIR ARG R
001 BTEBITRABITRMNA—REREE
005 B THAHBROR -_ZE—NE+AE=-+=8

E

' SHIREE.01ETHMN -

* FIEE.0SETTH ©

FREE

RRIEYIZERER AR
TEFR

g
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

0}

(ii)

(i)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the issue of
the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company would be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
currency differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of the entities with
functional currency other than Renminbi. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(dd).

Statutory reserve

Transfers from retained profits to PRC statutory
reserve are made in accordance with the relevant
PRC rules and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company’ s subsidiaries
established in the PRC and were approved by the
respective boards of directors.

C UAABRHEZTR)

27. EX - BEERE (®)

© BHEEEKLBEH

(M

(ii)

(iii)

R4EE

P fn i B e A2 B Ity HE
BT RN A BT URER P A
FIAZ FRHZERE -

RIEFEHERANE AR F
it ERANESATHD K
FTARBRBRR - HEEREES
DIRACE AR - NRRZAR
MEN —RERBRESHIN
&7 o

B R

RiEHRREUAREUID
jjau‘a BImESHE R ®
RIFEENMBINEZHE - &
A TR BN T 2dd) PrEi &
FHERRBEHE -

EERE
BREERNEEZERENET R
TR B A8 78 Fh B AR A1 K 3R 15
L‘A&$"ﬂ€¢ﬂﬁkié’ﬂﬁ%
NEIREBERMBEST - I
EREERESSIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( B 5= BTSN

BRI T

27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(©

(d

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iii) Statutory reserve (Continued)

The subsidiaries in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of its after-tax profit, as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to statutory general reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must
be made before distribution of a dividend to
shareholders.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make
good prior years' losses, if any, and may be
converted into paid-up capital provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25%
of the registered capital.

Distributable reserves

The aggregate amounts of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company were
RMB634,832,000 (2019: RMB643,882,000).

After the end of the reporting period, the Directors
proposed no final dividend (2019: proposed no final
dividend).

C UABEHEZTR)

27. EX - BERRKRE @)

©

(d

EEEE N B/ )

(iii)

EERE(E)

B B BT /B8 2 R ZE % 10% Y
BREEN(EDRETES
FHRAIRROIEE) E—RE
TR EERBESRETM
BEARE50% 1L - Eﬁéifﬁfﬁ
AR MR R 7 RBE A #E

—OEERBAIRARBERT
FEEBR(ME)  LAHHE
BB - EBREBRENE
BSEREME AR 25% -

oIk

AIAIRABIERSITEAD IR FiEE
55 AR 634,832,000 (ZFE— 1
£ AR#643,882,0007T) ©

REmEHRAERE  EFLEZHKR
BFRHBE (ZE—NF TEHIK
BRHIRE) ©

RRAEYIERERAR
ZE_TFEFER
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27. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)
(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurate with the
level of risk and by securing access to financing at a
reasonable cost.

The Group defined “capital” as including all components
of equity. Trade balances arise in the course of ordinary
business are not regarded by the Group as capital. On
this basis, the amount of capital employed by the Group
at 31 December 2020 were RMB771,205,000 (2019:
RMB811,378,000).

The Group manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustment to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the
Group.

Except for the banking facilities which require the
fulfilment of certain covenants as disclosed in note 24,
neither the Company nor any of the subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements in
either prior or current year.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
& B 1% 2% MY 5T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBIETIN - UAREST)

27. EX - BEERE (®)

©)

BEARER
AEBEEBEANTZEHEEFE BHE
[RBR A2 E UC AL K 2= i S AR TS TE (B B
BIESEKARGRE  REAEE
HERLLMEESN  INMEHEEEE AR
R REIHR R AHERFE BT R

o

AEBRHEX] EEABIEMARE

o AEEE—WEKBIRFE
B 5 R ERSRITE RN AR
BER o R EE - AEER T =
TE+-RB=+—BHEENEARGHE
A AN R 7712050000 ( —F— 1
F: AR¥811,378,0007T) °

AEEEREBEARE  UHRES
PR MMM AEER - ZEEMAT LR
BEEMEEME2ERNKRAESR
E’Jfgi*”&f%ﬁj U EARENE
RN E B E AN EITHE

BR/R AN FE 24 PRI BB 0 5 T 224
MRTTEEN RBEFEAARF
€ ARBSALFIMERRHBEE
SNERBEINE AR H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4T E B IS R R MY E T ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME

28. BRESTEINK R G RBEE

(@) Share option scheme (@) RS
Pursuant to a resolution passed by all the shareholders BEZEBRENR-_Z—=FA+Hh

on 15 June 2012, the Company has conditionally adopted
the share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of recognising and acknowledging the
contributions the eligible participants had or may have
made to the Group. The Board may, at its discretion,
grant options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to
the Directors (including executive Directors, non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors), the directors of the Company’s subsidiaries
and employees of the Group and any other persons
(including consultants or advisers) whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or
will contribute to the Group. The Directors were
authorised to grant options to subscribe for shares of the
Company and to allot, issue and deal with the ordinary
shares pursuant to the exercise of options granted under
the Share Option Scheme and to take all such steps as
may be necessary and/or desirable to implement and
give effect to the Share Option Scheme. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and under any
other share option schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in
issue immediately following completion of the Global
Offering (as defined in the Company'’s prospectus dated
25 June 2012), being 100,000,000 shares, excluding any
shares that may be issued under the options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme (or any other share option schemes of the
Company), unless otherwise approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting and/or
such other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time.

BEBBRIRER - ARBIE A BER
M—IEREAR T B ([ RAERT &) -
B TE R EaT B8kl pe AR R B 1
LERMEERSZEAL - RIFER
EEE EFETRNERES (2
WITES « ERITES RBIIERTT
BEE) AQFMBARIZES A
EEEEREFSEENERAGE
FASEHAEEEL BRI TR EMA
T(BEEREMRER) BRHER
o EERBER D EREARER
nalfkn - RBELE - BITREERE
B AR b T B AT % L B AR S T T 1 3%
TRIL @R - AR EI TR
SFERFEzERmME AUERSE
BRI o RBEIRERT 8 R E
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continued)

(@) Share option scheme (continued)

Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting, the number of shares that
may be granted to an eligible participant under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including both exercised and outstanding
options) shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue of the
Company within any 12-month period. Any grant of
options to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is required to be approved by
our independent non-executive Directors. Unless
otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules, the number of shares
that may be granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive Director or their respective
associates under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding options) shall not exceed 0.1%
of the shares in issue, having an aggregate value in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised, and the period during
which an option may be exercised will be determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion, however, no options
shall be exercised 10 years after they have been granted.
The subscription price of a share in respect of a particular
option shall be not less than the highest of (a) the official
closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of
the Stock Exchange; (b) the average official closing price
of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of
a share. The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from
the date it is adopted and shall remain effective within a
period of 10 years from that date.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continued)

(@)

Share option scheme (continued)

From the date that the Share Option Scheme became
effective and unconditional and up to the date of this
annual report, no share options were granted under the
Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
ordinary shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 78,375,040, representing 10% of the
issued shares of the Company.

Share award scheme

The Company, pursuant to a resolution passed on 14
December 2020, adopted a share award scheme (the
“Share Award Scheme”) for the purpose of (i) to align
interests of eligible persons, being the employees,
directors, officers, consultants or advisors of any member
of the Group, with those of the Group through ownership
of ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
dividends and other distribution paid on Shares and/or
increase in value of the Shares; and (ii) to encourage and
retain eligible persons to make contributions to the long-
term growth and profits of the Group.

The aggregate number of shares to be made pursuant to
the Share Award Scheme (the “Award Shares”) will not
exceed 20% of the total number of issued Shares of
741,200,400 Shares. The aggregate number of Award
Shares which may be awarded to a selected person
under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 2% of
the total number of issued Shares as at the adoption date
of the Share Award Scheme.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined
by the board of directors, the Share Award Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing
from the adoption date.

The Award Shares, once issued, will rank equal to all
other issued Shares at that time and are not subject to
any vesting condition. The selected persons will therefore
have the right to receive dividends, dispose of and/or
exercise the rights of the Award Shares as per his/her
own wishes once the Award Shares were issued.

C UABEHEZTR)
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continued)

(b) Share award scheme (continued)

On 14 December 2020, a total of 42,550,000 Award
Shares were issued to 12 eligible persons (the “Selected
Persons”). The Award Shares were settled by way of
issue and allotment of new Shares on 30 December 2020
pursuant to the general mandate. The 42,550,000 Award
Shares represented approximately 5.74% of the total
number of issued Shares and approximately 5.43% of the
total number of Shares in issue as enlarged by the issue
and allotment of the Award Shares. The Selected Persons
are (i) senior and middle management of the Group and
(i) staffs who served the Group for a long period of time.

The 42,550,000 Award Shares had neither any vesting
period nor condition, accordingly, the fair value of
42,550,000 Award Shares were determined by the closing
market price of the Company on 30 December 2020, of
which, expenses of HK$6,808,000 (equivalent to
RMBS5,777,000) were recognised as expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2020 and the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements, the Company
had 105,690,080 Award Shares available for awarding to
eligible persons under the Share Award Scheme, which
represented approximately 13.49% of the issued Shares
as at the respective dates.

C UAABRHEZTR)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

28. BRESTEIR KRG ERE @

(0)

B gbak~3 I 1E )]

RZZEZZTF+ZA+WEABE 2R
NEGEBAT(EFEALDED
& $£42,550,000 B SEEIAS 17 - 22 DA%
MERE—REER = _TF+=
A=+ H%77 RELE 42,550,000 %
HERNOEERESBITRMOEELD
5.74% M 48 81T M AR B SRER D IEXR
BB BEITIRMBELS.43% - EFE
ATEFBRNALEENTEEEEA
B RiVAAEERBERBME

o

H

42,550,000 % 22 ) A 19 7 % 1 1] 7 /8B
HASR 54 - At + 42,550,000 A% 52 B
B2 AFEDEAARRZZEZZ
F+-A=+BzZHmEET H
H 6,808,000 ST (B E RN ARE
5,777,000 7C) A 2 R 4R & Bk E
RAEFZ -

RZZ=ZZF+ZRA=+—HBRItZ
REVBRERMLEZB  ARREA
105,690,080 i 22 &) % 7 7] 1R 4% i 19
BEETEETEERALT  HREE
HEAE BT £ 13.49% ©

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

29.

30.

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B8

BANKING FACILITIES

C UABEHEZTR)

29.

The Group entered into two banking facilities with two PRC
banks in aggregate amount of RMB97,700,000 (2019:
RMB151,712,000), of which, as to RMB27,485,000 (2019: Nil)
has been utilised for the settlement of the Group's bill payables

(note 22).

The secured banking facilities are secured by certain of the
Group's land use rights, buildings and pledge deposits
amounting approximately RMB14,764,000 (2019:

RMB18,376,000) (note 11),

RMB31,780,000 (2019:

RMB108,102,000) (note 11) and RMB4,590,000 (2019:

RMB7,612,000) (note 20), respectively.

COMMITMENTS
(@) Capital commitments

30.

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2020
not provided for in these consolidated financial

statements were as follows:

RITHEARGE
AEBEHEMRPEARITFI L MIBRITHE
REE - #e8EAa AR 97,700,000 (=
T—NF  AR¥151,712,000) » Efh AR
#07,485000 (=B —HF : E)Z AR
HEHEAREENENER(HEE22)

BIEMBITRE UANEEE T L A -
BEFREEZEAEFEXSIERAD
ARM14764000L(ZE—NGF : AR
18,376,0007t) (M7£11) + AEREE 31,780,000
TL(ZZE—NF : AR¥108,102,0007T) (P
F£11) & AR 4,590,000 ( = F — L4 -
AR#7,612,0007T) (Ki5E20) °

(@) BEARHEIE
RZZE-_ZF+_A=+—BHHEXE
TRV ERGEMBHRENBENE
AEPET -

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥®TT ARBTT

Contracted for - 23,642

Capital commitments as at 31 December 2020 were
mainly related to the construction of a new
manufacturing complex (the “Suspended Property”) for
Zhangping Kimura. As disclosed in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Directors has
decided to suspend the construction of the Suspended

Property.

R-ZB-EF+-_A=+—H" &K
FAEE B R AE T AN R RELR
ERER ([EEWE]) - HniRa i
BHREMEMEE  ARFES
EARAEREEMENELRYGE -

HREYIERER AR
—ROTEFR
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30. COMMITMENTS (continued) 30. &L )
(b) Operating lease arrangements b) HEHEZH
The Group leases, as lessor, certain industrial properties AEB(EATEAN)BELEHE
and staff dormitory (note 11) in the PRC under operating LZHHMA RN B E T ITEMER
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally BTIBEE(MFEN) BOKR—K
require the tenants to pay security deposits. Rental ZREFPHUNRES - AEERFA
income recognised by the Group during the year was ERzE2 WA B ARE0007T
RMB96,000 (2019: RMB62,000), details of which are (ZZE—NF : AR¥62,0007T) * 5
included in note 5(a) to the financial statements. BRI B wEFES@)
At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease rental RZZZZTF+-A=+—08 " K%
receivable by the Group in future periods under non- ERFEE PRI M T A EEE S S
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as 2978 AR 2R EA A JE B0 AR AT ER A 2 4
follows: N
2020 2019
ot ot 3 2 ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Within one year —FR 533 -
After one year but within two years ~ —F#&EBMRER 518 -
After two years but within three years m4&E =R 592 -

1,643 -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( A BT

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

(@)

financing activities

The table below details changes in Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities.

C UABEHEZTR)

31. mEBE

(@)

B R

BEEELANABE Y
AR
TRERAEBREEDELOES
P2 %

Bank Lease
loans Debentures liabilities Total
BITER "% HEARE #at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRH
(note 24) (note 23)
(BiiF24) (H&23)
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-nE—A—H 91,152 17,620 359 109,131
Cash flows Reng (91,152) (528) (158) (91,838)
Non-cash flows: FEENE
— Interest expenses — M EHEE - 549 13 562
— Effects of foreign exchange —ERYE - 394 5 399
At 31 December 2019 and R-E—-h%+-A=+-HR
1 January 2020 —E_Z%¥—-H-H - 18,035 219 18,254
Cash flows Reng - (102) (215) (317)
Non-cash flows: FHRERE
— Capitalisation v\ d - (12,580) - (12,580)
— New lease —¥HE - - 165 165
— Interest expenses —HEH% - 133 7 140
— Written-off for the year — R - - (95) (95)
— Effects of foreign exchange —ERFE - (957) (5) (956)
At 31 December 2020 A_E_2F+_-A=1+—-H - 4,535 76 4,611

Note: The cash flows from borrowings make up the net amounts of

proceeds from borrowings and repayments of borrowings in the
consolidated cash flow statements.

Wit . ERARERERT  KEEFNRE
TERTEFPTSFIRFE R EEER -

PRMEYIERAERATE
ZECTEFR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBETIN  AARESITR)

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

31.

GMEBEREXRMT#)

(b) Total cash flow of leases b)) HERESH=E
The total cash outflow for leases included in the AR RERNEERS R 2%
statement of cash flows is as follows: NN
2020 2019
ot ok .- 3 —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Within operating activities REESR 7 13
Within investing activities HEEEHA - -
Within financing activities REEENIA 208 145
215 158
() Major non-cash transactions ) FEIFBEXH

The major non-cash transactions during the year ended
31 December 2020 in respect of new shares issued for
the partial capitalisation of certain debentures and for
the equity-settled share award schemes are set out in
notes 24(i) and 28(b), respectively.

BE-T-FF+-AST-AL#
& AMETESBHEAART
ORTARD R AR A A EL RO ST
BN EBHRSTHH HHAN
24(j) 2. 28(b) °
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BRI T

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed in notes 8,
9,13, 18 and 22 of these consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following significant related party
transactions during the years presented.

(@)

Name and relationship with related parties

During the years presented, the Directors are of the view
that related parties of the Group include the following
entities:

Name of party
RS BB

C UABEHEZTR)

32. EXBBARS

Bt S4Ra M B mRMES 91318 %
LR BENBE T BRI NREBRAR
FEALTIIERNBE RS

(@) FAEE
EaRER
RETREE  EERA  FEENH
BTRIE TR -

77 AT N R T B

Relationships
FRf%

Green Seas Capital Limited
Green Seas Capital Limited

Jiangxi Lvyuan Trading Co., Ltd (“Lvyuan”).*
IFEIRE 2 BR AR
(De-registered on 16 March 2020) (note 13(a))
AIZRE S BRAE
(BR=ZZ=TF =R+ "BFH) (M 13@)

Longyan Deliyuan Biomass Energy Co., Ltd.*
EEmEMREMERERAF
(De-registered on 23 November 2020) (note 13(b))
BEEMEFIREMERBER AR
(BER—ZE-_ZTF+—A-+=83#) (W 130b)

Zhangping Ruisheng Wood Structure Materials
Co., Ltd. ("Ruisheng Wood") (Formerly known
as "Fujian Longyan Zhangping Weston Wood
Component and Material Company Limited”)*

A private company controlled by Wu Zheyan.
Wu Zheyan is a director of the Company.
REEEHNLERT - REE/ARAES -

An associate of the Group.

An associate of the Group.

REBZBER

]

An associate of the Group and became a
subsidiary of the Company on 10 September
2020 (note 13(c)).

BEImANEEMB AR AT ([mAKREE])
(A8 A RamETHNMEAREENE
BRAT)
BEIRAREEMEERAR ([HMAEAREE]) AEERNBERR RZETFNATHEKA
(R [REEEETMETFEMEREBMEERAR]  AARBWEAR (FHFE13(0) -
* The English translation of the name is for reference only. * ERBOEXEEEUSE - ZZBHH
The official name of these related parties is in Chinese. HETEBTBRPX -
RREYIERERAT

—ROTEFR

191



192
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBETIN  AARESITR)

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 32. EXRBEHAERS (#)
TRANSACTIONS (continuead)
(b) Significant related party transactions (b)) BEXEBAIRS
Particulars of significant related party transactions during FIRFERNERBE ST ZZ0FED
the years presented are as follows: N
2020 2019
—EZEF —ZT-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Sales of wooden products to Lvyuan MRS E AR R = 112
Sales of wooden products to MIih S AREBHERER

Ruisheng Wood 14,201 17,855
Other revenue from Ruisheng Wood PSRN il g - 6
Purchase of raw materials from A3 SR AR R AR

Ruisheng Wood 17,848 40,392
The Directors consider that the above sales and purchase EERA LREBEBRIGTIAREKE
transactions are entered into with trading terms similar Hi%5 = R SL MR B IERET AL »

to those with third parties.
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BRI T

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(©

C UABEHEZTR)

32. EXBEBHAERS (®)

Amount due from related company (€ FEULEERE A RIFKIA
RMB'000
AREETTT
Amount due from Green Seas &Ik Green Seas Capital Limited 18
Capital Limited
Balance at R
— 1 January 2019 ——Z-hEFE—-H—H 69
— 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 ——E-NEF+ZA=+—HBK
e 69
— 31 December 2020 ——=_F+-“A=+—H 65
Maximum balance outstanding mEAREEER
— during 2020 —RIE_EHF 69
— during 2019 —R-ZE—hF 71
The amount due from related company was unsecured, JEURRAE A RIRUE R EER - 28 K
interest-free and repayable on demand. BERERE -

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest
paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

TEEEEABHHN

AEEEBEREABHH (2EH
HERMEINBIRBENENEAT
EERETREFEEHFENT :

2020 2019

—EEHf —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR AREBT T

Short-term employee benefits 2 HA (R 848 A 2,821 2,116
Equity-settled share award scheme LARR A B ) A1

expenses RERTEIFAX 3,435 -

Retirement scheme contributions IRIREFEIHR 16 10

6,272 2,126

Total remuneration was included in “staff costs” (note
6(0)).

BEM DT ATE TRA] (K&
6(b)) ©

HREYIERER AR
—ROTEFR
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

33.

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

32. EXBEEA RS ()

(e) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to ) BEXRZEAZ EmiREA]
connected transactions
None of the above related party transactions fall under FlBEH A RS TBR ETRAIE
the definition of connected transactions or continuing VYUAEFMATENEER HN T ERE
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the FER S °
Listing Rules.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 33. REREINEMEEREH
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY SEHNE

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial AEBSRTEMEMERATENT

instruments are as follows:

2020 2019
—E-SE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTRT AR¥ETT

Financial assets

Amortised costs:

Trade and other receivables
Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income:
Equity investments

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:

EMAE

EE e et 64,455 95,610
[REEREEEA 4,590 7,612
ReRRSEEY 137,969 76,024

HEE RIZ N FEGTAEM 2 E
Wat o EMEE
BRARE 2,400 3,048

B FEAARD T BEE -

Derivative financial instruments TSR T A 1,619 310
Other financial assets HihemEE 29,174 791
Financial liabilities SMER

Amortised costs: B

Trade and other payables B 5 Rk E A FE FRIE 31,486 43,544
Debentures &5 4,535 18,035
Lease liabilities HEBE 76 219

Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or l0ss:
Derivative financial instruments

B FEAARDNTHBEE -

PTEEBMIA 157 699
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BRI T

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and
commodity price arises in the normal course of the Group'’s
business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to these credit risks is monitored on an ongoing
basis.

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group
places deposits with major financial institutions, which
management believe are of high credit rating. In order to
minimise the credit risk of liquid fund, the Group reviews
regularly the credit rating of the PRC local bank, which
they placed bank deposits in and performs impairment
assessment on bank balances individually.

C UABEHEZTR)

34. TRIEAREER QX FE

EARKENEREKBRETEELEER
BRBETER  MEER - S¥RER
K mERER -

AEBAAENL SRR R AEEEE
ZRBFTIRASREREEBRE REFRN
TR o

(@ =ERR
FERNEERRIEREESRE
MEKEREN RBR S RESEEY -
EREOHITEERE  THRER
PSS E SRR

AEBEMRSMREFEWMEFNE
EERREASERETANIZSR
#E - BERBESNEERREE
RIK - AEEE SRR B FRRITE
RZPEARIRIT 2 EEFR - 1
RITRERETTERRE TS ©

HREYIERER AR
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CEF-E -l

C UAABRHEZTR)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34. ¢sRiEREENR AFEEH &)
VALUES (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

In respect of trade receivables, the Group usually
requires upfront payment for sales of goods to new
customers. For export sales, the Group generally
requests settlement by letters of credit issued by
financial institutions or by wire transfer for certain
customers with good trading history. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all new customers
requiring credit over a certain amount and are also
performed on existing customers on a periodic basis.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and may take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. The Group
offers 90 days of credit to export sales customers with
good trading history and offers 180 days of credit to the
existing domestic sales customers. Generally, debtors
with significant overdue balances are requested to settle
all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of credit
risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At 31 December 2020,
1.5% (2019: 0.6%), of the total trade receivables was due
from the Group’s largest customer and 23% (2019: 17%),
was due from the five largest customers.

The Group applies the simplified and general approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected 10ss
provision for trade receivables and 12-month expected
credit losses for other receivables, cash and cash
equivalent and amounts due from a related company and
associates.

(@)

EERE @)
HREISEBFIAENS  A5EBREE
BRI EEM NN - 5
LOHEMS ASEBREERIUS
BEERAANEHENEEGET
KERLRINELPME ) &EH - K
EEEMBERETEERENTE
PHgRTERME AT - e
BERPEITEBME AT - tLE:T
HEEREFIBAEMEI B 08
BRI RES EEREPR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
& B 1% 2% MY 5T (4

o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( B 5= BTSN

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables, other receivables, cash and cash equivalent
and amounts due from a related company and

associates:

C UABEHEZTR)

(a) TD ;@fﬂﬁ R (#&)

TR BERARBENE 5 E KK

34. sRIABEER AT E®)

1B - Hfp iR fié&iﬁﬁ%{g
- JEHSZ fi] A é‘%@ FNIA I e B
BRAFENEER &%EHHET
T,E\Zﬁﬂ

As at 31 December 2020
R _E_ZEF+_A=+—H

Expected Gross
loss rate carrying Loss
(%) amount allowance
mRAGRE
(%) IREERE BiR% (R
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®TT
Trade receivables BB RIE
Current BNER 3.26% 49,836 (1,627)
Less than 1 month past due wEDR1EA 43.49% 3,143 (1,367)
1to 3 months past due BHA1ZE3M[@A 64.67% 1,220 (789)
More than 3 months but less BEA3ME A LA LB
than 12 months past due Dr 1218 A - - -
More than 12 months past due  #H 1218 A LA - 99.35% 1,086 (1,079)
Specific provision for ST TE R (B i
impairment provided* - 22,543 (17,477)
77,828 (22,339)
Other receivables H ft FE Y FRIH
Stage 1 FPEER 7.82% 9,244 (723)
Stage 2 FRER - - =
Stage 3 FIEER 58.99% 890 (525)
10,134 (1,248)
Amount due from & U B Bk > BT IR
a related company
Stage 1 E—IEER 2.99% 67 (2)
* As the Group's historical credit loss experience of certain specific * HRAEEE TREE S BRKIENE

receivables have different credit history (where a one-on-one
credit loss analysis is carried out), the Group adjusted for factors
that are specific to these customers with significant increase in
credit risk.

BEELE TR (ERETERNEERS
B MARERZEERRBRER
FREMNZFFPHENEAZELRE -

HREYIERER AR
—ROTEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A E B IS R R MY EE ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B T5) » LUAREEZITR)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34. ¢sRiEREENR AFEEH &)
VALUES (continued)

(@) Credit risk (continued) @) EEER% @

As at 31 December 2019
RZE—hF+ZA=+—H

Expected Gross
loss rate carrying Loss
(%) amount allowance
78 BB R X (%) FREEARE EStE R
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTE ARETR

Trade receivables BHBBRE
Current BNER 0.95% 78,391 (750)
Less than 1 month past due mE DR 1EA 3.19% 1,326 (42)
1to 3 months past due A1 =31@A 6.88% 23 )
More than 3 months but less B EA3{E A LA F1B
than 12 months past due L1218 A 19.03% 300 (57)
More than 12 months past due  #H 1218 A LA = 36.89% 11,686 (4,311)
Specific provision for TR E R E R
impairment provided* - 16,461 (15,731)
108,187 (20,893)
Other receivables H fth FE Y TR IR
Stage 1 F—FEER 5.21% 7,349 (383)
Amount due from FEURR B 2 Bl IE
a related company
Stage 1 E—MEER 3.04% 71 @)
Amounts due from R BE A FIRIE
associates (Note) (Bt5%)
Stage 1 1 3.04% 5 —#
# Less than RMB1,000 ' {ER ARH1,0007T
* As the Group’s historical credit loss experience of certain specific * HRAREE TREE 2 BIKHENE
receivables have different credit history (where a one-on-one HIE £ & MER (ERUETEBIERR
credit loss analysis is carried out), the Group adjusted for factors BRI - SARERZSERRRA R
that are specific to these customers with significant increase in EEMOEFREEOERELRE -
credit risk.
Note: The balance excluded prepayment to associates for raw materials. M - BRI ERBNBERRZEMAHIE -

1 98 China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

rE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

B BT M (@)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continuea)

Expected loss rates are based on historical debts
recovery rates over the past 2 years. The rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic data
has been collected, current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

In measuring the expected credit losses, the trade
receivables have been assessed on a collective basis as
they possess shared credit risk characteristics. They have
been grouped based on the days past due.

Trade receivables are written off (i.e. derecognised) when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Failure to
make payments within 180 days from the invoice date
and failure to engage with the Group on alternative
payment arrangement amongst other are considered
indicators of no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Debt financial assets other than trade receivables
determine the ECL based on the 12-months ECLS. The
expected loss rates are simply based on the historical
debts recovery rate and adjusted by forward looking
factors including future economy conditions.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does
not provide any guarantees which would expose it to
credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
set out in note 18.

C UABEHEZTR)

34. sRIABEER AT E®)

(@)

D/\FL 2 (4)

BEHEAXRENBEMFPONELE
TSR o 5% [ 5 & A8 T8 BE DA S Bk FER
L BB R IR B - B AT
AR AR B S R TE ISz &
BERROBIE -

Rt ERBERBER  BS5RUR
HEAR AR EERBRFEMELE
BEEETHE - YERBHREE
IDM -

B S RNGIAERNE AR BRI
i T DAMEH (BVBUBRERR) - Reg B #
F A 180 A AN R RAAKE
R AR A R AN SREN 1R 75 1
EA BB E IR EE -

SR 4380 A 7 S DR B O FE M SRR Bl
HIY B W RCEROAR B R ©

REZEUHBEIIMEREREE
REBE12EANEREREREET
TEHMERBEX - B R REERE
SREBEKE - WiBH B RREE
FRREARATEERFZETHAE -

EeEERREGESMBERREZAN
BREMBERERNSRSHEEN
REE - AEEYARREABENEE
[2\ B R AE AT HE AR o

BRAREEE Z R FIAR KNS
B E— P EEWEEHNME
18
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( B = BTSN

BRI T

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at 31 December 2020 of the Group's and the
Ccompany’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company are required to settle these liabilities.

C UAABRHEZTR)

(0)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34. ¢sRiEREENR AFEEH &)
VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

MEE TR
ARBNEAATHERLADEAS
BH - BRA A RRROORE - 14
TR B RSO B R it
EBSMBBERB TR HEHEHR
B OETRREEMREDRDES
i -

TRFVNAKERARBEITE S B
BER-Z-_TF+ _A=1+—HK
RpA MR - Z2RBELER
BHNRBRASRE(BRERED
AR B (fief )% BY ) 70 o5 B 45 SR B
RITHMEREFENFENT) ARAE
B RARAWBRAEE L ERENK
FREmEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

/\VT\ ﬁZT.,% $&i§ IzﬁL III_II_ uE)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5B # R4

C UABEHEZTR)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34. €®lEKREER AFE @)

VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continuea) () RBELER &)
2020
ot a2
More than More than Total
Within 1 year but 2yearshut  contractual Carrying
1year or less than lessthan  undiscounted amount at
on demand 2 years 5years cash flow 31 December
BiB—-FE BRZER fEER R+ZB=t+-A
-FRERER DPRZE PREE RenEdE HIREE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
N s ABRRTR N s ABRRTR N3 S
Debentures &5 - 4721 - 4721 4,535
Trade and other payables BHREMENTE 31,486 - - 31,486 31,486
Derivative financial instruments 474452 157 = = 157 157
Lease liabiltties EEBRE 29 51 - 80 76
31,672 4,112 - 36,444 36,254
2019
“E-nE
More than More than Total
Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual Carrying
1year or less than less than undiscounted amount at
on demand 2years 5years cash flow 31 December
BE—F RAZE STRER RTZA=T-H
—ERFEEL BARZE BIRAE ReNeEs WA
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Debentures &% - 13,807 5383 19,190 18,035
Trade and other payables BHRAEMENFE 43,544 - - 43,544 43,544
Derivative financial instruments 474452 69 - - 69 69
Lease liabiltties BEBRE 187 32 - 219 219
44,430 13,839 5,383 63,652 62497




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AR A IS R I A ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B RIN » AN EREEFIR)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34. €®lEKREER AFE @)

VALUES (continued)
() Interest rate risk (©)

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The
Group's interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (a) below.

a. Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s total borrowings at 31 December

RSN
AEENNERREEREER - &
FBFE REE N E B OERDF
BREEBRRSRENERBRA
FEAERR - PERBHEE - A
BT EHRARN TX (@

>

a.  MERRR

TRAIR_FB_TFR—
—hFE+=H :+*E12K%@

2020 and 2019: B BRI AR
2020 2019
Effectlve Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ERfi® &8 ERAI= %
% RMB'000 % RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
Fixed rate borrowings: ERER:
Unsecured debentures BERES 3.13% 4,535 3.13% 18,035
Lease liabilities HEERE 5% 76 5.13% 219
Total net borrowings BiEFE 4,61 18,254
Net fixed rate borrowings as EEENFBIEBER
a percentage of total net borrowings @%ﬁE’Jﬁn It 100% 100%

b. Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's total
borrowings are fixed rate borrowings therefore
sensitivity analysis is considered not necessary.

b. HEBEDN
RZEZZEFR-_FT—NF
+ZA=+—8 ~EBEME
FRRBETEMERER B
FRETERE DN »
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
4T E B IS R R MY E T ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr 5B » UAARESR)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk

34. sRIABEER AT E®)

(d) BEEEER

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through AEBERENEERR  FTEAUE
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables, I EEUINEE AN EE (E
payables and cash balances that are denominated in T ORI R EEIT) sTERNEE X

USD, AUD and NZD, currencies other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

During the years presented, the Group entered into
foreign currency forward contracts with major state-
owned banks in the PRC mainly to acquire RMB to
mitigate against currency risk on receivables, payables
and cash balances denominated in USD, AUD and NZD.
All of the forward exchange contracts have maturities of
less than one year.

The aggregate contract sums of the foreign currency
forward contracts outstanding as at 31 December 2020,
denominated in foreign currency, were US$15,510,000
(2019: US$9,000,000), AUD1,000,000 (2019:
AUD10,000,000) and NZD Nil (2019: NZD7,390,000). At 31
December 2020, these foreign currency forward
contracts with their fair values were recognised as
derivative financial instruments (assets) of RMB1,619,000
(2019: RMB310,000) and derivative financial instruments
(liabilities) of RMB157,000 (2019: RMB699,000) and were
included within “Trade and other receivables” (note 18)
and “Trade and other payables” (note 22) respectively.
The changes in fair value of the foreign currency forward
contracts of approximately RMB1,461,000 (2019: gain of
RMB389,000) were recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2020.

%Eﬁ(?ﬁif’%ﬂ&mlﬁ - EARR
SREB)MITENERRER

BREIR

FIRERER - ANEE P E N AELE
BIRITAIINEEHIENEAARE

IAFEIASE T ~ BIT R B o AHE
H MR - BB RRIB N IR S AR EREY

BRER - FAEEISNES N T
BRI A —FIAR ©

RZZ=ZZF+=A=+—8 " K5
HRISNE R BRI A B LASNE SHE A Y
#8584 15,510,000 £ T ( =T — 1L4F -
9,000,000 7T ) ~ 1,000,0003% 7T ( —
= — 4 : 10,000,0003% 7T ) & Z #
AT (= Z — h & : 7,390,000 % 7
%ﬁ)o%*f*%EqL:szLf
RS INERIE N R T ERDT
iﬁmﬂiﬁ(éﬁmﬁﬁméw,ooo
T(ZZE—N%F : AR#310,00070)
EtTHEeMIA(BE) ARE
157,000c( = — L F: AR®
699,0007T) R - WA BIFFATE S
REMBRZE] (HE18) RIES
REAMEMSTKE] (HE22) - #HEZ
TEoEF+_A=+—HLFE - H
BERIEHHA J?@*@M@/\E’ﬁg
1,461,000 (ZZF—NF - EA
#389,0007T) YN iR A B %EME

RBo

TREMERERAH

—ROTEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A E B IS R R MY EE ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

C UAABRHEZTR)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34. ¢@EREER AFE#)
VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)
The realised fair value loss on settlement of the foreign

currency forward contracts during the year amounted to
approximately RMB10,145,000 (2019: RMB4,542,000).

)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure at
31 December 2020 to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown
in Renminbi, translated using the spot rate at the
end of reporting period. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of the
entities with functional currency other than RMB
into the Group's presentation currency are
excluded.

The Company does not have any other significant
financial assets or liabilities denominated in
currencies other than its functional currency and it
is not exposed to significant currency risk.

usb Euros
L3 BT
RMB'000 RMB'000

(d)

AUD
Ax
RMB'000

15% J_L 09 (42)
FRINERIANEER D BE AT
EEEL A ARE10,1450007T (=
T—NF : ARMEA4,542,0007T) °

(i) E¥xERE
TRAIAEER T _-F
TZA=T+T—HREEBIUE
BB SN BB EHERS RN
CHEREEXBEMELNE
MRk STEZ7 - ERE
UAAREIR - 8RS HRH
REREFROREGE - MEBIAA
REAINNEERIIRNE
BUHHRRBEXAEENZ
FIEELEMEZERARI

ARR L EAT MBS AR
BESAEBEAEDELE I
ME¥EE TEAXEARE
R o

2020

- - 32
CHF JPY NZD RMB
HitikEp A HERT -1

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARRTR ARRTRT AERRTRT AER®TRT AERTT AERRTT AERRTRH

Trade and other receivables BB REtENFE 34,250 - 23,194 - - 702 -

Cash and cash equivalents ReRRLEEY 31,463 117 5,308 - 1 4 168

Pledged deposits BEATR 59 - - - - - -

Trade and other payables BHREMENTE (11,701) - - - - - -
Gross exposure arising from  ERZEERARE
recognised assets EENEREE

and liabilities 54,071 117 28,502 = 1 706 168
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
AT A B IS RIS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 G551

AT ()

C UABEHEZTR)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34. ¢sRiEAREENR AFEE &)
VALUES (continued)

(i)

(i)

(d) Currency risk (continuea) d) SRR @)
Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) E¥RREE)
2019
—ENE
USD Euros AUD CHF Y NZD RV
e BT BT BLED R HAEET AR
RMB'OOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBIO0O
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:R
Trade and other receivables BB REENFE 48,306 - 17,047 - - 9,219 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBELEEN 16,753 114 25 1 1 - 95
Pledged deposits BEATR 62 - - - - - -
Trade and other payables BHREMENTE (1,235) - - - - - -
Gross exposure arising from  BRREERERE
recognised assets EENEREE
and liabilties 63886 114 17,072 1 1 9219 9
Sensitivity analysis (i) BBREDHF
The following table indicates the instantaneous TRIIRATA H At b 2

change in the Group's profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise if foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period had changed at that
date, assuming all other risk variables remained

BOBERT  REBENKRTIEL
i F (R AR 88 7)) B 3 25 HAR
REEZS (AREAL

A EBARR

) T EE A B

Eﬂﬁi“ib R E M D A

constant. Other components of equity would not TZINEIE RSB T E
be affected by changes in the foreign exchange
rates.
R MIZERERA E

g

TEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( B 5= B 175N

C UAABRHEZTR)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34. €®lEKREER AFE @)

VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued) d) SRR @)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (i) BWRBREDI(E)
2020 2019

ol - 1 —IT-NE
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/( Increase/(
(decrease)in  (decrease) in decrease) in decrease) in
foreign profit after tax foreign profit after tax
exchange  and retained exchange and retained
rates profits rates profits
RRZATIR B aT R
SHEER REAHN MEEXR RERF
t#/(TR)  L#/(FR)  EA/(TE)  EA/(TH)
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TR ANEETFT
ush e 5% 7,266 5% 6,066
(5)% (7,266) (5)% (6,066)
Euros B 5% 6 5% 6
(5)% (6) (5% ()
NZD MEET 5% 35 5% 2,197
(5)% (35) (5% (2,197)
AUD B 5% 1,673 5% 3,296
(5)% (1,673) (5% (3,296)
CHF WS 5% - 5% =
(5)% = (5% =
JPY AE 5% =* 5% —*
(5)% = ()% -
RMB against HKS AREHET 5% 8 5% 8
(5)% (8) (5% 8)

* less than RMB1,000 * D AR 1,0007T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented above
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit after
tax and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into RMB at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period
for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of reporting period. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group's presentation currency.
The analysis at 31 December 2019 has been
performed on the same basis.

(e) Commodity price risk

(i)

(if)

The major raw materials used in the production of
the Group's products include, fir and pinewood.
The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the prices
of these raw materials which are influenced by the
global market as well as regional supply and
demand conditions. Fluctuations in the prices of
raw materials could adversely affect the Group's
financial performance. The Group historically has
not entered into any commodity derivative
instruments to hedge the potential commodity
price changes. The Group monitors its commodity
price risk by widening its supply base and performs
bulk purchase when the price of raw materials is
low.

The Group invested in commodity during the year
and is exposed to fluctuations in the prices of
commodity which are influenced by the gold
market. Prices of gold are affected by a wide range
of global and domestic political and economic
factors which are beyond the control of the Group
A decrease in such prices could adversely affect
the Group’s financial performance. The Group will

keep monitor to its commodity investment.

C UABEHEZTR)

34. sRIABEER AT E®)

d) ErRRE

(i)

HREDMN(E)

EXENMAMERERAEE
FERBORBREEN RERI
BENMEEETER AR
B K % S HA R 45 R s o (B

EHMRARBERNKZE
W

BURRE DT R AR INEE [ = 2 &)
EEAZEENEASERESE
MemTAE MZSemIA
FEAREERRE RREERET
HINERE - DT TEIELBR
BINEBEREREAEBZ
PG RE M ESE - B
—E-hF+=ZHA=+—8"
DT ERARME T

e) EmERRR

(i)

AREEASEERFTAEE
FEMEBEEARRRAN - K&
B R 2 S R EHEIR R B
Rk - MazERMBNERT
2 IR 5 &R 3 1SR AR 8
TE - RMBBREKREN R
HAEENHBRREE A
FE o REET BT
EOTE T RSP EBERRER
By  AEEBBIREHER
it R AR R M BB AR B R 1T
HEREN S AEEEMER
B

KE@E/‘iW&EEA?%% gz

RIAgES %%%E’Jﬁuu{ﬁ
T&EJJ, & B ERS ’iﬁ
MERBOR MEEREY
REBEIEREH o *Z%?FW%T
BRR] BERI AN SR E W B TS R IR E
RAETE - AEEBREE
ERmRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A E B IS R R MY EE ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB UARKEIT)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34. ¢sRiEREENR AFEEH &)
VALUES (continued)

(f) Fair values

0}

(i)

Financial instruments not measured at fair
value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
include loans and receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, pledged
deposits, trade payables and other payables
debentures and bank loans.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying value of
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, pledged deposits, trade payables and
other payables, debentures and bank loans
approximates fair value.

Financial instruments measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technigue as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

(f)

AFE

(M

(ii)

REAFEFTENEHMTA

AR TFEAENTRTAS
RERLEWRFE BE AR
EBY  E5REMEEK
B BEAER BSREM
FEARRIR - B MERTTER -

FEY - E5 REMEWRK
B BEAER - BSREM
RN R~ B RRITERZ
fREEEAQFERS -

BAFEIGHNERIA
NFEERHE
TRENAEES BT AR &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS R R I A (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( A BT

C UABEHEZTR)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34. €®lEKREER AFE @)

VALUES (continued)

(f)  Fair values (continued) H 2FE®R
(ii) Financial instruments measured at fair value (i) BRAFEIERNSBIA(E)
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RFEERHE (&)
e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using e HZRME:RAEKX
significant unobservable inputs TABRIBAEND
FE
31 December 2020
—E_25+”-R=+-—H
Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
B—% B8R E=® @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT AR%TRT AR®TR
Financial assets at fair value BATHENAERZZ
through profit or loss TREE
— Derivative financial —TEEBMIT A
instruments (note 19) (Biz%19) - 1,619 - 1,619
— Other financial assets —HihepEE
(note 14(b)) (Hi:#14(b) 28,806 368 - 29,174
Financial assets at fair value BATESARMEZE
through other comprehensive  WiEH£RIEE
income
— Unlisted equity investments  — 3t F IR AR A
(note 14(a)) (B15t 14(a) - - 2,400 2,400
28,806 1,987 2,400 33,193
Financial liabilities at fair value A TFE(ESABZE Y
through profit or loss EREE
— Derivative financial —TEERTA
instruments (note 19) (BfEt19) - 157 - 157
RRHEYERERA T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBETIN  AARESITR)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34. ¢sRiEREENR AFEEH &)
VALUES (continued)

(f)  Fair values (continued) H 2FE®®
(ii) Financial instruments measured at fair value (i) TLAFEIERNEBMIAAE)
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RTFEZRE (E)

31 December 2019
“ZT-NFt+=ZA=1+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— FH Y BET

RMB'0O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETR ARBTE ARETR

Financial assets at fair value BATES AERZ

through profit or loss SREE
— Derivative financial —TEE@mIA

instruments (note 19) (Hiz£19) - 310 - 310
— Other financial —HtemEE

assets (note 14(b)) (Kiaz 14(b) - 791 - 791

Financial assets at fair value BATHESAEMEZE
through other comprehensive Wzt & R EE

income
— Unlisted equity investment  — 3 F IR AR A
(note 14(a)) (Wiaz 14(a) - - 3,048 3,048
- 1,101 3,048 4,149
Financial liabilities at fair value & AF(EE A B2
through profit or loss EREE
— Derivative financial —TEERIA
instruments (note 19) (Hiz£19) - 699 - 699
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and HEZZ-_ZFR-T—NF
2019, there were no transfers between Level 1 and +ZA=+—HLFE F—
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The MEE R T B EER
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between INEEAE =R BEE =R
levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of the e REEMBE AR ATE
reporting period in which they occur. SRR R RS RS R

BLERRRIEREYS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o

BB HRRNE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 555751

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(f)  Fair values (continued)

(ii)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s derivative
financial instruments assets and liabilities
amounting to RMB1,619,000 and RMB157,000,
respectively, (2019: derivative financial instrument
assets and liabilities of RMB310,000 and
RMB699,000 respectively) (note 19) were carried at
fair value, and these instruments fall into Level 2 of
the fair value hierarchy described above.

The fair value of foreign currency forward exchange
contracts in Level 2 is determined by discounting
the contractual forward price and deducting the
current spot rate. The discount rate used is derived
from the relevant government yield curve as at the
end of reporting period plus an adequate constant
credit spread.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair
value measurements

The fair value of the Group’s unlisted equity
securities at 31 December 2020 and 2019 has been
arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out by
an independent professional valuer not connected
with the Group. The unlisted equity securities are
categorised into level 3 of fair value measurement.

C UABEHEZTR)

34. sRIABEER AT E®)

()

NF1E (&)

(ii)

BAVEIIRNERIA(HE)

EZRNTFEGEEHNEE
Bl R A 2%
RZZZTEF+=_A=+—
B AEEMTEeRTIAEE
ERBEESNAARE
1,619,000 7T & A K # 157,000
T(ZE—NF:TEEER
B8 1E 5 Bl A AR310,000 7T
o AR 699,0007T) (HEE19)
BRAFEINE  ZETABR
FMEZRATEEFH -

FE_RRINERISNES DR
FETERMBRAEIER
RANERIRG AR EMEE -
P ARG IR AR 0 5 BRI 4%
%H—ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂlrﬁ%“ = ilIh
WEEEEREMAESL -

F=RMAFEFEEAEE
el R E A B

REBEFLETRAFLFR-Z
ZEFER-ZZE-NFT+ZA
=+ HHRAFEDNREEE
SEEVEBENBE Y EEGE
BDETTHI LB o JF E TR AR RE
HFOBERATEFEE=R -

qlﬂi#@?*ﬂx“ﬁ_ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
TECTEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A E B IS R R MY EE ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G575

C UAABRHEZTR)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34. ¢sRiEREENR AFEEH &)
VALUES (continued)

(f)  Fair values (continued)

(i)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair
value measurements (Continued)

H 2¥FE@=

(il BEAVEIRNWESBMIAGE)

=RAFEGEEHEE
Rl RBAB1% ()

Relationship of

Valuation Unobservahle inputs to
Fair value technique input Range fair value
QFE (AERE TTRRBARE BE BARBALTENRE
RMB'000
AREFT

31 December 2020

A-B_EF+°AZ+-A
Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income
BRATES AR M2 ARG EREE
— Unlisted equity securities 2,400 Market comparable  Discount for lack of 30%  The higher the discount the

companies marketability lower the fair value

—EEmkAES MFA LR E RemERELTE hEdR - DTEWE
31 December 2019

“E-AEt+=A=t+-8
Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income
BRATEFALMZENGEN S BEE
— Unlisted equity securities 3,048 Market comparable  Discount for lack of 30%  The higher the discount the

companies marketability lower the fair value

—EARRES gA AT RzmBRBLTE fiEds  ATERE

The fair values of unlisted equity securities are
determined using the price/book ratios of
comparable listed companies adjusted for lack of
marketability discount. The fair value measurement
is negatively correlated to the discount for lack of
marketability. The Directors are of the view that the
impact of the fair value measurement to changes in
unobservable inputs if a change in those inputs to a
different amount was insignificant.

FLEMBRAESFORFETR
RRERZ i REE R A
EWA A LR T AR MR
REE - A FEFEERZT
BRBEEZaEE - ES
RRHEZEHABBEEEST
R ARAFEFEHETA
BRG ABUBEBNTEEN -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T A BTSRRI EE (8

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34. ¢sRiEAREENR AFEE &)
VALUES (continued)

(f)  Fair values (continued) H BFE@E®
(ii) Financial instruments measured at fair value (i) BRAFEIERNSBIA(E)

(Continued)
Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair FE=RANTFEFEEANEE
value measurements (Continued) BT REA 1% (&)
Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at EREBBRTAIERE AZBIE(E
fair value based on significant unobservable inputs =R EBEATFEIENS/RT
(Level 3) are as follows: ABmEERIT -

Financial assets at FVYOCI
BoFHETAEM
RENBIZEMEE
2020 2019
—E-BF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AERBTT

Unlisted equity securities: I EMRAES
At 1 January wn—H—H 3,048 3,267
Total gains or losses: WS E R4 RR
— in other comprehensive — RBRB AT E A 2
income before tax (648) (219)
At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H 2,400 3,048
(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (il) XBEAFEIENESHEER
not carried at fair value EENATE
The carrying values of the Group’s financial 7R 2 B $R B 7N SR 4 A AN 51 BR
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are MemTEREREEBESEN
not materially different from their fair values as at TTFERZT-NF+ZA
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019. = t—AMATFELEERE

2o

PRAEYERERAR
:‘%:?Eif:“%& 2 1 3



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR E B TS R R MY E T (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BRABBIETIN - UAREST)

35. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 35. REIEEMBARR R

FINANCIAL POSITION

2020 2019
ol =l <3 T—NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Kt AR®TT ARBFIT
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - WE k& 131 214
Interests in subsidiaries R B A TR 15 672,857 688,704
672,988 688,918
current assets mEEE
Deposits and prepayments & RN FOR 36 205
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE BT B8 A B FRIE - 50
Cash and cash equivalents BHERIRESEEYD 612 326
648 581
Current liabilities b4 A=K
Other payables E bR 3R 1,195 1,604
Lease liability HEAE 23 187
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEHMTJ* 407 215
1,625 2,006
Net current liabilities RENERBE (977) (1,425)
Total assets less current liabilities FE#ERREAS 672,011 687,493
Non-current liabilities FEREBAR
Debentures &% 24 4,535 18,035
Lease liability HEAE 53 32
4,588 18,067
Net assets BERE 667,423 669,426
Equity ks
Share capital (&N 27(b) 32,591 25,544
Reserves =4 634,832 643,882
Total equity gRes 27(a) 667,423 669,426

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

31 March 2021.

RIZE-_—F=A=+—HEE=gHE

KR HETIE

Wu Zheyan Xie Qingmei
RYEE WA=
Director Director
E3 s
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS R R I A (4

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( A BT

36. IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Directors consider the
immediate and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be
Green Seas Capital Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI.
This entity does not produce financial statements available for
public use.
37. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the IASB has issued a number of amendments and
new standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2020 and which have not been adopted in the
consolidated financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

C UABEHEZTR)

36.

37.

BEERBRERA
HERA W-T-TF+-A=t—H

—E-hE+-A=Z+—8 K&EEE
% & & & ¥ & 75 AGreen Seas Capital
Limited - 52 A &) 7 2 & 5 2 8 S = Ak
oo WERUEREARMBERE

BE_Z2-_ZF+_A=1-—
B ik E S 8 e R E RIS
Al AT EARBRBHOTRESR
BERSRAMBAREHZE  DRE
%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁaﬁﬁ%EWﬂ&%ﬂ%w
ENBE-T-TF+-A=T—BL#F
EHKLR - BARRGANBREAR
B ERRETHTRRAEEEBN S
I8 o

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RTHEHRRNZ EOEHHMER

Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework
BIFR BT 53Rk S RIS 357 2 185] - BESELE AVt

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16,
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

BIFR BT 5 SR B 957 - BIR & T ERIFE 3957 -
BRI s SR 75, - BIRM SR ELERNE 4K R
BIRR I SR SR 1698 2 85T » FIRERENE — B _[ER

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011), Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
BB B 7 R YE RIS 1057 R BUBR 2 5T 2RI S5 28 5 (=
REERABENTNEECE L HANEELERHE

IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

T——F) ZEFT

1 January 2022
—ZE--F—HF—H

1 January 2021

—F—f—8

No mandatory effective date yet
determined but available for adoption
1 A 72 T 5 i AE R H A - AT R AN

1 January 2023

BB 5 S ERIE 1757 - REEEH —ZE-=%—HF—H

Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions 1 June 2020

BUBR B 75 R & YE RIS 1657 2 1£5] - Covid-19 /AT & Rl % —ZE-TFXA—H
RRMEYIERERLE

—ROTEFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
A E B IS R R MY EE ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B T5) » LUAREEZITR)

37. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 3. BE-FE=EF+ZR=t+—
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS BLEFEEEMERERNE
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE Rl MR EBAIRZENAEE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (continued) - 3€))

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RTIEMRARNZEOEHRER

Amendments to IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023 and note (a)
BB EERIE 1755 - REEEXD —E-=F—F—AKkKE@E
Amendments to IAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023 and note (b)
Bl @B 198 2(85] - BEHE A IEAIE —E-=F—A—BKkHiED)
Amendments to IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: 1 January 2022
Proceeds before Intended Use
Bl @t RSB 1655 2185] - W% - BE R&E - BIEREA A PTSHIE —E-—F—-A—H
Amendments to IAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
BIfR @t A B 37 5% 2 185] - BHEME K — BITE4MKA —E-=#%—HF—H
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020, Amendments to IFRS 1, 1 January 2022
IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41
BB EE -\ FE S _TF 2 FEIGE - —E-=#%—HF—H

BB AR RIE 158 - BRI mEERIE 95 -
BIBR B A5 R 2R RS 16 SRR MY 2 8060 M BIPR @ R T RIF 4155 2 18R

Note (a): As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in October Wit @) AR E-TH+ BBEERRT KRS RS
2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that 7R 2B BB EES RS ARDIEET
permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods NEEBERE A RBRAR-_E—=F—
beginning before 1 January 2023. A— BRIBEHEE R R AR S HERE

305k IF BRI M E AL 95 -

Note (b): As a consequence of the amendments to IAS 1, International Bz ®b) - AREREERE 1R (BN &R B
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification RS 5 EEHREY R — BIAHS
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand SHREREEBRA Y THER Y HEER =
Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding wording ToTEFARTELT  UE AR
with on change in conclusion. TR IRE TG o

2/' 6 China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4T E B IS R R MY E T ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5B TN - UAREEZITR)

37. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 37. BE=-BE=-BE+=-HA=+-—

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that,
for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the
scope of IAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination, an
entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after the date of first application, the Group will not be affected
by these amendments on the date of transition.

BIEFECEMERERNWIE
HIRE R D5&3 - 1N
&5

AR SERRAEENRRMBRE
EAME L BRBRMT -

B R B 755 o B RIS 38R 2 (2 FT
BRI ELRNEIRZETEHEA
T N\FRABEMOMBRERSIERZ
R BRROBERE2IMER
2 MBAKNBERNZEERE - 2%
ERT IR R B R B 5 o 5 2 R B 357 2 WE AR
RANER—BHIMER  BERALSLEHR
ERETEEXBBENBRER - &I
BRRE  BRATEEBRER ST ENE
I HAER (ERYBRERELZEE) —
REFNFEEANEBBRIABEN
T MRFAERERELMINERS
B AR - BB B R R 7% S R
EIMMEREE D BRI B S5 ERIE
A ER (BARYBHRERELZEE) —
REH 215 MIEBSAELR - tbsh -
ERTERRAEENKE AP HER
B AEBRAKE T - —_F—HA—
BEEFRMZFER] - ARZFEIA
EEAEEERARNKERRAERERAH
KBRNEBEH  NEENBER RS

TERIZFEITNTE -

> Paras
Z%

HREYIERER AR
—ROTEFR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k55 R5)

BB HRRNE @

37. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments
which affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate
benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”).
The Phase 2 amendments provide a practical expedient to
allow the effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting
the carrying amount when accounting for changes in the basis
for determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets
and liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the
interest rate benchmark reform and the new basis for
determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding the
change. In addition, the amendments permit changes required
by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could
arise on transition are dealt with through the normal
requirements of IFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge
ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary
relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk component.
The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to
assume that the separately identifiable requirement is met,
provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on
an entity’s financial instruments and risk management strategy.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied retrospectively, but
entities are not required to restate the comparative
information. As the Group did not have any interest-bearing
bank and other borrowing, accordingly, the Group will not be
affected by these amendments.

C UAABRHEZTR)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CBE-E-EFES+-A=1-—

HIEFEC BB RERBNE
Al AT ERNERREBENTESY
&)

E%EM‘% REEAERIZE 957  BUER
2B FE 395 BB &R
:.L%EJJ E75%  BIBRBA RS e 4

AIIZE 455 I IR ﬁ%%&%a‘@,ﬁ\'w
1658 2 1&5]

H IR I 2 B DA E th [ B ) = ([ e &L
SRR BRGTEMBIREH - BRH
TEIREERF R - ERSFTEAIE 395 -
BB 75 s AR RSB 75 - BERR B s 2
AIE 45 R B EERNE 1657 218
FTRRRERMEETHR R P RAFERE - 8 —F
BETREEREEIE  RAREBTS
MEERBEENRSRENZES T -
WESHEMEELERFEESIR - BET
AHNRERENTEELCE FHEEREE
BHAMEMELE  ETAERDAENE
RTEREREFE - foh - ZEIEFT R
F R EE R BRI R B B R S
YEH R B E) - i T BT R BB R o 1BF AR
AT e EE A T (] 18 25 19 48 18 B B BT 75 3R
HEBIFBIRA IR ESETTRIE - @2
REERE BN - EEEARFEWIET
BRBEKITSE  ZEEINEKER
BRANESUERZANNMET - WEES
32 Hh T8 HA £ [ B 1) K R B 48 B 5B 90 A AR 3k
0EANBAEBHR - AIZRERATE
BRETHHRERBRREFEUEREANZ
FIE o N RSB NERERBERER
M ER - LMEBIRT AR E RS T A7
FEREEREHEESMTANKEAREE
RROTE - ZZBIB T _—F—H
—HEZEHABRNEEMBES  LEER
WER  EERBAEINLERER - AR
REBIWEEMGTERITREMES
It - NEEE I ZZE BRI RE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
4T E B IS R R MY E T ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B RSN + AN EESIIR)

37. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 37. BE=-BE=-BE+=-HA=+-—

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS
28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
(2011) was removed and a new mandatory effective date will
be determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

BIEFECEMERERNWIE
i R ERRREBNARESE
&5

B B B 7% i 5 2E BI) 28 1055 M B
Re st AERFE 285 2 1EE] (ZF

——%)

B B s 5 E R 1097 M BIBR & Rt R
FRBF 2B (ZF——F) REART
HEREAE105 MBER S ERFE 285 (=
E——F) ZEHREBRREELEEBER
ARALEEZHNBEEITENREN
P2 - RFEFTERNIREEBE
BRASAELEZANHEITEBK
—IREBE  BREERaREE - IR
THRREBNEERS  XHMEENK
SRERABBENREERZBE QT
HELELENRERR  RREENESR
TR - RFETRERIER - BERES
B S ERIFE 1058 LB & 5t 2RI 55 28 5%
ZIERT(ZF——F) LATER B A% A 5
TRUEE o 1 5% i AR AR B RS O STR T R
RAINBELEZFEZ R REE
A ZFERTRBAIARA -

HREYIERER AR
—ROTEFR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k55 R5)

BB HRRNE @

37. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 16

Amendment to IFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting for
rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease payments results
in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change; (i) any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30
June 2021; and (iii) there is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease. The amendment is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with
earlier application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify
that if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject
to the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has
a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that
date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial
Statements.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BEBERI  AAREZITR)

37. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 3. BE-FE=EF+ZRAR=t+—

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS BLEFEEEMERERNE
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE Rl AR ERAIRZRENAREE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (continued) gE(f )

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from
the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items,
and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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37. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (continued)

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the
contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include both
the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct
labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an
adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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37. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the amendments
that are expected to be applicable to the Group are as follows:

— IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendment. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

— IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying IFRS 16.
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38.

39.

BB HRRNE @

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING
DATE

Anti-dumping duty and countervailing duty
investigations

During the year, certain of the Group’s wood products exported
to the United States were under the scope of new anti-
dumping duty and countervailing duty investigations.

On 22 January 2021, the United States International Trade
commission (“US ITC") determined that a United States industry
is materially injured by reason of imports of wood mouldings
and millwork products from the PRC and that the U.S.
Department of Commerce (“US Commerce”) has determined
are subsidised and sold in the United States at less than fair
value.

As a result of the US ITC's affirmative determinations, US
Commerce will issue anti-dumping and countervailing duty
orders on imports of these products from the PRC and The U.S.
cash deposits at a rate totaled at 54.43% will be collected from
importers of the Group's relevant products.

The Group, as exports, are not directly obliged to pay such
cash deposits but in the opinion of the Directors, the imposition
of such cash deposits will be taken into account in the pricing
negotiations with the Group customers in the United States.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation.
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